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Introductory Section




East Brunswick Public Schools .~~~

760 Route 18 East Brunswick,
New Jersey 08814

February 4, 2021

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
East Brunswick Public Schools
County of Middlesex, New Jersey

Dear Board Members and Constituents of the Township of East Brunswick:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the East Brunswick School District (District) for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of
the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the
management of the Board of Education (Board). To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data
presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to
present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds and account
groups of the District, All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of
the District's financial activities have been included,

The introductory section includes this transmittal letter (designed to complement Management’s
Discussion and Analysis and should be read in conjunction with it), the District's organizational
chart and a list of principal officials. The District is required to undergo an annual single audit in
conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 15-
08, “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid Payments.
Information related to this single audit, including the auditors’ report on internal control over
compliance and compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings and
recommendations, are included in the single audit section of this report.

1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES

East Brunswick School District is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). All funds and the government-wide
financial statements of the District are included in this report. The East Brunswick School District
and all its schools constitute the District's reporting entity,

The District operates eleven schools providing a full range of educational services appropiate to
grade levels K through 12, These include regular and vocational education, as well as special
education for handicapped youngsters. The schools, facility ages, and grade-levels served are as
follows:




School Year Built Grades

Bowne-Munro Elementary School 1952 Kio5
Central Elementary School 1949 KtoSs
Chittick Elementary School 1969 Kto3s
Frost Elementary School 1965 Ktos
Irwin Elementary School 1957 - Kto3s
Lawrence Brook Elementary School 1959 Kto$
Memorial Elementary School 2012 Kios5
Warnsdorfer Elementary School 1968 Ktos
Hammarskjold Middle School 2009 6&7
Churchill Junior High School 1962 8&9
East Brunswick High School 1958 10to 12

The District completed fiscal year 2019-2020 with an average daily enrollment of 8,218 students,
or 84 students less than the previous year's enrollment, This is an unanticipated decrease that is
likely attributed to the COVID-19 pandemic and families opting for home schooling during this
tenuous time. The following details the changes in the District’s student enrollment over the last
five years.

Average Daily Enrollment

Fiscal Year Student Enroliment Percent Change
2019-2020 82180 (1.01%)
2018-2019 8302.0 3.14%
2017-2018 8,049.0 0.01%
2016-2017 7,994.0 (1.41%)
2015-2016 8,108.0 (1.85%)

Enrollment fluctuates daily as studenis enroll in and withdraw froni the Districi. Thus, the
above average daily enrollment table provides the mean measurement of envollnient
throughout the respective years listed. This measure varies from the enrollment
“snapshot” (known as the Application for State School Aid or ASSA) required by the New
Jersey Department of Education and taken annually as of October 15.

During fiscal year 2019-2020, the District engaged Statistical Forecasting, LLC to conduct a
comprehensive analysis of school enrollment projections. The study, completed in July 2019,
projects grade-by-grade enrollments over a five-year period from 2019-2020 through 2023-2024,
In addition, the study included the following:

o Examination of historical enroliment trends, both districtwide and by grade configuration
(PK-5, 6-7, 8-9, and 10-12);

o Investigation of historical enroliment trends with respect to race and poverty status in
each school;

e Tabulation of birth counts at the attendance area level;




¢ Computation of student yields by housing type (i.e., detached single family,
townhouse/condominium, and apartment),

o Analysis of new housing starts and the impact on the school district; and,

o Projected enrollments, in a totally independent analysis, based on student yields and
housing turnover rates (resales) in East Brunswick,

The study’s projected year-to-year increases in enrollment will have serious consequences on
District facilities and class sizes. The table below exhibits 2018-2019 actual enrollment and the
ensuing enrollment projections.

Fiscal Year | PK-5| 6-7 | 8-9 | 10-12| PK-12
Actual Enrollment
2018-2019 [3,545]11,280]1,279] 2,080 | 8184

Baseline Projections
2019-2020 | 3,660 1,343 1,244 2,055} 8302
2020-2021 | 3,707 | 1,344 | 1,322 1,999 | 8372
2021-2022 | 3,782 | 1,326 | 1,391 | 1,958 | 8457
2022-2023 13,8321 1,347 | 1,391 | 1,964 | 8,534
2023-2024 | 3,864 | 1,397 11,372} 2,068 8701
2023-2024
Increase Over | 319 117 93 -12 517
2018-2019

Projections Adjusted for Housing Growth
2019-2020 | 3,682 | 1,349 1,249 | 2,005 | 8,343
2020-2021 | 3,779 1,364 | 1,343 1 2,032 18,518
2021-2022 | 3,885 1,352 | 1,422 2,003 1 8,662
2022-2023 | 3,931 1,374 1,420 | 2,008 | 8,733
2023-2024 | 3,962 | 1,427 | 1,399 | 2,114 | 8,902
2023-2024

Increase Over | 417 | 147 120 34, 718
2018-2019

Notwithstanding the de minimis enrollment decrease attributable to the pandemic in 2019-2020,
we anticipate enrollments to adjust and trend with the projected increases post-pandemic. At the
elementary school level, the District enroliment is projected to increase the equivalent of an entire
elementary school where facilities are already strained.

2019-2020
e EBarly Learning Academy was relocated out of the elementary schools to Hammarskjold
Middle School to make room for elementary regular education and special education
programs.
o Burgeoning class sizes continue to push on maximum thresholds.
¢ Ever-increasing special needs population requires classrooms that simply do not exist to
accommodate any additional programs necessary to meet the needs of those children,




The District is facing an elementary school crisis insofar as classroom availability is concerned,
As of the writing of this letter, there are no elementary classrooms available to support expanding
enroliments or additional special needs class sections,

Pre-pandemic, the Board was actively discussing potential resolutions to accommodate agrowing
enroliment. However, the COVID-19 crisis has required attention to be focused on keeping
students and employees safe while implementing remote- and hybrid-learning models. This
required all planning for temporary classroom units to be placed on hold. Yet, those plans must
now be “jump started” and prioritized.

The Township of East Brunswick is pursuing significant redevelopment plans, which arereported
to include upscale or specialty food markets; medium- and high-end restaurants; shuttle bus
service; bike paths; a concert venue; special needs and/or senior housing; universal Wi-Fi; a
community use building for recreational purposes; a hotel; and, residential units. Pre-pandemic,
demolition work had already begun at certain identified locations, The impact of those plans upon
the school district are currently unknown and must be examined as soon as the residential plans
are approved, Certainly, any residential construction will bring more students into the school
district. Therefore, the information is critical to school facilities planning.

A charter school based in East Brunswick opened its doors at the beginning of the 2010-2011
school year. Hatikvah International Academy Charter School was approved as a K-5 school to
serve up to 50 students per grade level. In its application in 2012-2013, it proposed increasing its
enrollment and expanding grade levels, as well as extending its charter, The application underwent
review by the New Jersey Department of Education Office of Charter Schools, after which the
Commissioner of Education denied the expansion. Since then, the charter school has annually
requested approval to expand grade levels and the number of students per grade. In fact, the
Commissioner of Education granted a portion of the requested expansion for the 2015-2016 school
year. It is unfortunate that this charter school was granted an initial charter several years ago in the
suburban community of East Brunswick having one of the best school districts in this State if not
the entire country, The charter school did not serve any educational need then, and it does not now.

During its eleven years, the charter school’s existence has required the cumulative appropriation
of $24,941,206 from the East Brunswick Public School District budget. This State-mandated
diversion of local financial resources has come with significant and deleterious impacts to the
school district beginning with the elimination of its model elementary world language program in
the charter school’s first year. The time has long passed to argue the merits of whether or not the
initial charter should have been approved, However, the community should be reminded that the
students enrolled in the charter school would receive a supetior quality of education and supports
if enrolled in the East Brunswick Public Schools.

East Brunswick’s taxpayers largely provide the financial support for its public schools, For fiscal
year 2021, the local funding share is 81.5% of the District’s fiscal year 2021 General Fund budget.
More and more, this suburban community’s local funds must be diverted to support a charter
school for which there is absolutely no justifiable educational need.




2. ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK:

The Township of East Brunswick's total labor force increased 0.81% to 26,210 in 2019 from
25,999 in 2018, as reported by the New Jersey Department of Labor and Workfotce Development.
The employment rate for 2019 was 97.4% as compared with 96,9% in 2018, and the unemployment
rate for 2019 decreased to 2.6% from 3.1% in 2018, East Brunswick’s employment and
unemployment rates reflect a steady economic outlook for the community. As reported above,
employment and unemployment rates are relatively unchanged from the prior year, affect the
general economic viability of the community, and are reflective of data that has been reported
statewide and nationally.

The Township of East Brunswick reported certificates of occupancy (COs) issued for new
residential units to be 36 for the calendar year 2019, as compared with 45 for the calendar year
2018, This represents a 20% decrease in comparison to fast year. (Between 2017 and 2018, the
demand increased by 105.6%.)

Economic data provided by the Township of East Brunswick indicates that the construction value
and building permits issued for new units, additions and remodeling for the entire 2019 calendar
year totaled $120,203,043 and 2,698, respectively, as compared to $67,959,964 and 2,804 for the
2018 calendar year. This represents a decrease of 106 permits and an increase in construction
value of $52,243,079. While the number of construction permit issuances declined by 3.8% in
2019, the related construction values increased by 76.9%, both of which are indicative of the
continuing investment being made in Fast Brunswick’s residential and commercial properties.
Additionally, re-sale housing in East Brunswick is reflective of the ongoing desire of individuals
to establish their residency where the excellent public schools are the primary factor in that
decision.

While the legally established caps on local property tax increases are intended to limit property
tax growth, New Jersey continues to have a need for property tax reform. The Federal Tax Reform
Act of 2017 with its Hmitations on the deductibility of property taxes has placed an added burden
on New Jersey homeowners. The District is conscious of this and will continue to act prudently in
its fiscal decisions. However, these issues must be addressed. We continue to urge New Jersey
residents to express the expectations they have of their elected officials with regard to tax reform,

3. MAJORINITIATIVES

The District has been aggressive in pursuing the maximum level of State grant funds for all
qualifying projects since State’s school facilities grants were reinstituted in 2008. To date, East
Brunswick has been successful in receiving grant approvals on all qualifying projects and for the
maximum qualifying amount, The grant funds have benefitted East Brunswick taxpayers by
reducing the local financial obligation for the projects. In fact, over $3.1 million in State grant
funds — a full 40% of estimated project costs — have funded security vestibules at all eleven school
locations, a myriad of infrastructure improvements and building upgrades that have been
completed throughout the District. While the State has not continued the grant program, the
District is poised to avail itself of such funding opportunities when and if they again become
available. «




The limitations on financial resources to support capital projects have required the District to
pursue other means of providing project funds. It established a revolving fund of financing through
which capital projects are funded. Such short-term debt having a payback of no more than five
years has enabled the District to plan ahead in meeting the many needs of its 13 facilities. The
District has also received Safety Grants from the New Jersey Schools Insurance Group. Those
grants focus on District safety and security through physical improvements. Furthermore, the
District has been fortunate to supplement its capital reserve fund to further the capital plan. In
addition, through an Energy Savings Improvement Program (ESIP), the District has been
undertaking facility improvements that will be self-funded through reductions in utility costs.

The projects undertaken in the planning stage, in-process or completed during the past year include
the following:

Bowne-Munro Elementary School: security improvements, carbon monoxide detectors,
energy savings improvements (including building management systems, lighting), and
roof-top unit replacements.

Central Elementary School: 21% Century classroom upgrades, security improvements,
window replacements, carbon monoxide detectors energy savings improvements
(including building management systems, lighting, solar panel system),

Chittick Elementary School: 21% Century classroom upgrades, security improvements,
window and exterior door replacements, HVAC upgrades to corridors, carbon monoxide
detectors, and energy savings improvements (inciuding building management systems,
lighting).

Churchill Junior High School: 215! Century classroom upgrades, security improvements,
window and exterior door replacements, HVAC and electrical upgrades, roof replacement,
carbon monoxide detectors, boiler upgrades, and energy savings improvements (including
building management systems, lighting, solar panel system).

Rast Brunswick High School: 215 Century classroom upgrades, security improvements,
carbon monoxide detectors, roof-top unit replacements, underground vault removal,
sidewalk replacements, and energy savings improvements (including building
management systems, lighting).

Frost Elementary School: 215 Century classroom upgrades, security improvements, fire
alarm system replacement, window and exterior door replacements, multi-purpose room
and kitchen renovations, HVAC upgrades to corridors, carbon monoxide detectors, energy
savings improvements (including building management systems, lighting), and cotridor
improvements,

Hammarskjold Middle School: security improvements, carbon monoxide detectors, and
energy savings improvements (including building management systems, lighting).




Irwin Elementary School: security improvements, HVAC upgrades to corridors, carbon
monoxide detectors, and energy savings improvements (including building management
systems, lighting).

Lawrence Brook Elementary School: 21% Century classrcom upgrades, security
improvements, carbon monoxide detectors, and energy savings improvements (including
building management systems, lighting, solar panel system).

Memorial Elementary School: 215 Century classroom upgrades, security improvements,
carbon monoxide detectors, and energy savings improvements (including building
management systems, lighting, solar panel system),

Warnsdorfer Elementary School: 215 Century classroom upgrades, security improvements,
fire alarm replacement, window and exterior door replacements, HVAC upgrades to
corridors, carbon monoxide detectors, energy savings improvements (including building
management systems, lighting), and electrical upgrades.

Support Operations Facility: warehouse air conditioning, and energy savings
improvements (including building management systems, lighting, solar panel system).

Administration Building: security improvements, energy savings improvements (including
building management systems, lighting), and restroom and elevator upgrades.

Finally, technology has a significant role in instruction and is integrated throughout the District’s
operations, It is an absolute necessity upon which there is heavy reliance to continually achieve
success in District operations and instruction. In 2019-2020, the COVID-19 pandemic pushed the
District into utilizing its recently implemented learning management system (LMS) to support
remote teaching and learning in grades eight through 12, The pandemic caused the District to
speedily implement its one-to-one initiative resulting in the assignment of individual Lenovo
laptop computers to each student in grades 8 through 12 and Chromebooks fo each student in
grades K through 7.

The LMS, as well as other initiatives and general technology maintenance and upgtades, require
a significant ongoing investment for which this District has been committed to find innovative
ways of overcoming funding challenges. Thus, we must succeed in meeting our obligation to
ensure technology is reliable and readily available to support student learning and the District’s
“business” operations,

Seven years ago, Sunera, LLC was engaged to assess the Information Technology Department.
~ While the report is confidential due to sensitive security discussions contained therein, the District
has been commiitted to implementing the recommendations and providing students with the tools
needed to augment their educational experiences. The issues to be addressed are varied and
improvement will take time and financial resources. Much has been accomplished with marked
improvements having been implemented. The District’s steadfast commitment has yielded
substantial progress in this area,




Six years ago, the District engaged in a study of its Facilities Management operations, which
includes building maintenance (electrical, general maintenance, HVAC, and plumbing), grounds
maintenance, and custodial services, While the report is confidential due to certain personnel
discussions contained therein, the District has been committed to implementing the
recommendations as evidenced by the steady implementation of a reorganization plan. The overall
objective has been to provide high-quality support to improve maintenance of the District’s overall
property investment and infrastructure both inside and out. While change is sometimes a slow and
challenging process, the plan has resulted in substantive improvements that have taken hold and
continue to benefit the District’s properties.

4, INTERNAL CONTROL

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse
and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The internal
control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives
are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible forensuring
that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws
and regulations related to those programs. This internal control siructure is also subject to periodic
evaluation by District management,

As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of
the internal control structure, including that portion related to federal and state financial assistance
programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and
regulations.

5. BUDGETARY CONTROLS

In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls, The objective
of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual
appropriated budget, The Board of Education of East Brunswick Public Schools has the legal level
of budgetary control, which is made at the line-item level. Annual appropriated budgets are
adopted for the general fund, the special revenue fund, and the debt service fund, Project-length
budgets arc accounted for in the capital projects fund when applicable. The f{inal budget amount,
as amended for the fiscal year, is reflected in the financial section,

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a
line-item basis, Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as reported as
assigned fund balance at June 30, 2020.




6. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORT

The District's accounting records reflect generally accepted accounting principles, as promulgated
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system of the District
is organized based on funds. These funds and the government-wide financial statements are
explained in "Notes to the Basic Financial Statements," Note 1.

7, OTHER INFORMATION

A)

B)

Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit to be performed by independent
certified public accountants or registered municipal accountants, The accounting firm of
Wiss & Company, LLP was appointed by the Board of Education. In addition to meeting
the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the
requirements of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1986, the Federal Uniform Guidance
and New Jersey’s OMB Circular 15-08. The auditors’ report on the basic financial
statements, required supplementary information and other supplementary information are
included in the financial section of this report. The auditors’ reports related specifically to
the single audit are included in the single audit section of this report,

Awards — The International Association of School Business Officials (ASBQO) awarded a
Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting to the District for its comprehensive
annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, In order to be awarded this
certificate, the District published an easily readable and efficiently organized
comprehensive annual financial report. This report satisfied both accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States and applicable legal requiremenis. This is the
seventh year in a row the District has received this award.

This Certificate is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Programs’ requirements and
we are submitting it to ASBO to determine its eligibility for the fiscal year 2019-2020
award.

In addition, the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada
(GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to
East Brunswick Public Schools for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. This was the fifth consecutive year that the district has
achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive
annval financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Cettificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only, We believe that our
current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of
Achievement Programs’ requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA {o determine
its eligibility for the fiscal year 2019-2020 certificate.




O Continued Excellence in Academics, Athletics and the Arts - During the 2019- 2020
school year, the District continued to advance its reputation for excellence through a
variety of accomplishments and achievements. See the accomplishments and
achievements section for a number of those successes,

8. COVID-19 PANDEMIC

The COVID-19 Pandemic has caused the District to mitigate the transmission of the coronavirus
through implementation of a variety of safety precautions affecting classrooms, buses, cafeterias,
and shared spaces. These precautions include the implementation of remote and hybrid learning
models, providing personal protective equipment (PPE) to staff, enforcing physical distancing in
the buildings, improvements to air filtration, cautionary signage, enhanced cleaning of buildings,
more frequent cleaning of surfaces, and sharing information with employees and students about
safety protocols.

In addition, the District has provided hand sanitizer and distributed a range of PPE to staff
including cloth masks, surgical masks, N95 masks, face shields, and lab coats as needed, Masks
are required in all buildings. Students and staff are screened before entering buildings and non-
touch temperature taking has been instituted as well as a daily health screening form.

The District anticipates continued vigilance will be necessary and will examine any new options
ot protocols that become available to keep students and staff as safe as possible.

9. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the East Brunswick Board of
Education for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the
school district and thereby contributing their full support to the development and maintenance of
our financial operation, The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without
the dedicated services of our financial and accounting staff.

Respectfully submitted,

o o 74) /a L LoD

Victor P. Valeski, Ed.D. Bernardo Giuliana, SFO, QPA
Superintendent of Schools School Business Administrator/
Board Secretary
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Accomplishments and Achievements

Year ended June 30, 2020

The District is proud to report the many successes and accomplishments that our students have
achieved. The 2019-2020 school year achievements are listed below:

Tor Excellence in Academics...

East Brunswick is the only district in the state to have 11 Blue Ribbon Schools. The schools
are Bowne-Munro, Central, Chittick, Frost, Irwin, Lawrence Brook, Memorial and
Warnsdorfer Elementary Schools, Hammarskjold Middle School, Churchill Junior High
School and East Brunswick High School.

Over 95% of graduates go on to college.

East Brunswick High School was recognized by NJ.com as one of the Top 50 New Jersey
High Schools with the best SAT Scores.

East Brunswick School District has carned a position on the 9™ Annual AP District Honor
Roll. The annua! AP District Honor Roll recognizes districts for increasing access {o
Advanced Placement course work while maintaining or increasing the percentage of
students earning scores of 3 or higher on AP Exams,

EBHS/MCC Pathways Program - 789 students took DCC courses and amassed 2,532
credits, This was across 30 different courses.

Nine EBHS students were National Merit Scholarship Finalists.

Fourteen EBHS seniors graduated with Highest Honors.

Forty-seven National Merit Scholarship commended students.

East Brunswick High School welcomed 146 new members into the National Honor
Sociely.

338 Presidential Awards for Academic Excellence were awarded.

Four students won the Cybersecurity Competition hosted by Brookdale Community
College,

NJ Seal of Biliteracy - 136 high school seniors earned the distinction of the New Jersey

Seal of Biliteracy:
o Qualifiers:
= Arabic - 8

= Chinese-5
» French -~ 19
»  German- 17
» Jtalian - 10
*» Korean -2
» Portuguese - 1
= Spanish ~ 74
Five of the above students earned two Seals of Biliteracy:
o Korean and Spanish
o Korean and Spanish
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For Excellence in Academics - continued

O
&}
Q

Portuguese and Spanish
Russian and French
Chinese and Spanish

¢ The EBHS Math Honor Society Mu Alpha Theta inducted 79 members.

¢ The EBHS IPLE team, also known as the Institute for Political and Legal Education,
placed st in the state again for the 33rd time in 34 years in the We the People: The
Citizen and the Constitution Compefition. Thirty EBHS seniors were a part of the IPLE

team.

e Inthe FBLA State Leadership Competition:

o]

o
O
Q

One EBHS student placed first in Electronic Career Portfolio
Two EBHS students placed first in Entrepreneurship

One EBHS student placed first in Healthcare Administration
One EBHS student placed first in Political Science

For Excellence in the Arts...

e Congratulations to student musicians selected for Honors, Regional and All-State
Ensembles:

O 0O ¢ O ¢ O O

2020 CIMEA Intermediate Region Choir (8)

2020 CIMEA Intermediate Chamber Orchestra (2)
2020 CIMEA Intermediate String Orchestra (4)
2020 CIMEA Intermediate Band (1)

2020 CIMEA Intermediate Wind Ensemble (1)
2020 CIMEA High School Region 11 Orchestra (5)
2020 CIMEA High School Wind Ensemble (1)

« EBHS Tri-M National Music Honor Society, there are currently 72 students at EBIIS
with this recognition.
+ One EBHS student won the Young Women Composers Camp at Temple University.

+ One EBHS student won the Relache New Music Ensemble Commission Competition.

¢ One HMS student won the 2019 Road Safety Art Contest.
« Two students won the Artistic Achievement Award.
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For Excellence in Athletics...

Varsity Cheerleaders placed 1* in a Competition.
Five EBHS Athletes won All GMC Awards
One EBHS Athlete won the GMC Bowling Individual Award.
CHAMPIONS:
o Division:
»  (Girls Soccer
»  Girls Tennis
»  Gymnastics
o Conference
= Boys Soccer
= Girls Soccer
»  Girls Tennis
»  Gymnastics
o Sectional
»  Girls Tennis
» Girls Bowling
o Group
»  Girls Tennis

- & L] L J

o Overall State Champions: Girls Tennis
Staff Accomplishments..,

« One teacher won the Urban Land Institute Teacher of the Year Award.

o The Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting was awarded by the dssociation of
School Business Officials (ASBO) International to the East Brunswick Public Schools for
the seventh consecutive year.

o The Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting was awarded by the
Governmeni Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) to the
East Brunswick Public Schools for the fifth consecutive year.

For Excellence in Service to the Community...

+ District Staff collected $2,800 for Breast Cancer Research and Pediatric Cancer Research
for the Rutgers University Foundation.

« District Staff celebrated National Go Red Day. The American Heart Association sponsors
this event in an effort to raise awareness for women's heart health. A district wide denim
day raised $3,135 to benefit cancer research.
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State Board of Education
Commissioner of Education

East Brunswick Public Schools
Organizational Chart
June 30, 2020

Electorate

|

Board of Education

Executive County Superintendent

Board Attorney

Superintendent of Schoels

Board Sceretary

Assistant Saperintendent
of Academices

School Business Administrator

Assistant Superintendent
of Student Activities & Serviees

Alteynative Programs
Curriculum & Student Achievement
Instructionnl Supervision
Professional Learning, Evaluation, & Assessment

This organizational structure is effective October 17, 2019,

Refer to position job descriptions for additional details,

Capital Planning & Construction
Child Nutrition
Community Programs
Facilitics Use

Athletics & Physieal Education
Guidance 6-12 & College Readiness
Student Services & Wellness
Special Education

Tinancial Services
Eacilities Management
Pupil Transportation
Risk Managenient

Community Qutreach
Dvistrict Registrar
Human Resources

Information Technology

School Administration

School Security Operations
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State Board of Education Electorate
Commissioner of Education [
Executive County Superintendent Bonrd of Education
Board Attorney  [—— | Superintendent of Schools Board Secretary

Assistant Superintendent School Business Administrator Assistant Superintendent
of Academics of Student Activities & Services

Dirvector of Curricalum &
Student Achievement

Assistant Director of
Alternative Programs

Director of Professional Learning,
Evaluation, & Assessment

Supervisors of Instruction
- Arts Education
- Engineering, Business, Computer & Consumer Sciences
- Language Arts, English, & Primary Education
- Mathematics .
- Science
- Social Studies |
- World Language, ESL, & Bilingual Education |

Department Chairpersons -~ Grades 812
- English
= Mathematics
- Scienee
- Social Studies & Medin Services |

This ovganizationnl structure is effective October 17, 2019,

Refer to position job deseriptions for additienal defails,
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State Board of Education Blectorate
Commissioner of Education |
Exccutive County Superintendent Board of Education :
Board Attorney  — Superintendent of Schaols Board Secretary

Assistant Superintendent
of Academics

Assistant Superintendent

School Business Administrator of Student Activities & Services

Director of Financial Services/

Director of Facilities
Assistant School Business —

Administrator Manager of Pupil Management
Transportaticn
Financial Services Department || - Assistant Manager Building Maintenance Foreperson
Senior Mauagers/Managers ) gus ‘gl_(:es i - Gieneral Maintenance Technicians
- Accounting - Bus orivers - Master Electricians
- Accounts Payable — - Dispatchet 1 - Master HVACR Technicians
- Payroll/Employee Benefits - Master Painter
- Purchasing .\ N - Master Plumbers
- Central Duplicating | Capital P!aun.mg & - Painters
Construction

Custodial Services Management

Child Nufrition Department N L _Head Custodians

- Food Service Management Company - Facilities Use - Custodians

Community Programs Department ' Grounds Maintenance Forepetson
= After School KKids Program b Risk Management L__| - Centracted Services

- Early Learning Academy - Grounds Maintenance Technicians
- Early Morning Proegram T - Grounds Maintenance Helper

= Enrichiment Programs

‘Fhis organlzational structave Is effective October 17,2019,

Refer to job deseriptions for position reporting Hnes.
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State Board of Education
Commissioner of Education
Executive County Superintendent

Electorate

Board of Education

Board Atforney

Superintencent of Schools

Board Secretary

Assistant Superintendent
of Academics

This organizational structure is effective October 17, 2019,

Refer to position job descriptions for additionat details,

Sehool Business Administrator

Assistant Superintendent
of Student Activities & Services

Supervisor of Athletics/
Physical Education
- Coaches

Supervisor of Guidance
6-12 & Colege Readiness
- Guidance Counselors

Supervisor of Student
Services & Wellness
- Nurses
- Student Assistance Counsclors

Director of Special Education
- Child Study Teams

Supervisors of Instruetion
- Special Education, Grades PK-5
- Spectal Education, Grades 6-12

- Special Education, Special Class Programs
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Electorate
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Superintendent of Schools

Board Attorney

| Board Secretary

Assistant Superintendent
of Academics

School Business Administrator

Assistant Superintendent
of Student Activities & Services

Support

Technicians

This organizationat structuve is effective October 17, 2019,

Refer to positlon job descriptions for additional details,

Director omellmumlty Director of Human Chief Information - Schiool Security
Qutreach & Academic . Schoal Principsals .
Resources Officer Operations
Support
L Student o Lend & School J
Registration Applications ) Seeurity Officers
Networks & |
Telecommunications
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East Brunswick Public Schools
East Brunswick, New Jersey

Roster of Officials

June 30, 2020

Members of the Board of Education Term Expires
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Other Officials

Victor Valeski, Ed.D., Superintendent

Bernardo Giuliana, SFO, School Business Administrator/Board Secretary

Louis Figueroa, Ed.D., Assistant Superintendent of Student Activities and Services
Joyce Boley, Ed.D., Assistant Superintendent for Academics
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Attorney
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Independent Auditors
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S ASSOCIATION OF
O SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIALS

The Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting
is presented to

East Brunswick Public Schools

for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019.

The CAFR meets the criteria established for
ASBO International's Certificate of Excellence.
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EXCELLENCE
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Claire Hertz, SFO David J. Lewis
President Executive Director
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Presented to

East Brunswick Public Schools
New Jersey

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2019

Cohectop o P Honied

Executive Director/CEO
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A PARTNER TO GROW WITH

Independent Auditors’ Report

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

East Brunswick Public Schools

East Brunswick, New Jersey

County of Middlesex

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the East Brunswick Public
Schools, County of Middlesex, New Jersey (the “District”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; audit
requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey;
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards and requirements require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness the District's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

WISS & COMPANY, LLP 23
14 Penn Plaza, Suite 1010 100 Campus Drive, Suite 400 5 Bartles Corner Road
New York, NY 10122 Florham Park, NJ 07932 Flemington, NJ 08822

212.594.8155 973.994.9400 908.782.7300



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the District as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s
discussion and analysis, schedule of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability-PERS,
schedule of District pension contributions-PERS, schedule of the State’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability associated with the District-TPAF, schedule of State’s proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability associated with the District and changes in the total OPEB liability and related ratios — (PERS and
TPAF), and budgetary comparison information as identified in the table of contents be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial statements,
long-term debt schedules and the schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance,
as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200 Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New
Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State
Aid, respectively, and the other information, such as the introductory and statistical section are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements, long-term debt schedules and the schedules of
expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining
and individual fund financial statements, long-term debt schedules and the schedules of expenditures of
federal awards and state financial assistance are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.
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The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 4, 2021
on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the District’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal

control over financial reporting and compliance.

Scott A. Clelland
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 1049

WISS & COMPANY, LLP
February 4, 2021

Florham Park, New Jersey
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis




East Brunswick Public Schools

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2020

The discussion and analysis of East Brunswick Public School’s (the “District”) financial performance provides
an overview of the District’s financial performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. The intent of
this discussion and analysis is to look at the District’s financial performance as a whole. Please read it in
conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the District’s financial statements and
notes, which immediately follow this section.

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary Information
specified in the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements-Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments. Certain comparative
information between the current year and the prior fiscal year is presented in the MD&A, as required by GASB
Statement No, 34,

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial statements,
The Districts basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements,
2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. This document also contains
required and other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themseives.

Government-wide financial statements, The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the District’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position (A-1) presents information on all of the assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities and deferted inflows of resources of the District, with the difference between the four reported as net
position. Qver time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities (A-2) presents information showing how the net position of the District changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change oceurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses
are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g.
earned but unused vacation leave).

In the government-wide financial statements, the District’s activities are divided into two categories:
Governmental Activities — All of the District’s programs and services are reported here including instruction,
support setvices, operation and maintenance of plant facilities, pupil transportation, extracurricular activities,

construction and facilities improvements, seff-insurance, and debt repayment.

Business-Type Activities — The District charges fees for certain services it provides. The Food Service,
Community Programs and Facilities Rentals are reported here.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 36 -37 of this report.
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Fund financial statements. A fund is a group of related accounts that is used to mainfain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements, All of the funds of the District can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. The District’s activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how
money flows into and out of the funds and balances left at year-end available for spending in the future years,
These funds are reported using a modified accrual accounting method, which measures cash and all other
financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed
short-term view of the District’s general government operations and the basic services it provides.
Governmental fund information helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can
be spent in the near future to finance educational programs, The relationship between governmental activities
(reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is
reconciled in the financial statements,

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 38-40 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The District maintains two proprietary fund types, three enterprise funds and one internal
service fund. The enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the District is that the costs of providing goods or
services be financed through user charges. The enterprise fund reports the operations of the food service,
community education and facilities ventals programs. The self-insured internal service fund is used to record
the activity of the District’s medical benefits, Proprietary Funds provide the same type of information as the
governmeni-wide financial statements, only in more detail.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 41 - 43 of this report,
Fiduciary funds, Fiduciary funds are used fo account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
governmental entity. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because

the resources of those funds are not available to support the District’s own programs,

The District uses agency funds to account for resources held for student activities and groups, and payroll
related liabilities. The District uses the trust fund to account for an unemployment compensation fund.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 44 - 45 of this report.

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential for a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
basic financial statements can be found on pages 46 - 87 of this report.

Other information. The required supplementary information related to pensions and other postemployment
benefits and the individual and combining statements referred to earlier in connection with the governmental
and enterprise funds are presented immediately following the notes to the basic financial statements.
Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 88 ~ 130 of this report.
Financial Highlights

Key financial highlights for 2019-2020 are as follows:

In total, net position at June 30, 2020 was $134,616,592, which represents a 4.2% increase from 2019, This is

primarily due to principal payments on long-term debt in the amount of $9,363,240, and the decrease in the
net pension liability, net of related deferrals, of $2,442,187.
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Assets!

Current and other assets

Capital assets, net 244,237,818 457,057 244,694,875 231,696,263 490,034 232,186,297
Total assets 285,004,714 3,966,281 288,970,995 274,125 488 4,287,710 278,413,198

Deferred outflows of

resources 12,030,616 12,030,616 14,247,410 14,247,410

Liabilities:

Current liabilities 25,320,191 1,062,844 26,383,035 23,018,432 1,133,758 24,152,190

Net pension liability 35,478,393 35,478,393 37,920,580 37,620,580

Long-term liabilities 90,651,018 129,153 90,780,171 87,328,612 120,636 87,449,248
Total labilities 151,449,602 1,191,997 152,641,599 148,267,624 1,254,394 149,522,018

Deferred inflow of resources 13,743,420 13,743,420 13,679,399 13,679,399

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 155,044,226 457,057 155,501,283 150,002,200 490,034 150,492,234

Restricted 18,343,418 18,343,418 18,170,297 18,170,297

Unrestricted (deficit) (41,545,336) 2,317,227 (39,228,109  (41,746,622) 2,543,282 (39,203,340}
Total net position $131,842,308 $2,774,284 $134,616,592  $126,425,875 $3,033,316  $129,459,19!

Governmental activities general revenues accounted for $191,475,546 in revenue or 97.9% of all governmental
activities revenue. Program specific revenues in the form of charges for services and operating grants and
contributions accounted for $4,184,654 or 2.1% of total governmental activities revenues of $195,660,200.

Among major funds, the General Fund had $176,238,948 in revenues and $1‘75,803,059 in expenditures. The
General Fund’s fund balance is $23,262,653 as of June 30, 2020, an increase of $506,716 from the June 30,
2019 balance.

Notification was received that the two June 2020 state aid payments to the District in the total amount of
$1,926,609 would be delayed until the next school year, While, the State of New Jerscy has taken action to
withhold the final June payment each year since 2003, it expanded the withholding to both June payments in
the 2009-2010 fiscal year, in order to avert a budget shortfall at the state level.

The District followed GASB Statement No. 75 (GASB 75), Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, during the 2020 fiscal year resulting in the recording of
revenue and expense in the amount of $5,705,854 related to post-employment health benefits,

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the District’s financial position. The
following table provides a comparative summary of net position relating to the District’s governmental and
business-type activities at June 30, 2020 and 2019:

Net Position
June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
Governmental  Business-type Governmental  Business-type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total

§ 40,766,896

$ 3,509,224

$ 44,276,120

$ 42,429,225

$ 3,797,676

$ 46,226,901

Current and other assets decreased in large part due to a decrease in cash and cash equivalents and various
receivable balances.

Capital assets increased as a result of the addition of capital assets and construction in progress exceeding
depreciation expense in the current year.

Long-term liabilities increased as resuit of new Refunding School Bonds of $10,355,000 issued in the current
year and new lease purchase obligations of $14,600,000, offset by principal payments made in the total amount
of $21,198,240 for bonds payable, capital leases and Iease purchase obligations, combined,
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Current liabilities increased in large part due to an increase in the current portion of long-term obligations of
$2,062,492 due to the additional lease purchase obligation principal payment which will be paid in the 2020-
2021 fiscal year on the new $14,600,000 lease purchase obligation that was issued in the 2019-2020 fiscal
year.

The net pension liability and related deferrals (net) decreased as a result of changes in the allocation as
determined by the State of New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits as well as the result of actual
investment performance during the year and a change in assumptions as compatred to the prior year.

Thete was an increase in restricted net position of $173,121, which resulted largely from an increase in the
capital reserve of $77,534.

There was an overall decrease of $259,032 in net position reported in connection with the District’s business-
type activitics. The Food Service program had a decrease in net position of $23,284 and the Community
Programs program had a decrease in net position of $374,095, which is a direct result of the COVID-19
pandemic school closures. The Facilities Rentals generated an increase in net position of $138,347. The
following table provides a comparative summary of the changes in net position relating to the District’s
governmental and business-type activities for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019:

Changes in Net Position

Year ended June 34, 2020

Year ended June 30, 2019

Governmental  Business-type Governmental ~ Business-iype
Activities Agtivities Total Activities Aclivities Total
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges tor Services $ 699,894 § 4,363,535 $§ 5063420 § 805,102 $ 6,794,867 § 7.689.969
Operating Grants
and Contributions 3,484,760 1,045,955 4,530,715 3,533,693 1,083,113 4,616,806
General Revenues: i

Property Taxes 136,503,916 136,503,916 134,635,982 134,635,982

Grants and Entitlements 53,986,819 53,986,819 60,150,455 60,150,455

Miscellaneous 984,811 80,371 1,065,182 858,189 47,978 906,167

Total Revenues 195,660,200 5,489,861 201,150,061 200,073 421 7925958 207,999,379
Expenses:

Instruction 107,157,404 107,157,404 107,816,283 107,816,283

Support Services 80,369,076 80,369,076 84,203,472 $4,203,472

Interest and other charges 2,817,287 2,817,287 3,085,432 3,085,432

Business-type activities 5,748,893 5,748,893 6,467,011 6,407,011

Total Expenses 190,343,767 5,748,893 196,092,660 195,105,187 6,467,011 201,572,198

Change in Net Position Before

Transfers and Special Hem 5,316,433 {259,032) 5,057,401 4,968,234 1,458,947 6,427,181
Transfers - - - 1,288,255 (1,288,255) -
Special items 100,000 - 100,600 - - -
Change in net position

after Transfers and Special Iten 5,416,433 (259,032) 5,157,401 6,256,489 170,692 6,427,181
Net Position-beginning 126,425,875 3,033,316 129,459,191 120,169,386 2,862,624 123,032,010
Nel Position-ending $ 131,842,308 § 2,774,284 § 134,616,592 § 126425875 § 3,033316 $129,459,191
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Governmental Activities

Property taxes made up 70% of total revenue for the fiscal year 2020. Federal, state and local grants and tuition
and miscellaneous revenue accounted for the remainder. The total cost of all programs and services was
$190,105,1 15, Instruction accounted for 56.4% of total expenses.

Overall total revenues and expenses decreased due to the impact of GASB 75, which required the District to
record approximately $5.7 million in revenues, which were contributions made on behalf of the District by the
State for post-employment benefits compared to approximately $12.3 million in the prior year. This was offset
by an increase in the current year tax levy by approximately $1.9 million,

Business-Type Activities
Revenue for the District’s business-type activities was comprised of charges for services and federal and state
reimbursements.

Food service revenue, which included no subsidy from the general fund, was less than expenses by $23,284.
Charges for services, which consist of the amount paid by students and other patrons for daily food service and
catering, represent 60.4% of total revenue.

Community Programs expenses exceeded revenues by $374,095.
The Facilities Rentals revenues exceeded expenses by $138,347.

Financial Analysis of the District’s Funds
As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements,

Governmental funds. The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District’s
financing requirements. The District’s fund balance amounts are classified as restricted, assigned or
unassigned.

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the
District continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. The following schedule presents
a summary of the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund and Debt Service Fund revenues for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2020 as well as the amount and percentage of increases in relation to the prior year:

Percent Increase Percent of
Revenue Amount of Total from 2019 Increase

Local Sources $ 138,447,707 7424% § 1,637,916 1.20%

State Sources 44,872,508 24,06% 1,610,950 3.72%
Federal Sources 3,177,071 1,70% 43,093 1.38%
Total $ 186,497,286 100.00% $ 3,291,961 1.80%

The increase in local source revenue is mainly attributable to the increase in the local tax fevy of $1,867,934.

The increase in state source revenue is largely a result of an increase in the State of New Jersey’s contribution
to on-behalf TPAF pension contributions in the amount of $707,377.

The increase in federal source revenue is mainly attributable to an increase in grant activity.
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The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund, Special Revenue Fund and Debt Service Fund
expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, as well as the amount and percentage of increases and
decreases in relation to the prior year:

Increase Percent of
Percent (Decrease) from  Increase

Expendifures Amount of Fotal 2019 (Decrease)
Instruction $ 68,141,303 34.60% § 2,286,537 3.47%
Support services 101,898,664  51.74% 856,446 0.85%
Capital Outlay 14,804,089 7.52% 4,706,159 46,61%
Debt Service 12,096,518 6.14% (1,441,129) (10.65)%
Total $ 196,940,574 100.00% $ 6,408,013 3.36%

The increase in capital outlay is the result of the District undertaking more projects in the current year as
compared with the prior year. Instruction expenditures, as adjusted for on-behalf expenditures related to TPAF
pension costs assumed by the State, increased only slightly as a result of the District’s efforts to continue to
control costs, Support service expenditures increased as a result of increased costs for student and other support
related services. The decrease in debt service expenditures is the result of required principal and interest
payments from capital leases, lease purchase obligations and bonds payable.

General Fund

The fund balance increased by $506,716 during the 2019-2020 fiscal year as a result of the timing of when
expenditures were incurred on capital items funded in the general fund. As of June 30, 2020, the District has
unassigned fund balance of $2,359,257, which represents an increase of $8,345 from the prior year.

Special Revenue Fund
The fund balance in the Special Revenue Fund increased by $3,741,332 mainly as a result of the $14,600,000
lease purchase obligations issuance that took place in the 20 19-2020 fiscal year.

Capital Projects Fund :

As of June 30, 2020, the Capital Project’s Fund Balance decreased by $5,823,416 mainly as a result of
expenditures incurred for existing ongoing projects related to the issuance of the Energy Savings Improvement
Program Refunding in the prior year.

Debt Service Fund

As of June 30, 2020, the Debt Service Fund Balance increased by $90,340 mainly as a result of the increase in
issuance costs for the refunding of bonds that took place in the current year. The District issued $£10,355,000
Refunding School Bonds in the current year to advance refund $11,835,000 of 2010 Schoo! Bonds.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The District’s budget is prepared according to New Jersey law and is based on accounting for certain
transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances, The most significant budgeted fund
is the General Fund.

During the course of the 2019-2020 fiscal year, the District amended its General Fund budget as needed. The
District uses program-based budgeting and the budgeting systems are designed to tightly control total program
budgets but provide flexibility for program management. The School Business Administrator, Superintendent
of Schools, and Board of Education, must approve transfers from one program {o another, Transfers were
required due to:

»  Staffing changes based on student needs,
»  Accounting changes in maintenance and operations, such as transfers (o Capital Projects.

» Changes in appropriations to prevent budget overruns, as well as to effect account coding corrections.
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets
At the end of the 2019-2020 fiscal year, the District had capital assets of $336,948,837, which includes school

facilities, land, buildings, equipment and vehicles and construction in progress.
The following provides a summary of the capital assets held by the District at June 30, 2020 and 2019:

Capital Assets

2020 2019
Governmental Business-type Governmental  Business-type
Activities Activities Activities Activities

Non-Depreciable Assets:
Land $ 1,019,208 $ 1,019,208
Construction in Progress 29,979,403 18,542,256
Depreciable Assets:
Buildings and Improvements 285,856,100 $ 700,560 279,864,449 § 700,560
Machinery and Equipment 18,836,295 557,271 15,899,604 548,070

Totals § 335,691,006 $ 1,257,831 § 315325517 § 1,248,630

Overall governmental capital assets increased $20,365,489 from the 2018-2019 fiscal year to the 2019-2020
fiscal year mainly due to the increase in construction attributable to the Energy Savings Improvement Plan
(“ESIP™), the CJHS roof replacement and electrical upgrades, Lawrence Brook Elementary roof replacement,
district-wide secutity system upgrades, RTU replacements, roof and flooring replacements, and various other
improvements throughout the District.

Additional information on the District’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 to the basic financial statements.

Debt Administration
The District’s long-term liabilities are as follows for the governmental and business-type activities at June 30,

2020 and 2019:

2020 2019
Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Actlvities Activities

Bonds payable (net) $ 76,333,377 5 80,500,059
Net pension Hability 35,478,393 37,920,580
Obligations under capital lcases 177,792 1,836,245
Lease purchase obligations payable 22,740,000 11,749,787
Compensated absences 3,226,510 & 141,390 3,016,190 § 120,636
Total long-term ligbilities $ 137,956,072 § 141,390 135,022,861 3 120,636

During fiscal year 2020, the District’s governmental-type fong-term liabilities increased by $2,982,166. The
increase is a result of the issuance of new capital lease purchase obligations of $14,600,000, offset by debt
retirements and the reduction in the net pension liability, The District’s credit rating has not recently changed
and is currently at a Aa2 rating. Additional information on the District’s long-term liabilities can be found in
Note 6 to the basic financial statements.

Current Concerns and Factors Bearing on the District’s Future

The East Brunswick Public School District is in excellent financial position. It has maintained a legally
acceptable fund balance position. The District regularly seeks cost-savings and cost containment opportunities,
which accrue to the annual budget in controlling costs. In addition, the District’s Community Programs
Enterprise and the Facilities Rental Enterprise have provided valuable programs and services to the community
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while generating revenue and an annual net income, as well as maintaining a healthy retained earnings balance,
While the COVID-19 Pandemic has severely curtailed revenue-generating opportunities during Fiscal Year
2020 and will similarly impact Fiscal Year 2021, the two enterprises’ retained earnings have provided the
financial wherewithal to sustain these functions through this time, We are confident that the enterprises will
continue as a “going concern,”

During fiscal year 2019-2020, the District engaged Statistical Forecasting, LLC to conduct a comprehensive
analysis of school enrollment projections. The study, completed in July 2019, projects grade-by-grade
enrollments over a five-year period from 2019-2020 through 2023-2024. In addition, the study included the
following;:

e Examination of historical enroliment trends, both districtwide and by grade configuration (PK-3, 6-
7, 8-9, and 10-12);

¢ Investigation of historical enrollment trends with respect to race and poverty status in each school;

s Tabulation of birth counts at the attendance area level;

¢ Computation of student yields by housing type (i.e., detached single family,
townhouse/condominium, and apartment);

s Analysis of new housing starts and the impact on the school district; and,

s Projected enrollments, in a totally independent analysis, based on student yields and housing
turnover rates (resales) in East Brunswick.

The study’s projected year-to-year increases in enrollment will have serious consequences on District facilities
and class sizes. The table below exhibits 2018-2019 actual enrollment and the ensuing enrollment projections.

Fiscal Year | PK-5 | 67 | 89 | 10-12 | PK-12
Actual Enrollment
2018-2019 [3,545 1 1,280 [ 1,279 | 2,080 | 8,184

Baseline Projections
2019-2020 3,660 | 1,343 | 1,244 | 2,055 | 8,302
2020-2021 3,707 | 1,344 | 1,322} 1,999 | 8,372
2021-2022 3,782 | 1,326 | 1,391 | 1,958 | 8,457
2022-2023 3,832 1,347 1,391 | 1,964 | 8,534
2023-2024 3,864 | 1,397 1 1,372 | 2,068 | 8,701
2023-2024
Increase Over 319 117 93 -12 517
2018-2019

Projections Adjusted for Housing Growth
2019-2020 3,682 1,349 1 1,249 | 2,065 | 8,345
2020-2021 3,779 | 1,364 1 1,343 | 2,032 | 8,518
2021-2022 3,885 | 1,352 1,422 | 2,003 | 8,662
2022-2023 3,931 | 1,374 1 1,420 | 2,008 | 8,753
2023-2024 3,962 | 1,427 1 1,399 | 2,114 | 8,902
2023-2024

Increase Over 417 147 120 34 718
2018-2019
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Notwithstanding the de minimis enrollment decrease attributable to the pandemic in 2019-2020, we anticipate
enrollments to adjust and trend with the projected increases post-pandemic. At the elementary school level, the
District enrollment is projected to increase the equivalent of an entire elementary school where facilities are
already strained.

2019-2020
o Early Learning Academy was relocated out of the elementary schools to Hammarskjold Middle
School to make room for elementary regular education and special education programs,
Burgeoning class sizes continue to push on maximum thresholds,
Ever-increasing special needs population requires classrooms that simply do not exist to
accommodate any additional programs necessary to meet the needs of those children,

The District is facing an elementary school crisis insofar as classroom availability is concerned. As of the.
writing of this letter, there are no elementary classrooms available to support expanding earollments or
additional special needs class sections. '

Pre-pandemic, the Board was actively discussing potentiaf resolutions to accommodate a growing enrollment.
However, the COVID-19 crisis has required attention to be focused on keeping students and employees safe
while implementing remote- and hybrid-learning models, This required all planning for temporary classroom
units to be placed on hold, Yet, those plans must now be “jump started” and prioritized.

The Rast Brunswick Public School District’s Child Nutrition Eaterprise Program has experienced numerous
cost-cutting strategies over the last several years. In response to New Jersey Department of Education
requirements, the actions were specifically geared toward eliminating the General Fund budget’s subsidization
of the program, In June 2013 and notwithstanding the steps taken to reduce costs where possible, the Board of
Education authorized an independent evaluation of the program to assist it in identifying options for improving
the program including additional expense-reducing steps, as well as revenue-generating opportunities, to
ensure that students are well served. As a result of the report, the Board engaged the employee bargaining unit
in “impact bargaining” in an effort to arrive at mutual agreement on labor costs and to enable retention of the
affected employees as District employees, Having arrived at agreement with the bargaining unit, the Board
awarded a contract to Aramark K-12 Education (Aramark), a well-established leader in the food service
industry, Aramark’s responsibility is to operate and manage the District’s Child Nutrition Enterprise Program
with the District’s employees while ensuring improved food quality and selection, efficiency, profitability,
through a self-sustaining program. In the subsequent years of the District’s partnership with Aramark, the
improvements compounded in all aspects of operations from food quality to sales to student and parent
satisfaction and, finally, in employee morale. For four straight fiscal years (2016 through 2019), the year-end
financial position has been highly positive, enabling the Board to have declared a salary bonus enjoyed by the
department’s non-managerial employees in recognition of their efforts toward success. Unfortunately, the
impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic upon Fiscal Year 2020 results will not enable the declaration of a salary
bonus,

For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, local property taxes provided 81.76% of the funding to support the
district’s General Fund operations. While the General Fund tax levy (the amount to be raised by taxes)
increases are capped at two percent annually, the actual property tax impact to most property owners is greater,
This has resulted from property valuations that are not reflective of current values. In fact, East Brunswick’s
overall taxable property values are recorded at 24.82% of true value certified by the New Jersey Tax Court on
October 1, 2020. The Township of East Brunswick has suffered many tax appeals where major commercial
property owners have successfully appealed valuations, thus resulting in property tax reductions to those
property owners. The reduction in those property tax assessments merely redistributes the burden to the
remaining property taxpayers in East Brunswick. While East Brunswick residents have been supportive of their
schools and appreciate the quality education that is provided to students, the Township must undergo a property
revaluation if it is to stabilize the impact of property tax increases for all property taxpayers. In addition, a
concetted effort must be put forth to improve the Township’s business and industrial tax base, which will
alleviate the residential property owners tax burden. This effort may currently be in process as the Township
of East Brunswick is pursuing significant tedevelopment plans, which reportedly will include upscale or
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specialty food markets; medium- and high-end restaurants; shuttle bus service; bike paths; a concert venue;
special needs and/or senior housing; universal Wi-Fi; a community use building for recreational purposes; a
hotel; and, residential units. The impact of those plans upon the school district are currently unknown and must
be examined as soon as the residential plans are approved. Certainly, any residential construction will bring
more students into the school district. Therefore, the information is critical to school facilities planning,.

A charter school based in East Brunswick opened its doors at the beginning of the 2010-2011 school year.
Hatikvah International Academy Charter School was approved as a K-5 school to serve up to 50 students per
grade level. In its application in 2012-2013, it proposed increasing its enrollment and expanding grade levels,
as well as extending its charter. The application underwent review by the New Jersey Department of Education
Office of Charter Schools, after which the Commissioner of Education denied the expansion. Since then, the
charter school has annually requested approval to expand grade levels and the number of students per grade.
In fact, the Commissioner of Education granted a portion of the requested expansion for the 2015-2016 school
year. It is unfortunate that this charter school was granted an initial charter several years ago in the suburban
community of East Brunswick having one of the best school districts in this State if not the entire country. The
charter schoo! did not serve any educational need then, and it does not now,

During its eleven years, the charter school’s existence has required the cumulative appropriation of
$24,941,206 from the East Brunswick Public School District budget. This State-mandated diversion of local
financial resources has come with significant and deleterious impacts to the school district beginning with the
elimination of its model elementary world language program in the charter school’s first year. The time has
long passed to argue the merits of whether or not the initiat charter should have been approved. However, the
community should be reminded that the students enrolled in the charter school would receive a superior quality
of education and supports if enrolled in the East Brunswick Public Schools,

East Brunswick’s taxpayers largely provide the financial support for its public schools. For fiscal year 2021,
the local funding share is 81.5% of the District’s fiscal year 2021 General Fund budget. More and more, this
-suburban community’s local funds must be diverted to support a charter school for which there is absolutely
no justifiable educational need.

Requests for Information

This financial repott is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a general
overview of the District’s finances and to show the District’s accountability for the revenue it receives. If you
have questions about this report or need additional information, you may contact Bernardo J. Giuliana, School
Business Administrator/Board Secretary at East Brunswick Public Schools, 760 Route 18, Suite 108, East
Brunswick, NJ 08816,
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Basic Financial Statements




Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements provide a financial overview of the District’s
operations. These financial statements present the financial position and operating results
of all governmental activities and business-type activities as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2020.




East Brunswick Public Schools

Statement of Net Position

A-1

June 30, 2020
Governmental Business-fype
Activities Activities Total

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 27,959,044 3§ 3,304,699 $ 31,263,743
Cash held with fiscal agent 653,257 653,237
Accounts receivable 3,385,921 204,525 3,590,446
Restricted assots:

Cash and cash eguivalents 8,708,674 8,768,674
Capital assets, non-depreciable 30,998,611 30,998,611
Capital assets, depreciable, net 213,239,207 457,057 213,696,264
Total assets 285,004,714 3,966,281 288,970,995
Deferred Qutflows of Resources
Deferred loss on refunding of debt 4,785,387 4,785,387
Pension deferrals 7,245,229 7,245,229
Total deferred outflows of resources 12,030,616 12,030,616
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 297,035,330 3,966,281 301,001,611
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 10,947,006 387,322 11,334,328
Accrued interest payable 806,053 806,053
Accrued Hability for insurance claims 1,604,000 1,604,000
Intergovernmental payable 36,931 36,931
Unearned revenue 99,540 603,285 762,825
Current poriion of long-term obligaiions 11,826,661 12,237 11,838,898
Noncurrent portion of long-term obligations 90,651,018 129,153 90,780,171
Noneurrent liability - Net pension Hability 35,478,393 35,478,393
Total liabilitles 151,449,602 1,191,997 152,641,599
Deferved Inflow of Resources
Pension deferrals 13,743,420 13,743,420
Net Position
Net investment in capital assels 155,044,226 457,057 155,501,283
Restricted for:

Capital Reserve 8,768,674 8,768,674

Excess Surplus 8,700,000 8,700,000

Capital Projects 874,744 874,744
Unrestricted (deficit) (41,545,336) 2,317,227 {39,228,109)

2,774,284  § 134,616,592

Total net position $ 131,842,308 %

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Fund Financial Statements




Governmental Funds




Assels
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable:

State

Federal

Other
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Tolal assets

Liabilittes and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Intergovesnmental payables:
State
Uneamed revenue
Total iabilities

Fund balances:
Restricted for:
Capital reserve
Excess Surplus - currenl year
Excess Surplus - designated for
subsequent year's oxpendituces
Capitat projects
Debt service
Assigned 1o:
Designated for subsequeni years
expenditures
Giher purposes
Unassigned:
General fund
Folal fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balanices

See accompanying notes to baste finaucial statemenls.

B-1

East Brunswick Public Schools
Governmental Funds

Balance Sheet
June 30,2020
Major Funds

Speckad Capliak Belt Totsl
General Revenue Projects Seryice Governenial

Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
$ 16945212 § 67,321 8 1,356,58) % §12462 % 26,085,576
1,781,029 14,817 204,080 2,089,926
840,998 840,996
341,934 341,934
2,768,674 8,768,674
$ 27816849 § 8527134 § 1650661 § 112462 3 38,127,106
$ 3,836,258  § 3580,126 & 315359 $ 7,734,743
730,807 3,036 713,843
36,931 36,93
4131 95,409 99,540
4,574,196 3,715,502 115,359 8,605,057
8,768,674 8,768,674
4,350,000 4,350,000
4,350,000 4,150,000
1,335,302 1,335,302
3 112,462 112,462
963,146 4,811,632 5,774,778
2,471,576 2,471,576
2,359,257 2,158,257
23,262,653 4,831,032 1,335,302 112,462 29,522,049

§ 27836840 & 83527134 § 1650661 _$ 112.462

Amounts reported for govermmental activities in the
statement of nel position (A+1) are diflferent because:;

Capitsl asseis used in govermmental activities ase not

finaricial resources and therefore are nol reported in the

funds. The ¢os! of the assets is $335,691,006 and

{he accumulated depreciation is §91,453,188, 244,237,818

Accrued interest on long-term debt is not due and payable
in the cusrent period and therefore is not reported as &
liability in the funds. (570,610}

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, lease purchase

obligations, capital leases and compensated absences are nol

due and payable in the current period and therefore are not

reported as liabilities in the funds. {102,477,679)

Losses asising from the issvance of refunding bonds that are a

resudt of the differsnce in the carrying value of the refunded

bonds and the new bonds are deferred and amortized over the

lifs of the bonds. 4,787,596

Defersed pension costs in governmental activities ace not financial
resources and arg therefore ned reporied in the funds. (6,498,191}

Accrued pension contributions for the June 30, 2020 plan year end

are not paid with current economic resources and are thereforée not

reperted as a Liability in ibe funds, but ar¢ inciuded in accounts

payable in the governnient-wide statement of net posilion. (2,106,941}

Net pension: liability is not due and payable in the current period
and therefors is not zeporied as a fability in the funds. {35,478,393)

Internal service funds are used by the District to charge the costs of tle
self-insurance program to he individual fund. Ths activities of this fund

are included in the Statement of Activities. 664,311
Net position of governmental activities 5. 132,080,950
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Governmental Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Year ended Juie 30, 2020

Major Funds

Sneeinl Capital Debt Tatal
General Revenue Projeets Service Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
Revenues
Local sources:
Local tax levy 5 129,809,932 $ 6693984 3 136,503,916
Tuition from iswlividuais 59,420 59,420
Tuition from other LEA's 640,474 640,474
Investment income 703,437 5 73,827 ’ 774,264
Miscelianeous 44942 § 195,518 540,460
Total local sources 131,558,265 195518 70,827 6,693,984 138,518,534
State sources 44,549,298 243,616 79,594 44,872 508
Federal sources 131,445 3,045,626 3,177,071
Totnl revenues 176,238,948 3,484,760 70,827 6,773,378 186,568,113
Expendifures
[nstruction:
Regular instruction 45,429,880 776,088 46,205,968

Specinl education instruction 13,214,112 1,798,473 15,012,585

Other special instruction 4,194 618 4,194,618
Support services:
Tuition 2,747,159 2,747,159

Student and instruction related services 17,427,457 829,670 18,257,127

School administration services 4,968,962 4,968,962
Other administrative services 6,315,430 6,315,430
Plamt operations and maintenance 13,739,62C 13,739,620
Pupil transportation 8,149,213 8,149,213

Employee benefits and on-behalf TPAF socinl

security and pension, medical and .

disability contributions 47,712,040 47,712,010
Capitai cusiay 3,864,892 10,939,197 5,923,416 20,727,505
Special schoois 9,143 9,143
Debt Service:

Principal 5,038,453 4,324,787 9,363,240
Interest 263,978 2,358,451 2,622,429
Costs of Issuance 110,849 110,849
Charter schools 3,728,132 2,728,132
Totat expenditures 175,803,059 14,343,428 5923416 0,794,087 202,863,990
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures 435,889 (10,838,668) (5,852,589) (20,509) (16,295,877)
Other financing sources {uses):
Refunding bonds issued 10,355,000 10,355,000
Premius on refunding bonds fssued 1,799,553 1,799,553
Payment 1o refunding bond escrow agent {12,043,704) (12,043,704)
Lease purchase proceeds 14,600,060 14,600,000
TFransfers in 70,827 70,827
Transfers {out) (70,827) (70,827
Total ether financing sources (uses) 70,827 14,600,080 {70,827) 110,849 14,710,849
Net change in fund balances before special item 506,716 3,741,332 (5,923,416) 90,349 {1,585,028)
Special iteny:

Litigation scitlement 160,000 100,000
Net change in fund balances 506,716 3,741,332 {5,823,4106) 90,340 (£,485,028)
Fuid balances, July 1 22,755,937 1,070,300 7,158,718 22,122 31,007,077
Fund balances, June 30 $ 23,262,653 % 4811632 § 1335302 % 112462 $ 29,522,049

The reconciliation of the fund balances of governmental tands to the net position of governmental activities i the statement
of activities is presented in nn nccompanying schedule (B-3).

See accompanying nofes (o basic financlal staiements.




East Brunswick Public Schools
Governmettal Funds

Recongiliation of the Sialement of Revenues, Expendifures
and Changes in Fund Balences to the Statement of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2020
Total nct change in fund balances - governmentsl funds (from B-2)
Amounls reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities {A-2} are different becanse:

Capital oullays are reported in governmenia funds as expenditurs, However, in the statement of
aclivities, the cost of those assels is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital asset additions exceeded depreciation expense and loss on capital
asset disposals in the peried,

Deprecintion Expense
Loss on Capital Asset Disposals
Capital Asset Additions

The issuance of long-term debt for general purpeses provides current financial resourees to governmental
funds, Isowever has no effect on net position,

Lease Purchase Obligaticns

Refunding Bonds Issued

Bonds Refunded

Repayments of bond principal, lease purchase principal and capital lease principal are expenditures in the
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term Habilities in the stalement of net position and is
not reported in the stalement of activities.

Serial Bonds Payable
Lease Purchase Obligations
Obligations Under Capital Leases

Guversunental funds report the effect of premiums md similar items when the delyt is first issued, whereas
the amounis are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities, This amourt is (he net effect of
these differences,

Amortization of Premium on Bonds
Premium on Refunding School Bond Issuance

Governmental funds report the effect of refunding transactions when the debt is first issned, whereas the
amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This represents the current year
amortization related to the deferred oss of refunding,
Amortization of Deferred Loss on Refunding of Debt
Deferred Loss on Current Year Refunding

Interest on long-term debt in the statement of activilies is acerued, regardtess of when dug, Inthe
governmenial fitnds, interest is reported when due,

In the statement of activitios, certain operating expenses, .., compensated absences (vacations) are
measured by the amounts earned during the year. Tn the governmental funds, however, expenditures for
these items are repocted in (he amount of financial resources used (paid). When {he easned amount
exceeds the paid amount, the difference is a reduction in the reconciliation {-); wheu the paid amount
exceeds the carned amount the difference is an addition to the reconcilintion (+},

Cerlain expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Pension expense
The internal service fund is used by {he District o charge the costs of the sellinsurance program to the

individual fund. The assets and liabilities of the internaf service fund are included with governmental
activities.

Change in net position of governmental activities (A-2)

See accompanying notes io basic finaneial statements.

B-3

$ (1,585,028)

$  {7.841,108)

(520)
20,383,183
12,541,553
(14,600,000)
(10,355,000}
11,835,000
(13,120,600}
4,095,000
3,609,787
1,658,453
9,363,240
391,235
(1,799,553}
(1,408,318)
(365,484)
208,704
(156,780}
(169,760)
(210,320)
136,239
(134,395)

5. 3316433
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Proprietary Funds

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2020

Business-Type Activities

Major Enterprise Funds

B-4

Gevernmenial
Activity

Food Communigy Facilities Self-Tisured
Service Pragrams Rentals Total Henlth Benefits
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 946,927 § 1,812,343 3 545424 % 3,304,699 $ 1,873,468
Accounts receivable:
State 2,391 3,391
Federal 114,197 114,197
Other 5,610 8,185 68,142 81,937 113,065
Restricted assels;

Cash held by fiscal agent 053,257
Total current assets 1,075,125 1,820,533 613,566 3,509,224 2,639,790
Noncurrent assels:

Capital assels:

Depreciable:

Equipment 1,191,838 65,993 1,257,831

Accumulated depreciation {165,454) £35,320) (800,774}

Total capilal assets, net 426,384 30,673 457,057
Total assels 1,501,509 1,820,533 644,239 3,966,281 2,639,790
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 172,084 203,453 1,402 376,939 371,479
Accrued salaries payable 5,879 1,276 3,223 10,383
Unearned revemue 217,674 445,611 663,283
Accrued liability - IBNR 1,604,000
Current poriion of compensated absences 9,500 2,737 12,237
Total current liabilities 405,137 653,080 4,627 1,062,844 1,975,479
Noucurrent liabilities:

. Compensated absences 86,339 41,546 1,265 129,153
Total noncurrent liabilities 86,339 41,549 1,265 129,153
Total liabilities 491,476 694,629 5,892 1,191,997 1,975,479
Net Position
Investment in capital assels 426,384 30,673 457,057
Unrestricted 583,649 1,125,904 607,674 2,317,227 664,311
Total net position $ 1,010,033 § 1,125,904 % 638,347  § 2,774,284 & 664,311

See accompanying nofes to basic financial statements. 41




Fast Brunswick Public Schools
Proprietary Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

Year ended June 30, 2020

Business-Type Activities Governmental
Major Enterprise Funds Activity
Food Community Facllilies Self-tusured
Service Programs Rentals Tatal Health Benefits
Operating revenues:
Local sources:
Services provided by other fimds $ 24,383,616
Daily sales reimbursable programs $ 917,371 $ 917,371
Daily sales non-reimbursable programs 680,173 680,173
Rental $ 355,460 355,460
Special functions 84} 841
Registration fees $ 2,409,690 2,409,690
Total operating revenues 1,597,544 2,409,690 356,301 4,363,535 24,383,616
Operatitig expenses:
Salaries 836,497 2,222,549 188,119 3,247,165
Employee benefits 220,003 380,062 19,262 619,327 24,518,011
Purchased professional services 23,849 23,849
Other purchased services 74,685 177,381 5,189 257,258
Supplies and materials 1,684 48,389 10,704 60,777
Regisirations/Training/Travel 1,746 1,746
Depreciation 44,556 6,725 51,281
Other 10,376 10,376
Cost of sales - reimbursable programs 1,081,184 1,081,184
Cost of sales - non-reimbursable programs 387,391 387,391
Miscellaneous 167 52 249
Total operating expenses 2,680,225 2,830,324 230,051 5,740,600 24,518,011
Operating (loss) income (1,082,681) (420,634) 126,250 (1,377,065} (134,39%)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Slate sources:
State school lunch program 22,563 22,563
Federal sources:
School breakfast program 700,697 700,697
Natienal school! lunch program 164,618 164,618
Food donaticn program 158,077 158,077
Interest income 21,735 46,539 12,097 80,371
Loss on disposal of assets, net (8,293) (8,293)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 1,059,397 46,539 12,097 1,118,033
Change in net position (23,284) (374,095} 138,347 (259,032) {134,393)
Total net position-beginuing 1,033,317 {,499,999 500,060 3,033,316 798,706
Total net position-ending $ 1,010,033 $ 1,125904 8 638347 § 2774284 % 664,311

See acconipanying notes fo basic Sfinancial statesients.
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Cash Aows from operating activities

Receipts for services provided to otber fimds
Receipts from cuslomers

Payments to employees

Payments for employee benefits

Payments to suppliers

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities

Cash flows from woncapital financing activity
Casl: received from state and federal sources
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activity

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Purchase of capilal assets

Proceeds on sate of capital assets

Net eash (used in) capital and related financing activities

Cash flows front fsvesting activity
Tisterest received
Net cash provided by investing activity

Net (decrease) ingrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash ang cash equivalents, end of year

Recancifintion of operating (foss) income o
et ensh {used ki) provided by aperating nctivities:
Operating (foss) income
Adjustments to reconcile operating (1oss) income to net cash
(used in) provided by eperating nctivities:
Depreciation
Chauge s assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) In olher accounts receivable
Decrease in deposits/restricted cash
Decrease in inventory
(Decrease) inscrease in accounis payable
(Decrease) increase in aceried expenses
Increase (decrease) in unearmed revenue
Increase in compensated absences
Net cash (used i) provided by operating activities

Noncash noncapital financing activities:

B-6
East Brunswick Public Schools
Proprietary Funds

Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended June 30, 2020

The District received $157,896 of food commodities from the U.S. Department of Agricuiture for the year ended June 30, 2020.

See accompanying notes to basic financial statemenis,

Business-Type Activities Governmental
MMajor Enterprise Funds Actlvity
Food Community Facilities Sel-Insured
Serviee Programs Rentals Tofal Licalibh Benefits
$ 24,383,616
$ 1,663,811 8 2,549,075 § 389,364 % 4,602,250
{857,398) (2,226,543) {219,852) (3,303,793}
{220,003) (330,062) (19,262) (619,327} (24,393,381}
(1,815,901) (168,565) (i71,262) (2,005,728)
(1.233.491) (226,095) 132,988 (1,326,598) {9,765)
1,086,238 1,086,238
1,086,238 1,086,238
(26,907 {26,907
311 3il
(26,596) (26,596
21,735 46,539 12,097 80,371
21,733 4£6,539 12,097 80,371
(152,114) (179,556) 145,085 (186,585) (9,765)
1,009,041 1,991,904 400,339 3,491,284 1,883,233
8 946927 8 1,812,348 8§ 545424 $ 3,304,699 % 1,873,468
5 (1,082,681) & “@20,634) 3 126,250 $ (1,377,065 § (134,395)
44,556 6,725 51,281
4,506 (487) 57,203 61,222 447,041
9,395
18§ 181
(240,913) 50,148 (1,317 (183,082) (456,806)
{21,450) {23,312 (32,559) (77,381} 125,000
61,761 139,872 {24,140) 177,493
549 19,378 826 20,753
s (1,233491) 8 (226,093) S 132988 §  (1,326,598) % (9,765)
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Fiduciary Funds

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

B-7

June 30, 2020
Unemployment
Compensation Agency
Trust Fund Fund
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 866,104 1,264,848
Other accounts receivable 207
Total assets 866,104 1,265,055
Liabilities
Accounts payable 70,316
Payroll deductions payable 685,296
Due to student groups 579,759
Total liabilities 70,316 1,265,055
Net Position
Held in frust for unemployment
claims $ 795,788

See accompanying noles to basic financial statements.
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Fiduciary Fund

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Year ended June 30, 2020

Unemployment
Compensétion
Trust Fund
Additions
Interest income $ 13,663
Board contributions 16,505
Employee contributions 152,235
COVID-19 - Federal contributions 86,669
Total additions 269,072
Deductions
Unemployment payments 272,324
Total deductions 272,324
Change in net position (3,252)
Net position-beginning 799,040
Net position-ending 5 795,788

See accompanying notes to basic financial statenents.



East Brunswick Public Schools
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the East Brunswick Public Schools (the “District”) have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”) as applied to
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles,

A. Reporting Entity

The District is a Type II school district located in the County of Middlesex, State of New Jersey.
As a Type 1I district, the District functions independently through a Board of Education (the
“Board”), The Board is comprised of nine members elected to three-year terms. The purpose of the
District is to educate students in grades K-12.

The financial reporting entity consists of a) the primary government, b) organizations for which the
primary government is financially accountable, and ¢) other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the
reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete,

The definition of the reporting entity is based primarily on the notion of financial accountability, A
primary government is financially accountable for the organizations that make up its legal entity. It is
also financially accountable for legally separate organizations if its officials appoint a voting majority of
an organization’s governing body and either it is able to impose its will on that organization or there is a
potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or to impose specific financial
burdens on, the primary government, A primary government may also be financially accountable for
governmental organizations that are fiscally dependent on it.

The District, as the primary government for financial reporting entity purposes, has control over all
activities related to the East Brunswick Public Schools in East Brunswick Township, New Jersey. The
District receives funding from local, state, and federal government sources and must comply with the
requirements of these funding source entities.

~ The District has no component units that are required to be included within the reporting entity, as set
forth in Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting
Standards.

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the District. For the most part, the
effect of internal activity has been removed from these statements. Interfund services provided and used
are not ecliminated in the process of consolidation. Governmental activities, which normally are
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (confinued)
B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, ot privileges provided by a given function and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
function. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprictary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements, Major
individual governmental funds and major individual proprietary funds are reported as separate columns
in the fund financial statements. The New Jersey Department of Education requires all funds be
reported as major to promote consistency among school districts in the State of New Jersey.,

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for
which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
cutrent period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the cutrent period. For this purpose, the
District considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current
fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences, net pension lability and capital leases, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, interest, and state aid associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal year. All other
revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when the District receives cash.

The District has reported the following major governmental funds:

General Fund: The general fund is the general operating fund of the District and is used to
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
Included are certain expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or non-instructional
equipment, which are classified in the capital outlay sub-fund.
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued)

Special Revenue Fund: The District maintains one special revenue fund, which includes the
proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for
specified purposes, other than debt service or capital projects. The revenue sources are derived
from federal, state and local grant funds and lease purchase obligations and the fund balance
accounts for the activities of these restricted sources,

Capital Projects Fund: The capital projects fund is used to account for and report financial
resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to an expenditure for capital outlays,
including the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and other capital assets
(other than those financed by proprietary funds). The financial resources are derived from
temporary notes or serial bonds and state aid that are specifically authorized by the voters as a
separate question on the ballot either during the annual election or at a special election,

Debt Service Fund: The debt service fund accounts for and reports financial resources that are
restricted, commitied, or assigned to an expenditure for the principal and interest on long-term
general obligation debt of governmental funds.

The District’s Proprietary Fund is comprised of three enterprise fund programs, the Food Service
Fund, the Community Program Fund and the Facilities Rentals Fund and the Self-Insurance Internal
Service Fund. All ate considered major fund programs,

The District reports the following enterprise funds:

Food Service Enterprise Fund. The food service fund accounts for all revenues and expenses
pertaining to cafeteria operations. The food service fund is utilized to account for operations that
are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, The stated intent is
that the cost (i.e., expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of providing goods or services
to the students on a continuing basis are financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Community Programs Enterprise Fund: The community programs fund accounts for financial
activity related to providing child care services for District students before and after school, as well
as, providing adults with lifelong learning opportunities.

Facilities Rentals Enterprise Fund: The facilities rentals fimd accounts for financial activity related
to rental activities at the District owned performing arts center.

The District reports the following internal service fund:

Self-Insured Health Benefits Fund: The self-insurance fund is used to record the activity of the
District’s health insurance expenses.
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued)

Additionally, the District reports the following fund types:

Fiduciary funds of the District include the unemployment compensation trust funds and agency funds.
Agency funds are purely custodial (assets equal liabilities) and thus do not involve measurements of
results of operations. The following is a desctiption of the fiduciary funds of the District.

Trust and Agency Funds: The trust and agency funds are used to account for assets held by the
District on behalf of outside patties, including other governments, or on behalf of other funds
within the District.

Tyust Funds: The unemployment compensation trust fund is accounted for using the accrual basis
of accounting. The unemployment compensation fund is used to account for contributions from
employees and interest earned on the balance as well as payments to the State for reimbursement of
unemployment claims,

Agency Funds (Student Activity, Payroll and Other Agency Fund): Agency Funds are used to
account for the assets that the District holds on behalf of others as their agent. Agency Funds
are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of results of operations.

Amounts reported as program tevenues include 1) charged to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations, The principal operating revenues of
the District enterprise funds are charges for sales of food, registration fees and rentals, Operating
expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales, administrative expenses, and depreciation on
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating
revenues and expenses.

The District reports unearned revenue on its balance sheet and statements of net position, Unearned
revenue arises when resources are received by the District before it has legal claim to them, as when
federal assistance is received prior to the incutrence of qualifying expenditures, In subsequent periods,
when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the District has a legal claim to the resources,
the liability for unearned revenue is removed from the balance sheet and statements of net position and
revenue is recognized.
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
D. Budgets/Budgetary Control

Ad Valorem (Property) taxes are susceptible to accrual as, under New Jersey State Statute, a
municipality is requited to remit to its school district the entire balance of taxes in the amount certified
prior to the end of the school year. The District records the entire approved tax levy as revenue
(accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both measurable and available. The District
is entitled to receive moneys under the established payment schedule and the unpaid amount is
considered to be an “accounts receivable.” The County Board of Taxation is responsible for the
assessment of properties and the Township Tax Collector is responsible for collection of taxes.
Assessments are certified and taxes are levied on January 1; taxes are due February 1, May 1, Auvgust 1
and November 1. Unpaid taxes are considered delinquent the following January 1 and are then subject
to lien,

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general, special revenue and
debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to the Middlesex County office of the DOE for approval.
Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting and the special revenue fund uses a
non-GAAP budget (budgetary basis). The legal level of budgetary control is established at line item
accounts within each fund. Tine item accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail
as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referred in N.JA.C.6A:23.  The
overexpenditure in the general fund is due fo the inclusion of the non- budgeted on behalf’ payments
made by the State of New Jersey as District expenditures. These amounts are offset by related revenues
and as such do not represent budgetary overexpenditures. All budget amendments must be approved by
School Board resolution. Budget amendments were made during the year ended June 30, 2020 and
were not significant.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device
during the year, For governmental funds, there are no substantial differences between the budgetary
basis of accounting and accounting principles generally accepted in the United States with the exception
_ of the legally mandated revenue recognition of the last state aid payments for budgetary purposes only
and the special revenue fund as noted below, Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an
extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund types. Open encumbrances at yeat-
end are reappropriated in the subsequent year’s budget. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal
year-end, The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting
budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting
budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues,
whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the
presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements {(continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

E. Interfund Receivables/Payables

Interfund receivables/payables represent amounts that are owed, other than charges for goods or services
rendered to/from a particular fund in the District and that are due within one yeat.

F. Inventories

Inventories, which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the enterprise fund, are recorded
as an expenditure during the year of purchase. Enterprise fund inventories are valued at cost, which
approximates market, using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. At June 30, 2020, the District did not
have any inventories in the Enterprise Funds,

G. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, construction in progress, property, plant and equipment, are reported
in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual cost of more
than $2,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical
cost or through estimation procedures performed by an independent appraisal company. Donated
capital assets, donated works of art and similar items, and capital assets received are reported at
acquisition value on the date of acquisition. The costs of normal repairs and maintenance that do not
add to the value of the asset or materially extend the assets lives are not capitalized.

Propetty, plant and equipment of the District is depreciated using the straight line method, The
following estimated useful lives are used to compute depreciation:

Years
Buildings and Improvements 20-50
Furniture and Equipment 7-20
Vehicles 8

H, Compensated Absences

A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services already rendered and that are not
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and employee is accrued as
employees earn the rights to the benefits, The District uses the “vesting method” for estimating its
accrued sick and vacation leave liability. District employees are granted vacation and sick leave in
varying amounts under the District’s personnel policies.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the District is recorded in the government-wide

financial statements and includes salary related payments, The liability for vested compensated absences
of the proprietary fund types is recorded within those funds as the benefits accrue to employees.
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

As of June 30, 2020, a liability existed for compensated absences in the government-wide financial
statements in the amount of $3,226,510 and a liability in the proprietary fund types in the amount of
$141,390. '

1. Unearned Revenue

Uneatned revenue in the general fund, food service enterprise fund, and community program enterprise
fund represent fees received in advance for services to be provided. Unearned revenue in the special
revenue fund represents cash received from federal, state and local sources, which have been received
but not yet earned and outstanding encumbrances.

J. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position.
Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-
line method which approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the
applicable bond premium or discount.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts
during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts
on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.

K. Deferred Loss on Refunding of Debt

Deferred loss on refunding arising from the issuance of refunding bonds is recorded as a deferred
outflow of resources. It is amortized in a systematic and rational manner over the duration of the related
debt as a component of interest expense. As of June 30, 2020, the District has recorded an unamortized
balance of $4,785,387 as a deferred outflow of resources and the amortization expense for the year
ended June 30, 2020 was $365,484.

L. Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, deferred
inflows of resources and liabilities in the Government-wide financial statements, Net investment in
capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balance of any long-term debt used to build or acquire the capital assets. Net positions are reported
as restricted in the Government-wide and fund financial statements when there are limitations
imposed on their use through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or
regulations of other governments,
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
M. Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes repott a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred oulflows of resources,
yepresents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will ot be recognized
as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The District has two items that qualify for
reporting in this category, including deferred amounts from the unamortized loss on refunding of debt
and deferred amounts related to pensions, In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to future
periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District
has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred amounts related to pensions.

N. Fund Balances

GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions
(“GASB 54”) established fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on
the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the
resources reported in governmental funds, Under GASB 54, fund balances in the governmental
funds financial statements are reported under the modified accrual basis of accounting and classified
into the following five categories, as defined below:

1) Nonspendable — includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in
spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Assets
included in this fund balance category include prepaid assets, inventories, long-term
receivables, and corpus of any permanent funds.

2) Restricted - includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by
constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legislation.

3} Committed - includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes imposed by a
formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-making authority. The District’s
highest level of decision-making authority is the Board of Education (the “Board”) and
formal action is taken by resolution of the Board at publicly held meetings. Once
committed, amounts cannot be used for other purposes unless the Board revises or changes
the specified use by taking the same action (resolution) taken (o originally commit these
funds.

4) Assigned — amounts intended to be used by the government for specific purposes but do not
meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Interest is expressed by either
the Board or Business Administrator, to whom the Board has delegated the authority to
assign amounts to be used for specific purposes, including the encumbering of funds,
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
N. Fund Balances (continued)

5) Unassigned - includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications in the
general fund, This classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other
funds and that has not been restricted, committed or assigned to specific purposes within the
general fund, The general fund is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned find
balance amount. In the other governmental funds, if expenditures incurred for specific
purposes exceed the amounts restricted, committed or assigned to those purposes, it may be
necessaty to report a negative unassigned fund balance.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then untestricted resources as they are needed. For the unrestricted fund
balance, the District first spends committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally, unassigned
funds.

Of the $23,262,653 of fund balances in the General Fund, $2,471,576 of outstanding encumbrances has
been assigned to other putposes, $963,146 has been assigned as designated for subsequent year’s
expenditures, $8,768,674 has been restricted for capital reserve, $4,350,000 has been restricted for
excess surplus — current year, $4,350,000 has been restricted for excess surplus — designated for
subsequent years expenditures and $2,359,257 is classified as unassigned,

All of the $4,811,632 special revenue fund balance at June 30, 2020, is assigned as designated for
subsequent years expenditures. :

The $1,335,302 Capital Projects fund balance at June 30, 2020 is restricted for capital projects. The
Distitct has contractual commitments in the amount of $482,090 at June 30, 2020 to vendors related to
ongoing construction projects that is reported as pait of the restricted capital projects fund balance.

All of the $112,462 Debt Service fund balance at June 30, 2020, is restricted for debt service aid.
0. Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

P. On-Behalf Payments

Revenues and expenditures of the general fund include payments made by the State of New Jersey
social security and post-retirement medical pension contributions for certified teachers and other
members of the New Jersey Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund. Additionally, revenues and expenses
related to on-behalf pension contributions in the government-wide financial statements have been
increased by $8,477,718 to adjust for the full accrual basis expense incurred by the State of New Jersey
during the most recent measurement period. The amounts are not required to be included in the
District’s annual budget.

Q. Calculation of Excess Surplus

The designation for restricted fund balance -- excess surplus is a required calculation pursuant to
N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, as amended. New Jersey school districts are required to reserve General Fund fund
balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as
budgeted fund balance in their subsequent years’ budget. The excess fund balance at June 30, 2020
was $8,700,000. Of this amount, $4,350,000 has been appropriated in the 2020/21 budget and the
remaining $4,350,000 is required to be appropriated in the 2021/22 budget.

R. GASB Pronouncements
Recently Issued Accounting Principles

The GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities in January 2017. This Statement
establishes standards of accounting and financial reporting for fiduciary activities, The
requirements of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Due to
the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by one year. Management has not
determined the impact of the Statement on the financial statements.

The GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases in June 2017. This Statement establishes standards of
accounting and financial reporting for leases by lessees and lessors, The requirements of this
Statement are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Due to the COVID-19
pandemic, the effective date has been postponed until fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2021. Management has not determined the impact of the Statement on the financial statements.

The GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a
Consiruction Period in June 2018, This Statement establishes accounting requirements for interest
cost incurred before the end of a construction period, The requirements of this Statement are
effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2019, Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the
effective date has been postponed by one year. Management has not determined the impact of the
Statement on the financial statements.
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The GASB issued Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests — an Amendment of GASB
Statements No. 14 and No. 61 in August 2018, This Statement modifies previous guidance for
reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization. This Statement
also provides guidance for reporting a component unit if a government acquires a 100 percent
equity interest in that component unit, The requirements of this Statement are effective for periods
beginning after December 15, 2018, Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been
postponed by one year. Management has determined that this Statement did not impact the
District’s financial statements,

The GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations in May 2019, This Statement
establishes a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers to eliminate diversity in
practice. The requirements of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after December 15,
2020, Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been posiponed by ome
year, Management has not determined the impact of the Statement on the financial statements.

S. Subsequent Events

Management has reviewed and evaluated all events and transactions from June 30, 2020 through
February 4, 2021, the date that the financial statements were available for issuance and the effects
of those that provide additional pertinent information about conditions that existed at the balance
sheet date, have been recognized in the accompanying financial statements.

As of June 30, 2020, District operations and the ways in which education is provided have been
disrupted by the outbreak of the novel coronavirus COVID-19, Going forward, COVID-19 could
further limit the District’s operations, including unexpected deferrals of tax payments from the
municipality, deferrals or reductions in state aid or an increase in expenses associated with this or
any other potential infectious disease outbreak. District management cannot reasonably predict how
long the Pandemic in New Jersey is expected to last and how the outbreak may impact the financial
condition or operations of the District. District management continues to monitor the Pandemic and
plans to take action to address any significant impact on future operations.

2. Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the
Government-Wide Statement of Net Position

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance — total
governmental funds and net position — governmental activities as reported in the Government-wide
statement of net position. One element of that reconciliation explains that long-term liabilities,
including bonds payable and related unamortized premiums, capifal leases and compensated
absences, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.
The details of this $102,477,679 difference are as follows:
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2. Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (continued)

Bonds payabie $ 70,140,000
Unamortized premium on bonds 6,193,377
Capital lease obligations 177,792
Lease purchase obligations 22,740,000
Compensated absences 3,226,510
Net adjustment to reduce fund balance-total governmental

funds {o arrive at net position - governmental activities $ 102,477,679

3. Deposits and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, amounts on deposit and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Deposits

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institutions
they may invest in. New Jersey statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible investments that may
be purchased by New Jersey school districts. N.J.S.A. 17:9-41 et. seq. establishes the requirements for
the security of deposits of governmental units. The statute requires that no governmental unit shall
deposit public funds in a public depository unless such funds arc secured in accordance with the Act.
Public depositories include savings and loan institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and
savings banks, the deposits of which are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge
collateral, having a market value at least equal to five percent of the average daily balance of collected
public funds, to secure the deposits of governmental units. If a public depository fails, the collateral it
has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public depositorics, is available to pay the full amount of
their deposits to the governmental units,

New Jetsey statutes require that school districts deposit public funds in public depositories located in
New Jersey that are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Federal Savings and
Loan Insurance Corporation, or by any other agency of the United States that insures deposits made in
public depositories.

New Jersey statutes require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of public funds that
exceed depository insurance limits as follows:

The market value of the collateral must equal at least 5% of the average daily balance of collected
public funds on deposit.

In addition to the above collateral requirement, if the public funds deposited exceed 75% of the capital

funds of the depository, the depository must provide collateral having a market value at least equal to
100% of the amount exceeding 75%.
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3. Deposits and Investments (continued)

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, the Federal Reserve Bank
of Philadelphia, the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, or a banking institution that is a member of
the Federal Reserve System and has capital funds of not less than $25,000,000.

Operating cash accounts are held in the District’s name by several conmercial banking institutions.
At June 30, 2020, the carrying amount of the District’s deposits was $42,163,369 and the bank
balance was $43,610,877. Of the bank balance, $250,000 of the District’s cash deposits on June 30,
2020 was secured by federal depository insurance, The New Jersey Governmental Unit Deposit
Protection Act (GUDPA) covered the bank balance of $42,460,338. $900,538 held in the District
agency accounts are not covered by GUDPA, The District also has $653,257 of cash held by fiscal
agents on its behalf which is not covered by the FDIC or GUDPA.

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures (“GASB 407), the
District’s operating cash accounts are profiled in order to determine exposure, if any, to Custodial Credit
Risk (risk that in the event of failure of the counterpaity the District would not be able to recover the
value of its deposits and investments). Deposits are considered to be exposed to Custodial Credit Risk if
they are: uncollateralized (securities not pledged to the depositor), collateralized with securities held by
the pledging financial institution, or collateralized with securities held by the financial institution’s trust
department or agent but not in the government’s name.

The District does not have a policy for the management of custodial credit risk, other than depositing all
of its funds in banks covered by GUDPA. At least five percent of the District’s deposits were fully
collateralized by funds held by the financial institution, but not in the name of the District. Due to the
nature of GUDPA, further information is not available regarding the full amount that is collateralized.

Investments
New Jersey statutes permit the Board to purchase the following types of securities:

a. Bonds and other obligations of the United States or obligations guaranteed by the United States,

b. Bonds of any Federal Intermediate Credit Bank, Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal National
Mottgage Agency or of any United States Bank, which have a maturity date not greater than
twelve months from the date of purchase.

¢.  New Jersey Cash Management Fund and New Jersey Asset and Rebate Management Fund.

Custodial Credit Risk: The District does not have a policy for custodial credit risk other than to
maintain a safekeeping account for the securities at a financial institution.

Credit Risk: The District does not have an investment policy regarding the management of credit risk.
GASB 40 requires that disclosure be made as to the credit rating of all debt security investments except
for obligations of the U.S, government or investments guaranteed by the U.S. government. The District
did not have any funds invested in debt securities.
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Concentration of Credit Risk: The District places no limit on the amount the District may invest in any
one issuer. At June 30, 2020, the District had no investments,

Interest Rate Risk: The District does not have a policy to limit interest rate risk,  The District did not
have any funds held as investments during the year ended June 30, 2020,

The District did not have any funds held as investments during or at the year ended June 30, 2020.

4, Capital Reserve Account

A capital reserve account was established by the Board by inclusion of $410,363 in the 1996-1997
capital outlay budget for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in
subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its
activity is included in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account ate restricted to capital projects in the District’s
approved Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP), Upon submission of the LRFP to the Department, a
district may increase the balance in the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general
fund budget certified for taxes or by transfer by board resolution at year end (July 1 to June 30) of
any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation amounts, or both, A district may
also appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained
either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of the four special
elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to NJA.C. 6A:23A-14.1(g), the
balance in the account cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital
projects in its approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve for the period July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1,2019 $ 8,691,140
Increases:
Interest earnings 107,119
Board approved deposit - June 2020 resolution 2,417,48%
Return of unexpended capital outlay 594,360
Subtotal 11,810,108
Decreases:
Board approved withdrawals — various dates (3,041,434)
Ending balance, June 30, 2020 $ 8,768,674

The June 30, 2020 LRFP balance of local support costs of uncompleted capital projects exceeded the
June 30, 2020 capital reserve balance. The withdrawals from the capital reserve were for Department of
Education approved facilities projects.
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5. Capital Assets

The District capitalizes all assets with an acquisition cost greater than $2,000. The following schedule is
a summarization of the changes in capital assets by source for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Transfers Bafance

Governmenial Activities:
Capital Assets, not being Depreciated:

Land 3 1,019,208 $ 1,019,208

Construction in Progress 18,542,256  § 19461454 $ (8,024,301 29,979403
Total Capilal Assets not being Depreciated 19,561,464 19,461,454 (8,024,307 30,998,611
Capital Assels, being Depreciated;

Buiiding and Improvements 279,864,449 38,636 5,953,015 285,856,100

Machinery and Equipment 15,899,604 883,093  § (17,694% 2,071,292 18,836,295
Tota} Capital Assets, being Depreciated 293,764,053 921,728 (17,6943 8,024,307 304,692,393
Less Accumutated Depreciation:

Building and Improvements (75,318,130} (6,570,563} (81,888,693)

Machinery and Equipment (8,311,124) (1,270,545) 17,174 {5,564.493)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (83,629,254} {7,841,108) 17,174 (91,453,188)
Total Capital Assets, being Depreciated, Net 212,134,799 (6,919,379 (520} 8,024,307 213,239,207
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net £ 231,696,260 § 12,542,075 & (5200 % - $ 244,217.818
Business-Type Activities:
Total Capita! Assets, being Depreciated:

Buiiding and building improvements $ 708,560 $ 760,560

Machinery and Equipment 548,070 26907 % (17,706} 357,271
Total Capital Assets, being Depreciated 1,248,630 26,907 (17,706) £,257,831
Less Accumulated Depreeiation:

Building and Improvemens (460,741) (15,110} (475,851)

Machinery and Equipment {297,855) (36,171) 9,103 (324,923)
Total Accurnulated Depreciation (758,596) (51,281) 9,103 (800,774
Total Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 490,04 § (24,37) % (3,603) % 3 457,057

Total depreciation expense for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 for governmental activities was
$7,841,108 and for business-type activities was $51,281. Depreciation for governmental activities

was charged as follows in the Statement of Activities:

Regular instruction

Special education instruction

Other instruction

Student and instruction related services
School administration services

General and other administration services
Plant operation and maintenance

Puptl transportation

Total depreciation expense — governmental activities

3,100,781
1,007,461
281,491
1,225,195
333,456
423,814
922,035
546,875

7,841,108
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6. Long-Term Liabilities

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the following changes occurred in long-term
liabilities:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental Activities: .
Serial bonds payable $ 75,715,000 $10,355000 $15930,000 § 70,140,000 § 4,740,000
Unamortized premiun on bonds 4,785,059 1,799,553 391,235 6,193,377 447346
Obligations under capital leases 1,836,245 1,658,453 177,792 177,792
Lease purchase obligation payable 11,749,787 14,600,000 3,609,787 22,740,000 6,300,000
Compensated absences payable 3,016,190 324,807 114,487 3,226,510 161,523
Sub-total 97,102,281 27,079,360 21,703,962 102,477,679 11,826,001
Net pension liability 37,920,580 2,442,187 35,478,393
"Total governmental activities
long-term liabilities $135,022,861 $27,079,360  $24,146,149 §$ 137,956,072 $ 11,820,061

Business-Type Activities:
Compensated absences payable $ 120,636 § 28,283 & 7,529 % 141,390 % 12,237

Total Business-Type activities
long-term liabilities . $ 120,636 § 287283 § 7,529 % 141,390 § 12,237

The District expects to liquidate the obligations under capital leases, bonds related to the ESIP, and
the net pension liability with payments made from the District’s general fund and the bonds payable
and governmental activities lease purchase obligations payable from the debt service fund. The
District expects to liquidate the compensated absences payable with payments made from the
general fund, the food service enterprise fund, the community program enterprise fund and the
facilities rentals enterprise fund.

A. Bonds Pavable

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law or by the voters of the municipality through
referendums.  All bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of
usefulness, Bonds issued by the District are general obligation bonds,

2010 Issue

On May 12, 2010, the District issued $13,960,000 School Bonds. In February 2020, the District
refunded the remaining balance of $11,835,000 with the issuance of the 2020 refunding school
bonds.

On September 29, 2009, the District's voters approved the issuance of $17,956,480 in bonds for
the Memorial Schoo! replacement. At June 30, 2020, there were bonds authorized but not

issued of $3,996,480 from a 2009 authorization.
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A. Bonds Pavable (continued)

2012 Issue

On November 20, 2012, the District issued $60,560,000 Refunding School Bonds. The
remaining outstanding Bonds mature annually through November 2034 in amounts ranging
from $3,020,000 to $6,755,000, The Bonds bear interest rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.00%. As
of June 30, 2020, the amount of defeased bonds still outstanding is $48,761,000.

The Bonds maturing prior to November 1, 2023 are not subject to redemption prior to their
stated maturities. The Bonds maturing on or after November 1, 2023 are redeemable at the
aption of the Board in whole or in part, on any date on or after November 1, 2022 at par, plus
unpaid accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption.

2017 Issue

On February 28, 2017, the District issued $5,515,600 Refunding School Bonds at an interest
rate of 1.722% to advance refund $5,365,000 of 2007 School Bonds. As of June 30, 2020, the
amount of defeased bonds still outstanding is $2,120,000. The 2017 Refunding School Bonds
mature in amounts ranging from $1,020,000 to $1,055,000 through May 2022.

2019 Issue

On February 6, 2019, the District issued School Energy Savings Improvement Program
Refunding Bonds in the amount of $8,135,000 to finance energy conservation measures
pursuant to an Energy Savings Improvement Plan (“ESIP”) at interest rates ranging from 4.00%
to 5.00%, due in annual instaliments ranging from $355,000 to $805,000 through August 1,
2034,

2020 Issue

On February 25, 2020, the District issued $10,3 55,000 Refunding School Bonds at interest rates
ranging from 3.00% to 5.00% to advance refund $11,835,000 of 2010 School Bonds. As of
June 30, 2020, the amount of defeased bonds outstanding is $11,835,000, The savings from the
refunding was $3,031,632 with a net present value savings of $2,554,504. The 2020 Refunding
School Bonds mature in amounts ranging from $310,000 to $755,000 through May 15, 2040.
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Principal and interest due on serial bonds outstanding is as follows:

Year ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2021 $ 4,740,000 $ 2,610,228 § 7,350,228
2022 4,780,000 2,409,470 7,189,470
2023 3,845,000 2,205,531 6,050,531
2024 3,930,000 2,014,856 5,944,856
2025 3,960,000 1,852,706 5,812,706
2026-2030 21,495,000 6,975,906 28,470,906
2031-2035 23,865,000 2,861,303 26,726,303
2036-2040 3,525,000 331,150 3,856,150

$ 70,140,000 $ 21,261,150 $ 91,401,150

B. Lease Purchase Obligations Pavable

1999 Agreément

In March 1999, the Board of Education (the Lessee) entered into a lease purchase agreement
with the Township of East Brunswick (the Lessor) to finance additions and renovations to the
Fast Brunswick High School, including site work and acquisition and installation of furnishings
and equipment. Approval was obtained from the Commissioner of Education and the State of
New Jersey Local Finance Board. The building is located on tand owned by the Board of
Education that has been leased to the Township of East Brunswick, pursuant to a ground lease
agreement dated March 1, 1999

Under the lease, the Board made its final payment on October 1, 2019.
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B. Lease Purchase Obligations Payable (continued)

2015 Agreement

In May 2015, the Board of Education (the Lessee) entered into a lease purchase agreement with
the Township of East Brunswick (the Lessor) to finance district-wide building improvements
and renovations. Approval was obtained from the Commissioner of Education and the State of
New Jersey Local Finance Board. The building is tocated on land owned by the Board of
Education that has been leased to the Township of East Brunswick, pursuant to a ground lease
agreement dated May 18, 2015.

Under the lease, the Board is required to pay basic rent due on each August 1, which
coneludes on August 1, 2020. The lease carries an interest rate of 1,35%. The total principal
amount of the lease was $5,800,000.

Future Minimum Lease Paymenis — The final payment under the lease purchase agrecment
along with the present value of the minimum lease payment as of June 30, 2020 is:

Year Ending June 30, Amount

2021 $ 1,175,660

Less: Amount representing interest (15,660)

Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments $ 1,160,000
2016 Agreement

Tn August 2016, the Board of Education (the Lessee) entered into a lease purchase agreement
with the Township of East Brunswick (the Lessor) to finance district-wide building
improvements, technology equipment, classroom furnishings and transportation and
maintenance vehicles. In exchange, the Board of Education will permit use of its facilities for
and by the Township of East Brunswick as specified in the agreement, Approval was obtained
rom the Commissioner of Education and the State of New Jersey Local Finance Board,

Under the lease, the Board is required to pay basic rent due on each August 1, which concludes
on August 1, 2021, The lease carries an interest rate of 1.35%. The total principal amount of
the lease was $6,200,000.
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B. Lease Purchase Obligations Payable (continued)

Future Minimum Lease Payments - Future minimum lease payments for the next two years
under the lease purchase agreement along with the present value of the minimum lease
payments as of June 30, 2020 are:

Year Ending June 30, Amount

2021 $ 862,680
2022 840,000
Total Minimum Lease Payments 1,702,680
Less: Amount representing interest (22,680)
Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments $ 1,680,000

2017 Agreement

Tn September 2017, the Board of Education (the Lessee) entered into a lease purchase agreement
with the Township of East Brunswick (the Lessor) to finance district-wide building
improvements, technology equipment, classroom furnishings and transportation and
maintenance vehicles, In exchange, the Board of Education will permit use of its facilities for
and by the Township of East Brunswick as specified in the agreement. Approval was obtained
from the Commissioner of Education and the State of New Jersey Local Finance Board.

Under the lease, the Board is required to pay basic rent due on each October 1, through October
1,2022. The lease carries an interest rate of 1.20%. The total principal amount of the lease was
$1,100,000.

Future Minimum Lease Payments - Future minimum lease payments for the next three years
under the lease purchase agreement along with the present value of the minimum lease
payments as of June 30, 2020 are:
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B. Lease Purchase Obligations Payable ( continued)

Year Ending June 30, Amount

2021 $ 223,960
2022 223,960
2023 - 220,000
Total Minimum Lease Payments 667,920
Less: Amount representing interest (7,920)
Present Value of Net Minimum L.ease Payments $ 660,000

2018 Agreement

In May 2018, the Board of Education (the Lessee) entered into a lease purchase agreement with
the Township of East Brunswick (the Lessor) to finance district-wide building improvements,
technology equipment, classtoom furnishings and fransportation and maintenance vehicles. In
exchange, the Board of Education will permit use of its facilities for and by the Township of
East Brunswick as specified in the agreement. Approval was obtained from the Commissioner
of Education and the State of New Jetsey Local Finance Board,

Under the lease, the Board is required to pay basic rent due on each July 1, through July 1, 2023.
The lease catries an interest rate of 1.35%. The total principal amount of the lease was
$5,800,000. '

Future Minimum Lease Payments - Future minimum lease payments for the next three years
under the lease purchase agreement along with the present value of the minimum lease
payments as of June 30, 2020 are:

Year Ending June 30, Amount

2021 $ 1,222,640
2022 1,160,000
2023 1,160,000
Total Minimum Lease Payments 4,702,640
Less: Amount representing interest (62,640)
Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments $ 4,640,000
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B. Lease Purchase Obligations Payable (continued)

2019 Agreement

In July 2019, the Board of Education (the Lessee) entered into a lease purchase agreement with
the Township of East Brunswick (the Lessor) to finance District-wide building improvements,
technology equipment, classtoom furnishings and transportation and maintenance vehicles. In
exchange, the Board of Education will permit use of its facilities for and by the Township of
East Brunswick as specified in the agreement. Approval was obtained from the Commissioner
of Education and the State of New Jersey Local Finance Board.

Under the lease, the Board is required to pay basic rent due on each July 1, which commences
on July 1, 2020 and will conclude on Juty 1, 2024 The lease carries an interest rate of 1.200%.
The total principal amount of the lease was $14,600,000.

Future Minimum Lease Payments - Future minimum lease payments for the next five years
under the lease purchase agreement along with the present value of the minimum lease
payments as of June 30, 2020 are:

Year Ending June 30, Amount

2021 $ 3,095,200
2022 2,920,000
2023 2,920,000
2024 2,920,000
2025 2,920,000
Total Minimum Lease Payments 14,775,200
Iess: Amount representing interest (175,200)
Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments $ 14,600,000

C. Capital Lease Obligations — Governmental Activities

The District entered into a Capital Lease on July 15, 2014 for facilities in the amount of
$7,200,000, The final payment was made on July 15, 2019,

The District entered into a Capital Lease on August 1, 2015 for transportation equipment in the

amount of $860,000, The final payment in the amount of $180,786, which includes $2,994 of
interest, is due on August 1, 2020, Interest rate is at 1.671%.
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Description of Systems

Substantially all of the Board’s employees participate in one of the following contributory defined
benefit public employee retirement systems which have been established by State statute: the Teachers’
Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) or the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS). These
systems are sponsored and administered by the State of New Jersey. The Teachers’ Pension and
Annuity Fund Retirement System is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan, with a special
funding situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the State of New
Jetsey on behalf of the Board and the system’s other related non-coniributing employers. The Public
Employees’ Retitement System is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan.

Teachers® Pension and Annuity Fund

The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund was established in January 1955 under the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all full
time public school employees in the State. Membership is mandatory for such employees and
vesting occurs after 10 years of service for pension benefits and 2.5 years for health care coverage.
Age eligibility and benefit provisions were affected by Chapters 92 and 103, P.L. 2007, Chapter 89, P.L.
2008, Chapter 1, P.L. 2010, and Chapter 78, P.L, 2011. Members are classified into one of five tiers
dependent upon the date of their enrollment. Tier 1,2 and 3 members are eligible to retire at age 60, 60,
and 62, respectively, with an annual benefit generally determined to be 1/55" of the average annual
compensation for the highest three fiscal years’ compensation for each year of membership during years
of credited service. Tier 4 and 5 members are eligible to retire at age 62 and 65, respectively, with an
annual benefit generally determined to be 1/60" of the average annual compensation for the highest five
fiscal years’ compensation for each year of membership during years of credited service. Anyone who
retires early and is under their respective tier’s retirement age receives retirement benefits as calculated
in the above mentioned formulas but at a reduced rate in accordance with applicable New Jersey Statute
based upon their tier.

Public Employees’ Retirement System

The Public Employees’® Retirement System was established in January 1955 under the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all full
time employees of the State or any county, municipality, school Board or public agency provided
the employee is not a member of another State-administered retirement system, Age eligibility and
benefit provisions were affected by Chapters 92 and 103, P.L. 2007, Chapter 89, P.L.. 2008, Chapter 1,
P.L. 2010, and Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, Members are classified into one of five tiers dependent upon the
date of their enrollment, Tier 1, 2 and 3 membets are eligible to retire at age 60, 60, and 62, respectively
with an annual benefit generally determined to be 1/55™ of the average annual compensation for the
highest three fiscal years’ compensation for each year of membership during years of credited service.
Tier 4 and 5 members are eligible to retire at age 62 and 65, respectively with an annual benefit
generally determined to be 1/60" of the average annual compensation for the highest five fiscal years’
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compensation for each year of membership during years of credited service. Anyone who retires early
and is under their respective tier’s retitement age receives retirement benefits as calculated in the above
mentioned formulas but at a reduced rate in accordance with applicable New Jersey Statute based upon
their tier.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issued
publicly available financial reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary
information for TPAF and PERS. The financial reports may be obtained by writing to the State of
New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, P.O, Box 295, Trenton,
New Jersey 08625-0295.

Funding Policy

The contribution policy is set by New Jetsey State Statutes and contributions are required by active
members and contributing members. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by
State of New Jersey legislation. Under the provisions of Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, employee contribution
rates for TPAF and PERS are 7.5%. Bmployers are required to contribute at an actuarially
determined rate in both the TPAF and PERS. The actuarially determined contribution includes
funding for noncontributory death benefits and post-retirement medical premiums, Under current
statute the District is a non-contributing employer of the TPAF.

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the State of New Jersey contributed $18,331,487 to the TPAK for
post-retirement medical benefits and other pension costs on behalf of the Board., Also, in accordance
with N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the Board $4,729,734 during the year
ended June 30, 2020 for the employer’s share of social security contributions for TPAF members as
caloulated on their base salaries. These amounts have been included in the government-wide and fund
financial statements.

The Board’s actuarially determined contributions to PERS for each of the years ended June 30, 2020,
2019 and 2018 was $1,925,028, $1,925,704, and $1,797,767, respectively, equal fo the required
contributions for each yeat.

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of
PERS and additions to/deductions from PERS fiduciaty net position have been determined on the same
basis as they are reported by PERS. For the purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms, Investments
ate reported at fair value.
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

Public Emplovee’s Retirement System (PERS)

At June 30, 2020, the District reported a liability of $35,478,393 for its proportionate share of the
net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation
July 1, 2018, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2019. The District’s proportion of the net
pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the
pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating school districts, actuarially
determined. At June 30, 2019, the District’s proportion was 0.1968999996 percent, which was an
increase of 0.0043071096 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2018.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized full accrual pension expense of
$1,788,789 in the government-wide financial statements. At June 30, 2020, the District reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to PERS from the
following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources  of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 636,791 § 156,728
Changes of assumptions ' 3,542,648 12,314,438
Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments 560,040
Changes in proportion and differences between

District confributions and proportionate share of

contributions 958,849 712,214
District contributions subsequent to the

tneasurement date 2,106,941

$ 7,245229 $ 13,743,420

$2.106,941 is reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from schootl
district contributions subsequent to the measurement date. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Year ended June 30:

2021 $  (945,658)
2022 (3,397,798)
2023 (2,905,815)
2024 (1,247,802)
2025 (108,059)

$ (8,605,132)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2019 measurement date was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of July 1, 2018, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2019, This actuarial valuation
used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation rate:
Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%

Salary increases:

Through 2026 2.00 - 6,00%
based on years of service
Thereafter 3.00 - 7.00%

based on years of service
Investment rate of return 7.00%

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2018. It is likely that future
experience will not exactly conform to these assumptions. To the extent that actual experience
deviates from these assumptions, the emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than anticipated.
The more the experience deviates, the larger the impact on future financial statements,

Mortality Rates

Pre-retirement morality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income
Employee mortality table with an 82.2% adjustment for males and 101.4% adjustment for females,
and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis, Post-retirement
mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Healthy Retiree
mortality table with a 91.4% adjustment for males and 99.7% adjustment for females, and with
future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability retirement rates

71




East Brunswick Public Schools
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

7. Pension Plans (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension’ Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

used to value disabled retirees were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retirec mortality
table with a 127.7% adjustment for males and 117.2% adjustment for females, and with future
improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis, Mortality improvement is based
on Scale MP-2019.

Long-Term Rate of Refurn

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00%
at June 30, 2019) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the
Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of {rustees and the
actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expecting future real
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best
estimates of arithmetic rates of return for each major asset class included in PERS’s target asset
allocation as of June 30, 2019 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected
Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
Risk mitigation strategies 3.00% 4.67%
Cash equivalents 5.00% 2.00%
U.S, Treasuries 5.00% 2.68%
Investment grade credit 10.00% 4.25%
High yield 2.00% 537%
Private credit 6.00% 7.92%
Real assets 2.50% 9.31%
Real estate 7.50% 8.33%
U. 8. Equity 28.00% 8.26%
Non-U.S. developed markets equity 12.50% 9,00%
Emerging markets equity 6.50% 11.37%
Private equity 12.00% 10.85%
100.00%
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.28% as of June 30, 2019 and
5.66% as of June 30, 2018. This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.00%, and a municipal bond rate of 3.50% as of June
30, 2019 based on the Bond Buyer GO 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt
general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will
be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be
made based on the contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year. The State employer contributed
70% of the actuarially determined contributions and the local employers contributed 100% of their
actuarially determined contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members
through June 30, 2057. Therefore, the long-term expected rated of return on plan investments was
applied to projected benefit payments through June 30, 2057 and the municipal bond rate was
applied to projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the nel pension liability to changes in fhe
discount rafe

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the collective net pension liability as of
June 30, 2019 calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the District’s
proportionate share of the collective net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.28 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.28
percent) than the current rate:

At 1% At Current At 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Inerease
(5.28%) (6.28%) (7.28%)
State's proportionate share of the
net pension liability associated
with the District $ 44814975 $ 35478393 § 27,611,000

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued financial report for the State of New Jersey Public Employees Retirement System.
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Additional Information

Collective balances of the Local Group at June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Deferred outflows of resources $  3,149,522,616
Deferred inflows of resources $ 7,645,087,574
Net pension liability $ 18,143,832,135
District's Proportion 0.1968999996%

Collective pension expense for the Local Group for the measurement period ended June 30, 2019 is
$974,471,686.

The average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pension
through the pension plan (active and inactive employees) determined at July 1, 2019, 2018, 2017,
2016, 2015 and 2014 is 5.21, 5.63, 5.48, 5.57, 5.72, and 6.44 years, respectively.

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) — Special Funding Situation

The employer contributions for Jocal participating employers are legally required to be funded by
the State in accordance with N.J.S.A, 18:66-33, Therefore, these local participating employers are
considered to be in a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 68 and the State
is treated as a nonemployer contributing entity. Since the local participating employers do not
contribute directly to the plan (except for employer specific financed amounts), there is no net
pension Hability or deferred outflows or inflows to report in the financial statements of the local
participating employers, However, the notes to the financial statements of the local participating
employers must disclose the portion of the nonemployer contributing entities’ total proportionate
share of the net pension liability that is associated with the local participating employer, The State’s
proportionate share of the TPAF net pension liability associated with the District as of June 30,
2020 was $370,274,952. The District’s proportionate share was $0.

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2018, which
was rolled forward to June 30, 2019. The State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
associated with the District was based on a projection of the State’s long-term contributions to the
pension plan associated with the District relative to the projected contributions by the State
associated with all participating school districts, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2019, the
State’s proportionate share of the TPAF net pension liability associated with the District was
0.6033391834 percent, which was an increase of 0.0001855023 from its proportion measured as of
June 30, 2018,
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For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized on-bebalf pension expense and revenue in
the government-wide financial statements of $21,839,806 for contributions incurred by the State.

Actuarial assumptions

The actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in
the measurement:

Inflation rate:
Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%

Salary increases:

Through 2026 1.55 - 4.45%
based on years of service
Thereafter 2,75 - 5.65%
based on years of service
Investment rate of return 7.00%

Mortality Rates

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income
Employee mortality table with a 93.9% adjustment for males and 85.3% adjustment for females,
and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis, Post-retivement
mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income Healthy Retiree
mortality table with a 114.7% adjustment for males and 99.6% adjustment for females, and with
future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis, Disability mortality rates
wete based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 106.3% adjustment
for males and 100.3% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of
2010 on a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2019.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2018.

Long-Terin Expected Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00%
at June 30, 2019) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the
Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the
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actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage by adding expected inflation.

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in TPAF’s target
asset allocation as of June 30, 2019 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term
Expected
Target Real Rate of

Asset Class Allocation Return
Risk mitigation strategics 3.00% 4.67%
Cash equivalents 5.00% 2.00%
118, Treasuries 5.00% 2.68%
Investment grade credit 10.00% 4.25%
High yield 2.00% 537%
Private credit 6.00% 7.92%
Real assets 2.50% 9.31%
Real estate 7.50% 8.33%
U.S. Equity 28.00% 8.26%
Non-U.S. developed markets equity 12.50% 9.00%
Emerging markets equity 6.50% 11.37%
Private equity 12.00% 10.85%

100.00%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.60% as of June 30, 2019 and
4.86% as of June 30, 2018, This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term rate of
return on pension plan investments of 7.00%, and a municipal bond rate of 3.50% as of June 30,
2019 based on the Bond Buyer GO 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt
general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will
be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be
made based on the contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year. The State contributed 70% of the
actuarially determined contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position
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was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members
through 2054. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to
projected benefit payments through 2054, and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected
benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the State’s proportionate share of the net pension liabilify associated with the District
fo changes in the discount rate

The following presents the State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with
the District as of June 30, 2019, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as
what the State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the District would be
if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (4.60 percent) or 1-
percentage-point higher (6.60 percent) than the current rate:

At 1% At Current At 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(4.60%) (5.60%) (6.60%)

State's proportionate share of
the net pension Hability
associated with the District $ 436,636,123 $ 370,274,952 § 315,216,135

Pension plan fiduciary net position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued TPAT financial report.

Additional Information

Collective balances of the Local Group at June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Deferred outflows of resources $ 10,077,460,797
Deferred inflows of resources 3 17,525,379,167
Net pension liability $ 61,370,943,870
State's proportionate share associated with the District 0.6033391834%
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Collective pension expense-Local Group for the plan for the measurement period ended June 30,
2019 is $3,642,191,152,

The average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pension
through the pension plan (active and inactive employees) determined at July 1, 2019, 2018, 2017,
2016, 2015, and 2014 is 8.04, 8.29, 8.30, 8.30, 8.30, and 8.50 years, respectively.

8. Post-Retirement Benefits
Plan description and benefits provided

The State of New Jersey reports a liability as a result of its statutory requirements to pay other post-
employment (health benefits) for State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees
Plan. The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan is a multiple-employer
defined benefit OPEB plan that is administered on a pay-as-you-go basis. Accordingly, no assets
are accumulated in a qualifying trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No.
75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions. The
State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan provides medical, prescription drug,
and Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and their covered dependents of local education
employers. The State Health Benefits Program Act is found in New Jersey Statutes Annotated,
Title 52, Article 17.25 et.seq. Rules governing the operation and administration of the program are
found in Title 17, Chapter 9 of the New Jersey Administrative Code. The State of New Jersey
Division of Pension and Benefits issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for SHBP. That report may be obtained by
writing to Division of Pension and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, NJ 08623-0295.

The employer contributions for the participating local education employers are legally required to
be funded by the State of New Jersey in accordance with N.J.S.A 52:14-17.32f. According to
N.I.S.A. 52:14-17.32f, the State provides employer-paid coverage to employees who retire from a
board of education or county college with 25 years or more of service credit in or retires in a
disability pension from one or more of the following plans: the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity
Fund (TPAF), the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) or the Alternate Benefit Program
(ABP). Pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, future retirces eligible for postretirement medical
coverage who have less than 20 years of creditable service on June 28, 201 1 will be required to pay
a percentage of the cost of health care coverage in retirement provided that they retire with 25 or
more years of pension service credit. The percentage of the premium for which the retiree will be
responsible will be determined based on the retiree’s annual retirement coverage.
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Certain local participating employers also provide post-retirement medical coverage to their
employees. Retitees who are not eligible for employer paid heaith coverage at retirement can
continue in the program if their employer participates in this program or if they are participating in
the health benefits plan of their former employer and are enrolled in Medicare Parts A and B by
paying the cost of the insurance for themselves and their covered dependents. In Fiscal Year 2019,
the State paid PRM benefits for 153,893 State and local retirees. The total nonemployer OPEB
liability does not include certain other postemployment obligations that are provided by the local
education employers.

The State’s contributions to the Fund for TPAF retirees’ post-retirement benefits on behalf of the
District for the years ended June 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018 were $4,957,090, $5,495,169 and $5,876,126
respectively, which equaled the required contributions for each year.

The State funds post-retirement medical benefits on a “pay-as-you-go” basis, which means that the
State does not pre-fund, or otherwise establish a reserve or other pool of assets against the PRM
expenses that the State may incur in future years, For Fiscal Year 2019, the State contributed
$1.908 billion to pay for pay-as-you-go PRM benefit costs incurred by covered retirees. The State’s
“pay-as-you-go” contributions have remained consistent with Fiscal Year 2018 amounts. The State
has appropriated $1.612 billion in Fiscal Year 2020 as the State’s contribution to fund pay-as-you-
go PRM costs.

In accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, the State is required to quantify and disclose ifs
obligations to pay Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) to retired plan members. This new
standard supersedes the previously issued guidance, GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, effective for Fiscal Year
2018. The State is now required to accrue a liability in all instances where statutory language
names the State as the legal obligor for benefit payments. The Fiscal Year 2019 total State OPEB
liability to provide these benefits is $76.0 billion, a decrease of $14.5 billion or 16 percent from the
$90.5 biilion liability recorded in Fiscal Year 2018.

The Schoo! Employees Health Benefits Program (SEHBP) Act is found in New Jersey Statutes
Annotated, Title 52, Article 17.25 et. seq. Rules governing the operation and administration of the
program are found in Title 17, Chapter 9 of the New Jersey Administrative Code. No assets are
accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASBS No. 75.

Total OPEB Liability

The total non-employer (State) OPEB liability from New Jersey’s plan is $41 ,729,081,045.
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

8. Post-Retirement Benefits (continued)
Changes in Total OPEB Liability

Below represents the changes in the State’s portion of the OPEB liability associated with the
District for the year ended June 30, 2020:

Total OPEB Liability

Beginning Total OPEB Liability, June 30,2018 3 271,308,212
Changes for the year:
Service cost 10,215,878
Interest cost 10,755,390
Difference between expected and actual
experience (44,133,699)
Changes of assumptions 3,645,638
Member contributions 222,489
Gross benefit payments (7,505,674)
Net change in total OPEB liability (26,799,978)
Ending Total OPEB Liability, June 30, 2619 $ 244,508,234

Employees covered by benefit terms

The following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Local Education Group June 30, 2019
Active Plan Members : 216,892
Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits 148,051
Inactive Plan Members Entitled to but Not Yet Receiving Benefits -

Total Plan Members 364,943

The State, a nonemployer contributing entity, is the only entity that has a legal obligation to make
employer contributions to OPEB for qualified retired PERS and TPAF participants. The LEA’s
proportionate share percentage determined under paragraphs 193 and 203 through 205 of GASBS
No. 75 is zero percent, Accordingly, the LEA did not recognize any portion of the collective total
OPEB liability on the Statement of Net Position. The State’s propoxtionate share of the total OPEB
liability associated with the District as of June 30, 2019 was $244,508,234. Additional information
can be obtained from the State of New Jersey’s comprehensive annual financial report,
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

8, Post-Retirement Benefits (continued)
Aetuarial assumptions and other inpuls
The total nonemployer OPEB liability in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation reported by the State

in the State’s most recently issued CAFR was determined using the following actuarial assumptions
and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

TPAF PERS
Inflation rate: 2.50% 2.50%
Salary increases:
Through 2026 1.55-3.05% 2.00-6.00%
based on years of service based on years of service
Thereafter 1.55-3.05% 3.00-7.00%
based on years of service based on years of service

The total nonemployer OPEB liability as of June 30, 2019 was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of June 30, 2018, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2019, The actuarial assumptions used in
the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results of the actual experience studies for the
periods July 1, 2015 — June 30, 2018 and July 1, 2014 — June 30, 2018 for TPAF and PERS,
respectively.

Mortal ity Rates

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy "Teachers” (TPAF/ABP) and
"General" (PERS) classification headcount-weighted mortality table with fully generational
mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2019. Postretirement
mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 "General" classification headcount-weighted mortality
table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale
MP-2019. Disability mortality was based on the Pub-2010 "General® classification headcount-
weighted disabled mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from
the central year using Scale MP-2019.

Discount Rafe

The discount rate for June 30, 2019 and 2018 was 3.50% and 3.87%, respectively. This represents
the municipal bond return rate as chosen by the Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-
Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with
an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. As the long-term rate of return is less than the municipal
bond rate, it is not considered in the calculation of the discount rate, rather the discount rate is set af
the municipal bond rate,
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

8. Post-Retirement Benefits (continued)
Health Care Trend Assumptions

For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.7% and decreases to a 4,5% long-
term trend rate afier eight years, For post-65 medical benefits, the actual fully-insured Medicare
Advantage trend rate for fiscal year 2020 are reflected. The assumed post-65 medical trend is 4.5%
for all future years, For prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 7.5% and decreases to a

4.5% long-term trend rate after eight years. For the Medicare Part B reimbursement, the trend rate is
5.0%.

The following represents sensitivity of the Total Nonemployer OPEB liability associated with the
District to changes in the discount rate and healthcare cost trend rate

The following presents the non-employer OPEB liability associated with the District as of June 30,
2019 calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the total non-employer
OPEB liability would be if it was calculated using a discount rate that is I-percentage-point lowet
(2.50%) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.50%) than the current rate:

At 1% Af current At 1%
decrease discount rate increase
(2.50%) (3.50%) (4.50%)
Total OPEB Liability (Allocable to the
District and the responsibility of the
State) $ 288,860,847 $ 244,508,234 § 209,276,949

The following presents the non-employer OPEB liability associated with the District as of June 30,
2019 calculated using the healtheare cost trend rate as disclosed above as well as what the total non-
employer OPEB liability would be if it was calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is 1-
percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current rate:

At
At Healthcare Cost At
1% decrease Trend Rates 1% increase
Total OPEB Liability (Allocable to the
District and the responsibility of the
State) $ 201,463,887 $ 244,508,234 § 301,490,112
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

8. Post-Retirement Benefits (continued)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Ouiflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the District recognized on-behalf OPEB expense and revenue in
the government-wide financial statements of $5,705,854 for OPEB expenses incurred by the State,

Collective balances of the Education Group at June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Deferred outflows of resources § 1,921,145,183

Deferred inflows of resources  § 20,887,639,826
Collective OPEB Expense $ 1,015,664,874
District's Proportion 0.59%

Special Funding Situation

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be funded by
the State, therefore, the District records an expense and corresponding revenue for its respective
share of total OPEB expense and revenue attributable to the State of New Jersey.

9, Contingent Liabilities

The District participates in numerous state and federal grant programs, which are governed by various
rules and regulations of the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the District has not complied
with the rules and regulations governing the grants, refunds of any money received may be required and
the collectability of any related receivable at June 30, 2020 may be impaired. In the opinion of the
District, there ate no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the rules and
regulations governing the respective grants; therefore, no provisions have been recorded in the
accompanying combined financial statements for such contingencies.

The District is also involved in several claims and lawsuits incidental to its operations, In the opinion of
the administration and legal counsel, the ultimate resolution of these matters will not have a material
adverse effect on the financial position of the Board,

10. Deferred Compensation Plans

The District offers its employees a choice of various deferred compensation plans created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Sections 401(a), 403(b) and 457(b). The plans, which are
administered by the entities listed below, permits participants to defer a pottion of their salary until
future years, Amounts deferred under the plans are not available to employees until termination,
retirement, death or unforesecable emergency. All amounts of compensation deferred under the
plans, all property and rights purchased with the amounts and all income at{ributable to these
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

10. Deferred Compensation Plans (continued)

amounts are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participating employees and their beneficiaries.

The plan administrators are as follows:

A.LG, Met Life Investment
Franklin Templeton Group
American Fund (Capital Guardian)
Equitable

ING

. & & 2 &

11. Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance; The District maintains commetcial insurance coverage for
property, liability and surety bonds. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the
Statistical Section of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. There have been no significant
reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year and no settlements have exceeded insurance
coverage over the past three years.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance; The District has elected to fund its New
Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the "Benefit Reimbursement Method.”
Under this plan, the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for
benefits paid to its former employees and charged to its account with the State. The District is
billed quarterly for amounts due to the State. The following is a summary of District contributions,
employee contributions, reimbursements to the State for benefits paid and the ending balance of the
District’s trust fund for the current and previous two years:

Fiscal Beginning Board Federal Employee Ending

Year Balance Contribution  Conlribution  Contribution  Interest Deductions Balance
2019-2020 $ 799,040 $ 16,505 $ 86,669 $ 152,235 $13,663 $ 272,324 $§ 795788
2018-2019 753,208 18,113 149,484 8,513 130,278 799,040
2017-2018 719,753 17,291 145,831 1,264 130,931 753,208

Self-Insurance: The District is self-insured for medical, prescription and dental benefits and has
established an internal service fund to account for its self-insurance activities. At June 30, 2020, the
acorued liability for unpaid medical, prescription and dental claims of $1,604,000 has been recorded in
the internal service fund financial statements for Incurred But Not Reported Claims (JBNR), which is
subject to modification and/or assessment of existing or additional claims. The medical, prescription
and dental benefits IBNR liability has been calculated by an actuary contracted by the District’s claims
administrator. The actuary utilized a 10% margin to estimate the liabilities. The change in the IBNR for
the year ended June 30, 2020 is as follows:
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Year ended June 30, 2020

11, Risk Management (continucd)

Fiscal Beginning Current Year Claim Ending
Year Balance Claims and Estimates Payments Balance
2019-2020 $ 1,479,000 3 24,643,011 $ 24,518,011 § 1,604,000
2018-2019 1,188,000 22,093,647 21,802,647 1,479,000
2017-2018 - 21,538,650 20,350,650 1,188,000

12. Settlement - Special Item

The District received $100,000 from a legal settlement with a vendor during the current fiscal year,
which has been recorded as a special item in the Capital Projects Fund.

13. Economic Dependency

The District receives a significant amount of its support from federal and state governments. A
significant reduction in the level of support, if this were to occur, would have an effect on the
District’s programs and activities. ‘

14, Transfers to Capital Outlay

During the year ending Tune 30, 2020, the District transferred $3,041,434 to the capital outlay
accounts. The transfers were made from the capital reserve account to supplement capital projects
certified in the budget for taxes pursuant to N.LA.C, 6A:23A-8.4.

15. Transfers — Reconciliation
The following represents a reconciliation of transfers made during the 2020 fiscal year:

in Out

General Fund $ 70,827
Capital Projects Fund $ 70,827
$ 70,827 § 70,827

The transfer from the capital projects fund to the general fund represents a transfer of interest
earned in the capital projects fund on the Energy Savings Improvement Program bond proceeds.

16. Restricted Assets

The funds set aside for the capital reserve are classified as restricted assets (cash and cash
equivalents) as they are restricted for use for future capital requirements, Funds held by a fiscal
agent in the internal service fund are held by the District’s insurance advisor for payment of future
claims. :
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Year ended June 30, 2020

17, Net Position - Net Investment in Capital Assets

Net investment in capital assets, Governimental Activities, consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any long-term debt used to build
or acquite the capital assets. The net investment in capital assets of $155,044,226 indicated as part
of the Governmental Activities net position is calculated as follows:

Capital assets, net of depreciation $ 244,237.818
Bonds payable (used to build or acquire capital assets} (70,140,000)
Unused ESIP refunding bond proceeds 460,558
Deferred loss on refunding of debt 4,785,387
Unamortized deferred premium (6,193,377}
Lease purchase obligations (22,740,000)
Capital lease obligations (177,792)
Designated for subsequent years expenditures - Special

Revenue Fund (unused capital lease proceeds) 4,811,632
Total net investment in capital assets $ 155,044,226

18. Commitments

The District has contractual commitments at June 30, 2020 to various vendors, which are recorded
in the General Fund as fund balance assigned to other purposes in the amount of $2,471,576 and in
the Capital Projects Fund as restricted for capital projects in the amount of $482,090.

19. Tax Abatements

As defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), a tax abatement is an
agreement between a government and an individual or entity in which the government promises to
forgo tax revenues and the individual or entity promises to subsequently take a specific action that
contributes to economic development or otherwise benefits the government or its citizens.
However, the county or municipality in which the school district is situated may have entered into
tax abatement agreements, and that potential must be disclosed in these financial statements. If the
county or municipality entered into tax abatement agreements, those agreements will not directly
affect the school district’s local tax revenue because N.J.S.A. 54:4-75 and N.J.S.A, 54:4-76 require
that amounts so forgiven must effectively be recouped from other taxpayers and remitted to the
school district.

For a local school district board of education or board of school estimate that has elected (o raise
their minimum tax levy using the required local share provision at N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-5(b), the loss of
revenue resulting from the municipality or county having entered into a tax abatement agreement is
indeterminate due to the complex nature of the calculation of required local share performed by the
New Jersey Department of Education based upon district property value and wealth,
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Year ended June 30, 2020

19, Tax Abatements (continued)

The Township of East Brunswick recognized revenue of $2,379,978 from the annual service charge
in lieu of payment of taxes in 2019 and taxes in 2019 that otherwise would have been due on these
Jong-term tax exemptions amounted to $2,660,379, based upon the assessed valuations of the long-
term tax exemptions propetties, A portion of the $280,401 abatement would have been allocated to
the District.

The Township of East Brunswick provides for long-term tax exemptions, as authorized by New
Jersey State Statutes. N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq. sets forth the criteria and mechanism by which
property taxes can and are abated. The exemptions provided by the Township of East Brunswick
are for affordable housing projects and other permitted purposes, Taxes abated include municipal,
local school and county taxes.

20. Liquidity, Management Plans and Intentions

Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, the District closed its schools on March 16, 2020 and continued to
provide online instruction to its students through the end of the school year. The Pandemic did not
have a significant impact on the financia! statements of the District for the year ended June 30,
2020, However, the Pandemic did result in the State of New Jersey taking steps to reduce the
amount of state aid to be provided to the District in the 2020-21 fiscal year subsequent to the
District’s adoption of its budget. Management has taken steps to reduce certain expenses related to
operating the District and also plans to utilize existing funds to balance its budget for the 2020-21
fiscal year, if needed. Management believes that the unassigned fund balance available as of June
30, 2020 and the anticipated revenues from state aid, taxes and other revenues will be sufficient to
meet the District’s financial needs for one year from the date of the issuance of this report.
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L-3

Fast Brunswick Public $chools
Sehiedulé of the State's Progortionate Sharg of the Net Pension Liability Associated With the Districs
Teachers' Pension ond Anausily Fund
Required Suppleatentary information

Last Ten Fiscal Years*

Year Ended June 36,
PTG R 2016 i7 2048 2019 208

Sime's properiion of the nct pension

Yability {asse1} associated with the Dislrict -

Lazal Grouwp 0.5894999635% 0,5738312934% QO04RRGEIITH 0.6044813962% 06031538 11% .6031391834%
District's propostionalg share of the net

pensfon lisbility {pssen 13 . § - 13 - $ . b - $ .
S1ale's proportionate share of Lie net

pension Jability (asset) associated with the District $ 315,048,346 5 362,685,882 5 473,817,667 £ 407,363,154 § B TEIAI6 § 370219952
Taola) proportionate thare of the net pension Jiability (nssel)

associated with the District $ 3l5.068!$46 5 362,685,882 $ 473,837,667 $ 407.363, 154 $ 383,743,446 £ 370.274,932
Plan fiduciary net position as 4

percentage of the 1olat pension lisbitity 33.64% IRTIG 2:33% 2541% 26,49% 26.95%

* The amounis presented for each fiscal ysar wece dezesmingdd as of the provious Hseal yeaz-ond.

This schedule is presented to illuswrale the requireient fo shaw infornuation for ten years. However, wnfi) & full ten-year trend is compiled, povernments shoald present information
for hiose vears for which information is avaifable.

Covered payroll infomiation is ot presented sinoe the Teachers' Pension and Asuuity Fund {s a specinl Funding situstion in which the District docs nog make contributions to this
vlan

Seae accompaning sotes (o required suppleméntary information.




East Bruaswick Public Schoals
Schedule of the State's Proportionate Share of the Ner OPEB Liabifity Assoviated With the District
and Clianges in 1he Total OPEB Linbility and Related Ratios
Public Emsployee’s Retiremens System and Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund
Required Supplementary Information

Lnst Ten Fiscal Years*

M-1

Yenr Ended June 30,
2017 2018 2019 2028

State's proportion of fhe net OPEB

Tiability (nsset) associated with the District 0.59% 0.59% 0.59% 0.59%
Distrief's proportionate share of the net OPEB lability $ - $ - $ - -
State's proportionate share of the et OPER lability
associated with the District s 341,602,391 $ 316,476,368 8 271,308,212 244,508,234
Total proportionate share of the net OPEB liability {asset}

associated with the District 341,602,391 3 316,476,368 3 271,308,212 244,508,234
Plan fiduciary net posiion as a

perceniape of the total OPEB liabitity 4.06% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

20174+ 2018 2019 2020

Totn] OPEB Liability
Changes for the year:
Service ¢cost $ 13,993,198 3 11,568,347 10,215,878
nterest cost 10,034,571 11,619,732 19,755,390
Difference between expected and nciual expesieuce - (31,218,308) (44,133,699}
Changes of assumptions (42,093,447) {30,133,975) 3,645,638
Member contributions 269919 250,733 222,489
Gross benefit payments {7,330,264) (7,254,685) (7,505,674}

Nel change in total OPED liability (25,126,623) (43,168,156} (26,799,978)
Total OPEB liability - bepinning 341,602,391 316,476,368 271,308,212
Totai OPEB liability - ending 5 316,476,308 $ 271,308,212 244,508,234
Covered-employee payroll $ 76,607,296 $ 77,683,234 77,141,736
Total OPEB lirbility as a percentage of covered-employee payvoll . 413.12% 349.23% 316.596%

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the previous fiseal year-cid,

* This schedule is presented to #lusirate the requirement (o show information for 10 years. However, untit a full 10-year trend is compiled, the District should presens information: for
those years for which information is available.

&% infermation not available.

See accompanying aoles lo required supplementary information.
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Notes to Required Supplementary Information

Year ended June 30, 2020

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM — PENSION

Benefit Changes

There were none.

Changes of Assumptions

The discount rate changed from 5.66% as of June 30, 2018 to 6.28% as of June 30, 2019.

TEACHERS PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND - PENSION

Benefit Changes

There were none.

Changes of Assumptions

The discount rate changed from 4,86% as of June 30, 2018 to 5.60% as of June 30, 2019.

OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN - PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM
AND TEACHERS’ PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND

Benefit Changes

There were none,

Changes of Assumptions

The discount rate changed from 3.87% as of June 30, 2018 to 3.50% as of June 30, 2019,
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Budgetary Comparison




Revenues

Laeal sources:
Local tax levy
Tuition (from individuals)
Tuitien (oilter LEAS)
fivestiment income
Interest earned on capital reserve
Miscellaneous

Totaj « ocal sources

State sources:
Extraordinary aid
Specinl education categorical aid
Equalization aid
Security aid
Transporiation aid
Additional Nen-public school transpertation aid
On-Behall TPAF - Pension
Contribution (men-Iudgeted)
On-Behalf TPAF - Post-Refirement
Medical (non-budgeted)
On-Behalf ‘TPAF - Long-Term Disability
Insurance (non-budpeted)
Reimbursed TPAF sociak security
contributions {non-budgeted)
Taotal - stale sources

Federnl sousces:

Medienl assistance
Total - federal sources
Total revenues

Expenditures
Curreist expenditures:
Instraction - regular programs!

Preschool
Kindergarten
Grades 1-3
Grades 6-8
Grades 9-12
Home instruction - regular programs;
Salaries of teacliers

Purchased professionat-educational services

Undistributed instrugtion - regular progrems:
Other salaries for instruetion

Purchased professionai-educational services

Purchased technical services
Other purchased services
General sapplies
Textbooks
Other objects
Total insteuction - reguiar programs

East Brunswick Public Schools

General Fund

Budgetary Comparison Sciiedule

(Budgetary Basis)

Year ended June 30, 2020

Variance
Origlna) Budget Finnl Finak to
Badget Transfers Budget Actual Aclual
£ 129,809,932 129,809,932 129,309,932
75,000 75,000 59,420 (15,580)
600,000 600,000 640,474 40,474
250,000 250,006 596,318 346,318
107,119 107,119
410,000 410,000 344,942 {65,058}
131,144,932 131,144,932 131,558,205 43,273
550,000 550,000 1,776,348 1,226,348
5,355,986 5,355,986 5,355,986
12,789,929 12,789,929 12,189,929
176,418 176,418 176,418
1,491,445 1,491,445 1,491,445
4,681 4,681
13,362,088 13,362,088
4,957,090 4,957,09¢
12,30% 12,309
4,729,734 4,729,734
20,363,778 20,363,778 44,656,028 24,292,250
135,767 135,767 131,445 (4,322)
135,767 135,767 131,445 {4,322)
£50,644,477 151,644,477 176,345,678 24,701,201
273,246 100,720 373,966 373,966
2,123,468 4,180 2,127,648 2,127,648
14,264,169 {85,820) 14,178,349 13,893,032 285,317
10,326,867 409,664 10,736,531 10,736,531
16,142,939 (208,857) 15,934,082 15,465,265 468,317
11,956 11,956 8,640 3,316
35,000 18,942 73,942 73,942
389,952 {9,042) 380,910 220,139 160,771
161,300 4,072) 157,228 17,028 140,200
87,850 §7.850 84,039 3,811
592,310 {115,632) 476,678 357,488 119,19
1,980,660 326,562 2,307,222 2,048,407 258,815
182,520 1,536 184,056 157,852 26,204
7,316 &30 8,525 1,961 3,564
46,580,073 458,870 47,038,943 45,568,938 470,005
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(continued)
East Brunswick Public Schools
General Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
(Budgetary Basis)
Year ended June 30, 2020
Origingl Budget Final Yoriance
Budget Transiers Budget Actual Final to Actual
Expenditures (continued)
Current expenditures
Special education:
Learning andfor language disabilities:
Salaries of teachers $ 342,557 % 284711 $ 627268 § 627,268
Other sataries for insiruction 356,650 18,600 375,250 175092 § 158
Other purchased services S0 50 50
General supplies 1,778 1,778 1,718 60
Totnk learning and/or language disabilities 701,635 303,311 1,004,346 1,004,078 268
Behavioral disabilities:
Salaries of teachers 222682 (5,092) 217,590 217,590
Other salaries for insiruction 233,331 25,688 259,019 259,019
General supplies 4,600 4,600 1,787 2,813
Totat behavioral disabilities 460,613 20,596 481,209 478,396 2,813
Multiple disabilities:
Salaries of teachers 293,284 201,848 495,132 495,132
Other salaries for instruction 176,566 4,803 181,369 181,369
Other purchased services 200 (100} 100 18 82
General supplies 3,100 3,100 1,676 1,424
Totak muitipte disabilities 473,150 206,551 679,701 678,195 1,506
Resource room/center:
Salaries of teachers 8,105,802 (26,079 8,079,723 8,057,157 22,566
Other selaries for instruction 1,266,787 {238,505) 1,028,282 1,025,663 2,619
Other purchased services 1,006 (100) 200 112 788
General supplics 22,050 (200 21,841 19,045 2,796
Texthooks 1,600 500 1,500 1,489 11
Total resource rocnycenter 9,396,639 (264,393) 9,132,246 9,103,466 28,130
Autism:
Salaries of teachers 1,040,818 (237,329) 803,489 758,225 45264
Other salaries for instruction 699,246 (177,033) 522,213 522,213
Other purchased services 200 200 200
General supplies 16,970 1,120 {8,09¢ 15,139 2,954
Total gutism 1,757,234 (413,242} 1,343,992 1,295,577 48,415
Preschool disebilities - part time:
Salaries of teachers 67,277 61211 62,444 4,833
Other salaries for instruction 7,685 14,036 21,721 21,721
General supplies 1,385 39y 1,346 1,335 11

Total preschool disabilities - part time 76,347 13,997 90,344 85,500 4,844
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{continued)
East Brunswick Public Schools
General Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
(Budgetary Basis)
Year ended June 30, 2020
Original Budget Final Varinnee
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Fingl to Actual
Expenditures {contimied)
Current expenditures (conlinued):
Speeinl education (continued):
Presclioo] disabilities - full time:
Salaries of teachers $ 0 233044 % {16,872y $ 216172 §  2i6,172
Other salaries for instruction 127,988 166,643 297,631 207,631
General supplies 1,420 427 {,847 1,806 % 41
Total preschool disabilities - fuli time 362,452 153,198 515,650 515,609 41
Home instruction - special education:
Salaries of teachers 15,451 15,451 2,832 12,619
Purcitased professional - educational services 95,000 {29,995} 65,005 50,459 14,546
Total home instruction - special education 110,451 (29,995) 80,456 53,291 21,168
Total special education 13,337,921 (9,977 13,327,944 13,214,112 113,832
Basie skills/remedial - instruetion:
Salaries of teachers 2.412,890 (276,595} 2,136,295 2,105,785 30,510
Purchased prolessional - educational services 19,500 {1,644) 11,856 11,840 16
Qther purchased services 160 100 100
Puschased technical services 600 7,644 8,244 8,244
General supplies 8,800 (439) 8,361 3,588 4,713
Total basie skilis/remedial - instraiction 2,441,890 {277,034) 2,164,856 2,129,457 35,399
Bilingual edugation - instruction:
Salaries of teachers 801,085 (1,350) 799,735 789,516 10,219
Other purchased services 300 &) 216 216
General supplies 5,859 2,257 7416 6,935 481
Totat bilingual education - instruction 806,544 823 807,367 796,451 10,916
School - spansored cocurricular activities:
Salaries 330431 3,242 333,673 333,673
Purchased services 54,091 73 54,164 42,145 12,019
Supplies and materials 7480 7,480 6,495 985
Other objects 5,500 5,500 1,693 3,807
TFotal selool-sponsored cocurricutar activities 397,502 3,318 400,817 184,606 16,811
School - sponsored athletics - instruction;
Salaries . 679,980 13,478 693,458 693,458
Purchased services 52,815 7,642 60,457 38,647 21,810
Supplies and materials 59495 59,495 49,061 10,404
Olher oljects 5,000 5,000 3,650 1,350
Transfers to cover deficit (agency funds) 66,868 66,868 30,759 36,109
Total school - sponsored athletics - instruction 864,158 21,i20 885,278 815,605 69,673
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Expenditures {continucd)

Current expenditures {continued).

Allernative Edueation:
Sataries of teachers
Purchased professional and technical services
General supplies

Total allernative education
Total instruction

Undistributed expenditures:

[nstruction;
Tuition 1o other LEAs w/in the state - regular
Tuition to other LEAs win the state - special
Tuition to CSSD and regionak day schools
Tuition to private schools disabled - within state
Twition - other

Total instruction

Attendance and social work services:
Sataries
Okher purchased services
Supplies and materials
Olher objects

Total allendance and social work services

Health services:
Salaries
Purchased professional and technical services
Other purchased services
Supplies and materials
Total healil services

Other supporl services - students - speech, OT, PT
and related services:
Salaries
Purchased professional - educational services
Supplies and materials
Total other suppert services - students - speech, OT, PT
and relnted services

Otlser support services - students - extraordinary:
Salaries
Purchased professionnl - educational services
Supplies and materials
Other abjects
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(continued)
East Brunswick Public Schools
General Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
(Budgetary Basis)
Year ended June 30, 2020
Original Budget Final Yariance

Budget Transfers Budget Actual Final te Actusl
$ 203,040 § 203,040 § 78,748 0§ 124,202
4,000 4,000 1,000 3,000
2,000 2,000 92 1,508
209,046 209,040 79,840 129,200
$ 64,428,088 406,157 64,834,245 62,988,400 1,845,836
60,911 (24,698) 36,213 29,574 6,639

1,312,988 243,414 1,556,402 1,556,402
82,388 (1,598) 80,790 80,473 317

036,449 95,389 1,031,838 1,031,838

48,872 48,872 48,872
2,441,608 312,507 2,754,115 2,747,159 6,956

262,163 21,558 283,721 283,721
8,552 8,552 7,635 917
5,535 (2,381) 3,154 355 2,799

203 203 203
276,250 19,380 295,630 291,914 3,716

1,165,462 (33,242) 1,132,220 1,132,220
104,242 (19,423 84,819 74,990 9,820
6,102 (2,166) 3,936 3,468 468
27,029 305,143 332,172 76,222 255,950
1,302,835 250,312 1,553,147 1,286,900 266,247
1,593,075 (94,5843 1,498,491 1,392,720 105,762
934,000 94,380 1,628,380 1,015,280 13,109
10,565 504 11,069 9,145 1,924
2,537,640 300 2,537,940 2417154 120,786
2,069,909 2,069,909 1,692,125 377,784
1,270,814 (118,215) 1,152,499 975,372 177,127
19,600 (800) 18,200 13,751 4,449

1,000 520 1,520 1,520
3,360,723 (118,595) 3,242,128 2,682,768 559,360

Total oler support services - students - extraordinary
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{continued)
East Brunswick Public Schools
General Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
(Budgetary Basis)
Year ended June 30, 2020
Origtnal Byl gt Final Yariance
Dol get Transfers Budget Actual Fingl {0 Actun]
Expenditures {continued)
Current expenditures {contimsed).
Undistributed expenditures {continued):
Guidance:
Salaries of other professionad staff § 3345278 85 (1654703 $ 3,179.808 8§ 3,i75233 % 4,575
Salaries of secretaring and clerical assistants 286,193 (36,855} 249,338 243,652 5,686
Unused vacation payments fo
teninated/retired staft - normal retirements 7,912 7912 7,982
Other purchased professional and technical services 106,691 (999} 105,692 70312 35,380
Other purchiased services 13,194 {484) 12,710 8,109 4,601
Supplies and materials 23,500 {3,383} 20,117 11,179 8,338
Other objects 1,600 1,000 675 325
Total guidance 3,775,836 (199,279) 3,576,577 3,517,672 58,005
Child study teams:
Salaries of other professional staff 2,240,381 1,240,381 2,173,314 67,067
Salaries of secretarial and clerical assistants 301,693 3,169 304,862 304.862
Unmsed vacation payients 1o
terminated/retired staff - normal relirements 1,289 {,289 1,289
Purchased professional - educational services 75,000 75,600 57,700 17,300
Other purchased professional and technical services 20,134 20,134 20,133 1
Other purchased services 12,250 558 12,808 5,300 7,508
Supplies and materials 19,275 (1,945) 17,330 17,038 292
Total child study 1eams 2,668,733 3,071 2,671,804 2,579,636 92,168
Improvement of instructional services:
Salaries of supervisors of instruction t,842,865 {249,663} 1,593,202 1,485,313 107,889
Sslaries of other professional staff 342,292 8,844 351,136 351,536
Salaries of secretarial and clerical assistonts 387,089 (2,105} 184,984 352,135 32,849
Other salaries 67,401 9 67419 67410
Salaries of Facilitators, Matl: & Literacy coaclies 819,595 30,065 849,660 849,660
Unused vacation payments to
terminated/retired staff - normal refiroinents 21,168 21,168 21,168
Other purchased professional and iechnical services 75,180 75,180 67,566 7,614
Other purchased services 59,928 (3,031) 56,897 23,313 33,584
Supplies and materinfs 31,28% (4.508) 26,712 i7,581 5,131
Other objecis 13,595 868 14,463 13,834 0629
Total improvement of fsstructional services 3,639,225 (198411 3,440,812 3,249,116 191,696
Educational niedia services/school library:
Sntaries 953,500 953,500 897,724 55,716
Qther purchased professional and technical services 39,700 39,700 34,056 5,644
Other purchased services 4,745 4,745 3,124 1,621
Supplies and materials 148,053 (143) 147,910 124 884 23,026
Otlier objects 175 175 175
Total educational inedia services f schoel library 1,146,173 {143} 1,146,030 1,059,788 86,242
Instractional seaff training services:
Salaries of supervisors of fnstruction 154,500 154,500 123,383 31,117
Salaries of other professicnal staft 37,800 116,325 154,125 154,125
Salarics of secrefatial and clerical assistants 6,077 6,077 6,077
Purchased professional - educational services 25,000 25,000 13,129 11,871
Unnsed yacation paynients (o
ferminated/rotired staff - normal retirements 19,266 19,266 19,266
Other purchased services 20,475 1,839 22,314 22314
Supplées and materials 10,000 439 16,439 9,447 992
Other objects 845 845 845

Total instructional staff training services 251,852 138,714 192,566 342,569 50,057
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(continued)
East Brunswick Public Schools
General Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
(Budgetary Basis)
Year ended June 30, 2020
Originnl Budget Tinal Varlance
Budget Transfers Budpet Aciust Final to Aclunl
Expenditures {continued) )
Current expenditures (continued):
Undistributed expenditures (continued).
Suppon services-general administration:
Salaries £ 179231 § 10,010 $ 789241 5 785241
Legal services 278,225 278,225 235815 $ 42110
Audit fees 72,500 74,973 147,475 74,975 72,500
Otlier purchased professional services 21,000 8,947 29,947 29,302 645
Purchased technical services 13,800 5,245 19,045 19,045
Communicationsfieleplone 471,386 60,771 538,157 450,215 87,942
BOE other purchased services 10,500 10,500 4,572 5,928
Miscellancous purchased services 350,925 13,972 373,897 361,831 12,066
General supplies 13,875 838 14,713 6,131 8,582
BOE in-house training/meeting supplies 1,500 1,500 177 1,323
Miscellancous expenditures 17,148 {1,279) 15,869 10,637 5,232
BOE membership duesifees 34,733 34,733 34,723
Total support services-general ndministration 2,079,823 173479 2,253,302 2,016,674 236,628
Support services-school administration:
Salaries of principals / assistant principals 2,692,100 67,707 2,759,807 2,759,807
Salaries of other professional staff’ 652,853 8,699 661,552 661,552
Snlaries of secretarial and clerical assistants 1,444,890 444,890 1,414,277 30,643
Salaries - other 15,506 2,432 17,938 17,938
Unused vacation payinents to
tenninated/vetired staff - normal retirenents 31,933 31,933 31,933
Purchased professional and technical services 1,650 50 1,700 1,700
Other purchased services 74,064 (235) 73,829 25,896 47,933
Supplies and materials 44,238 1,574 43,812 35,729 10,083
Other objects 24,550 {1,048} 21902 24,830 2,072
Tednl support services-school administration 4,950,251 11,112 5,061,363 4,968,962 92,401
Central services:
Snlfaries 1,806,039 1,222 1,807,361 1,807,361
Unused vacalion payments to
tesminatedfretired staff - nomal reticements 17,655 17,655 17,655
Purchased professional services 66,024 6,035 72,059 48,846 23,213
Puechased technical services 41,000 15,110 56,10 56,119
Miscellaneous purchased services 45,945 6,960 52,905 46,136 6,769
Supplics and materials 22,107 77 23,48 13,156 10,324
Enierest on lease purchase agreements 206,307 206,807 206,806 !
Miscellaneous expenditures 1,805 450 8,343 7,885 460
Total central services 2,196,417 48,305 2,244,722 2,203,955 40,767
Administrative information fechnology:
Salaries 1,6i3,71¢ 13,441 1,627,151 1,627,151
Purchnsed technical services 538,702 {2,980) 535,722 506,431 29,291
Others purchased services 41,215 (3300 40,885 25,685 15,200
Supplies and materdals 369,493 (254,325) 115,168 97,210 17,558
Other objects 500 500 200 300
Totat administrative information technology 2,503,620 (244,194) 2,319,426 2,256,677 52,49
Required maintenance for scheol facilities:
Salaries 1,125,564 125,291 1,250,855 1,250,855
Unused vacation paymenis {o
terminated/retived staff - nonmwal retirements 1,526 1,526 1,526
Cleaning, repair and maintenaice services 487,579 52,250 539,838 523,316 16,522
General supplies 374,032 {5,736} 368,296 300,363 67,933
Other abjects 193 024 6 103,030 154,200 38,821
Total required mainienance for schaot facilities 2,180,199 173,346 2,353,545 2,230,269 123,276
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Expenditures {continued)
Current expenditures (contimed):
Undistribuled expenditures (continued):
Custodial services:
Salaries
Salaries of non-instructional aides
Unused vacation payments to
{erminated/retired stafl - normal retirements
Purchased professional and techuical services
Cleaning, repair and maindenance services
Other purchased property services
fnsurance
Miscellancous purcliased services
General supplies
Energy (electricity)
Energy (natural gas)
Diher objects
Inferest ESIP Bonds
Total custodial services

Care and upkeep of grounds:
Salaries
Unused vacat{on payments to
tenminated/retired staft’ - normal retiventents

Cleasing, repair and mainfenance services
Gengrni supplies
Other objects

Tolal care and upkeep of gronnds

Security:
Salaries
Purchased professional and technical services
Cleaning, Repair, and Maintenance Services
General supphies
Gther objects
Tolal security

Student transportation services:
Salaries - Non-instructional Aides
Salaries for pupil transporiation:
Between home and schec! - regular

Other Purchased professional and techiical services

Cleaning, Repair, and Maintenance Services
Rental payments - School Buses
Lease Purchase Payments - Scliool Buses
Conlracted services:
Aid in Heu of payments-Nonpublic students
Vendors - befween home and scheot

Vendors - other than between hone and school

VYendors - Special Ed
ESCs & CTSAs - Special Ed
Miscellancous puschased services - transportation
General supplies
Transportation Supplies
Other objects
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(continued)
East Brunswick Public Schools
General Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
(Budgetary Basis)
Year ended June 30, 2020
Original Budget Final Varlance
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Elnal fo Actuat
§.437,981 (12,532) 1,425,449 1290892 8 134,557
530,038 21,185 552,123 552,123
10,396 10,396 10,396
66,664 96,879 163,543 78,067 85,476
3,539,308 (18,435) 3,521,463 3,183,567 337,896
67,000 5917 72,917 72,887 30
653,853 (3,162) 650,691 538,757 111,934
15,250 40,962 56,212 55,962 250
194,951 43,600 218,551 230,806 7,745
2214779 (223,305) 1,991 474 1,566,472 425,002
874,167 (275) 873,802 451,880 422,012
16,800 @11y 7,689 6,814 875
185,625 185,625 (85,625
9,606,281 143,744 $,750,025 8,224,248 1,525,771
16,396 416,896 387,103 29,793
15,407 15,407 15,407
530,880 (53.232) 477,648 232,762 244,856
01,432 {16,245) 85,187 71,715 13,472
45,207 180 45477 21,320 24,157
1,654,505 (53,890) 1,040,615 738,307 312,308
2,342,551 34,015 2,376,566 2,376,566
149,425 (800) 148,625 36,194 152,431
225,036 225,036 123,974 101,062
59,533 178,070 237,603 217,131 20,472
16,846 838 37,684 32,308 5,379
2,813,391 212,123 3,025,514 2,786,170 739,344
142,336 7,782 150,118 150,118
1,926,439 (48,799) 1,877,640 1,774,816 102,824
21,125 966 28,091 18,376 9,715
422,936 (17,625) 405,311 201,604 203,707
10,200 (2,960) 7,300 7,300
516,398 516,398 516,389 9
180,000 4,211 175,789 84,461 91,328
1,843,150 1,843,150 1,545,463 297,687
623,915 (3.973) 620,022 438,086 181,936
1,323,280 24,347 1,347,636 1,347,636
2,495,278 2,495,278 2,391,757 103,521
78,000 78,000 73,885 4,115
1,000 15,119 16,119 798 15,321
208,790 (15,119) 193,671 119,613 74,058
3,425 (120) 3,305 2,600 708
9,802,311 (1,483 9,757,828 8,665,602 1092226

Total student iransporiation services
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East Brunswick Public Schools
General Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

(Budgetary Basis)

Year ended June 30, 2020

C-1

p. 8
{continued)

Original Tudpet Final Variance
Badget Transfers Budge! Actuni Final {0 Actunl
Expenditwres {conthnved)
Curzent expenditures (continued):
Unallocated benefits:
Social secuqity ¢ostributions 1,753,000 $ 174,451 §  1,927454 1927451
Other retirement contributiens - PERS 2,243,783 (174,451) 2,069,332 1,982,042 § 87,250
Unemployment compensation insurance 70,000 70,000 10,000
Wotker's compensation 930,014 230,014 829,769 100,245
Healih beaefits 20,850,435 {610,482} 20,240,973 19,460,068 180,805
Tuition reimbursement 195,500 1,920 197,420 145,620 91,800
Other employee benefits 517,312 (453,001) 64,221 25,948 38,273
Unused sick paymenis o
terminatediretired staff - nomtal retirements 319,851 119,851 319,891
Tolal unallocated benefils 26,561,064 (741,762} 25,819,302 24,650,789 1,168,513
On-behalf paymenis:
TPAF - Pension Contribution (non-hudgeted) 13,362,088 (13,362,088)
TRAF - Past-Retirenzent Medical fnon-budgeted) 4,957,000 (4,957,090)
EPAF - Long-Term Disability insurance (non-budgeted) 12,309 {12,309)
Reimbursed TPAF social secusity
coniributions (nen-budgeted) 4,729,734 (4,729,734}
Total on-behalf psyments 23,061,221 (23,061,221)
Total undisteibuted expenditures 85,230,757 {14,366} 85,236,391 101,967,490 {16,731,099)
Tolal cureent expenditures 149,678,845 391,791 t 50,070,636 164,955,899 (14,885,263
Capital oullay
Equipment:
Regular progmms - insirection:
Grades 15 7,299 7,299 1,289
Undistributed instruction:
Atiend/Sociai Work/Heallh Guidance 70,400 70400 70,400
Support services - instriclional staft’ 2,458 2458 2458
General adninistration 2,287 2,287 2,287
Administcation infosmation technology 175,031 175,031 175,031
Required maintenance for school fucilities 57,054 57,654 54,860 2,185
Care and upkeep of grounds 20,553 20,553 20,552 {
Security 16,431 16,43% 16,430 ]
School-sponsored plhistics 7,642 {7.642)
Total equipment 1,642 3431,87) 351,513 276,669 74,844
Facilities ncquisition and construction services:
Salaries 15,002 316 313,318 13,317 H
Architecturalfengineering services 99,000 1,493,478 1,583,478 732,878 850,600
Othier purchased professional and technical services 88,517 88,517 57,2017 31,310
Construciion services 110,000 3,126,486 3,236,485 2,415,533 820,953
Supplies and materials 60,000 3,374 65,374 10,624 54,750
Lease purchase agreements - principzl 4,244,997 4,244,997 4,244,991 4
Other objects £:,126 11,526 11,126
Assessment for Debt Service on SDA Fuading 347,538 347,538 347,538
‘Tolal facilities acquisition and constuction services 4,865,337 4,725,297 9,590,834 7,833,216 1,757,018
Total expenditures - capital outlay 4,873,179 5,069,168 9,942,347 8,400,885 1,832,462
Special schools:
Summer school - instruction:
Salaries ofteachers 48,774 48,774 48,774
Otier salaries for instruction 13,833 13,831 9,143 4,690
Tota$ summzer schoal - instruction 62,607 62,607 9,143 53,464
Tolal speciaj schools 62,607 62,507 9,543 53,464
Charier schools 2,923,847 2,923,847 2,728,132 195,715
Total expenditures 154,538,478 5,469,959 162,999,437 175,203,059 (12,803,622}
{Deficiency) excess of revenues {under} over expendituees {5,894,001) (5,460,959} (11,354,960} 542,619 11,897,379

$00
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East Brunswick Public Schools
General Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
(Budgetary Basis)
Year ended June 30, 2020
Original Budget Final Varlance
Builget Translers Budget Actual Final t0 Actual
Cther finaneing sources {uses)
Transfers in S 1,544,001 $ 1,544,001 5 {l,544001)
‘Pransfers in - Capital Projests Fund % 70,827 70,827
Total other fisancing sources {uses) 1,544,001 1,544,001 70,827 (1,473,174)
{Deficiency) excess of revenues {under) over expendiures
and other financing seurces (vses) (4,350,0007 §  (5460,959) (9,810,959) 613,446 10,424 405
Fund balances, July | 24,575,816 24,575,816 24,575,816
Fund balances, June 30 $ 20225816 S (5460959) § 14764857 8§ 25,189,262 § 10,424,405
Recapitukation of (deficlency) excess of revenues
{under) ever expenditures and other financing sources (uses)
Budgeted fund balance $  (4,350,000) $ (4,350,000) $ 3,549,797 % 7,899,797
Budgeted fund balance - eapital reserve $  (2447,074) (2,447,074) 77,534 2,524,608
Adjustment For prior year encumbrances (3,013,885} (3,013,885) {3,013,885)
Total 5 {4,350,000) $ (5460959} § (98i6,959) & 613446 § 10,424,405
Recapitulation of Fund Balanee:
Restricted Fund Balance:
Capital Reserve $ 8,768,674
Excess Surplus - Current Year 4,350,000
Excess Surplus - Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures 4,350,000
Assigned Fund Balance:
Year-end Encumbrances 2,471,576
Desigmated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures 963,146
Unassigned Fund Bolance 4,285,866
25,189,262
Reconcilintion to Governmental Funds Siatements (GAAP):
Last state aid payments net recognized on GAAP basis {1,926,6069)

Fund balance per Govemmentat Funds (GAAP) (B-1)

23,262,053

sﬂ
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Special Revenue Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
(Budgetary Basis)

Year ended June 30, 2020

Original Budges Fina} Varianee
Budget Fransfers Budget Acfuak Fiznd to Actual
Revenues: .

Federal sousees 8 2,720,000 § 1,045433 % 3,765433 § 3045054 8§ (720,379

State sources 231,000 49,547 280,547 243,616 {36,931

Other sources 75,000 19,485,835 19,560,833 184,051 (19,375,878)
Total revenues 3,026,000 20,580,815 23,606,815 3,473,627 (20,133,188)
Bxpenditures:

Current expenditures:

Instruction:
Safaries 480,063 114,795 594,860 513,373 81,487
Purchased professional educational services 103,000 (20,258) 82,742 76,853 5,889
Other purchased services 1,646,138 178,013 1,824,151 1,800,088 24,063
Supplies and materials 123453 701,854 825,347 162,142 663,205
Textbooks 21,533 21,533 21,533

Total instruction 2,352,656 995,977 3,348,633 2,573,989 774,644

Support services:

Salacies 65,095 14,504 79,59% 74,535 5,064
Personal services - employes benefits 224,384 47,280 271,664 260,585 11,079
Purchased professional technical services 193,004 622,128 815,132 205,765 519,367
Purchased professional educational services 90,000 16,514 106,514 79,191 27,323
Other purchased services 14,120 23,916 38,036 28,222 9,814
Contragt services - {ransportation 8,000 408 8,408 8,408
Supplies and materials 39,084 §24.354 163,438 82,964 80,474
Tolal suppest services 633,687 849,104 1,482,791 829,670 653,121
Capital onllay:
Facifities acauisition and consiruction services;
Instructionsl equipment 31,39 057,856 989,252 600,821 388,431
Nou-instructienal equipmen 44,238 44,238 44,238
Regular education - school buses 1,510,00¢ 1,510,000 1,510,000
Purchased professional technical services 33,423 33,423 33423
Other purchased professionat / technical serviges 8,647 8,647 3,641 5,036
Counstruction services 8,261 16,174,718 16,182,979 10,279,966 5,903,013
Infrastruciure 6,852 6,852 6,852
Tofal facilities acquisition and censtruction services 39,657 18,735,734 18,775,391 10,928,636 1,846,755
Tolal expenditiires 3,926,006 20,580,815 23,606,815 14,332,295 9,274,520
(Deficiancy) of revenues {under) expenditures - - - {10,858,668) (10,858,668)
Other financing sources:

Lease purchese obligation proceeds - - 14,660,006 14,600,000
Total other financing sources - - - 14,600,000 14,600,000
Nel change in fund balance - . - 3,741,332 3,141,332
Fund Balance, July 1 1,470,300 - 1,070,300 1,070,300
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 1,070,300 8 - S 1,670,300 8§ 4,811,632  § 3,741,332
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Note to Required Supplementary Information

Budget to GAAP Reconciliation
Year ended June 30, 2020

Note A - Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and
Qutfiows and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures.

C-3

Special
General Revenue
Fund Fund
Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue” from the
Budgetary Comparison Schedule (C-1, C-2) $ 176,345,678 $ 3,473,627
Differences - Budget to GAAP:
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances {net) are recognized as expenditures, and the
related revenue Is recognized.
Prior year 23,850
Current year (12,717
State aid payments from prior year recognized in prior year for
budgetary purposes, and recognized for GAAP purposes in
the current fiscal year, 1,819,879
State aid payments recognized for budgetary purposes,
not recognized for GAAP purposes (1,926,609)
Total revenues as reported on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental
Funds (B-2) $ 176,238,948 $ 3,484,760
Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from the
Budgetary Comparison Schedule (C-1, C-2) $ 175,803,059 $ 14,332,295
Differences - budget to GAAP
Encumbrances (net) for supplies and equipment ordered but
not received are reported in the year the order is placed for
budgetary purposes, but in the year they are received
for GAAP purposes.
Prior year 23,850
Current year {12,717}
Total expenditures as reporied on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds {B-2) $ 175,803,059 $ 14,343,428
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Capital Projects Fund




F-1
East Brunswick Public Schools
Capital Projects Fund

Summary Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures,
Project Baiance and Project Status

(Budgetary Basis)

Year ended June 30, 2020

Revenues
Inferest eamed s 70,827
Total Revenues and other financing sources 70,827

Expendltures

Purchased professional and technical services 66,657

Constraction services 5,856,759
Total expenditures 5,923,416
Deficiency of revenues under expendifures (5,852,589)

Other Financing Uses

Transfers out {70,827}
Net clangs in fund balance Lefore special item (5,923,416)

Sypecial item:

Litigntion settlement 100,600
Net change int fund batance (5,823,416)
Fund Balance, July 1 7,158,718
Fund Balance, June 30 1,335,302
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Capital Projects Fund

F-la

Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance and Project Status

(Budgetary Basis)

Year ended June 30, 2020

Revised
Prlor Current Aughorized
Periods Yeny Totals Cost

Revenues and other finnneig sources

State sources - SDA grant $ 6,783,613 $ 6,783,613 5 6,783,613

Bond proceeds 22,095,003 22,095,000 22,095,000

Lease purchase 4,229,748 4,229,748 4,229,748

Preminm on bond issupnce 839,236 839,236 839,236

Transfer from {to} capitel reserve 2,778,107 2,118,107 2,778,107

nderest eamed 43,469 $ 70,827 114,296

Miscellaneous 3,996,480 3,996,480 3,996,480
Total Revenies 40,765,653 70,827 40,836,480 40,722,184
Expenditures and other financing vses

Legal 36,966 36,966 36,966

Other professional services 2,796,532 2,796,532 2,796,532

Purchased professional and technical services 725, 144 66,657 791,801 791,804

Conslruction services 29,506,483 5,856,759 25,363,242 35,363,242

Citier objects 38,051 38,051 38,051

Transfer 1o capital reserve 197,83 197,801 197,861

Cosis of issuance 86,396 86,896 86,896
Taota) expenditures 32,387,873 5,923,416 39,311,289 39,111,289
Othser Financing Sources (Uses)

Special item 100,060 160,000 100,000

Transfers out {219,062) {70,827} (289,889} (289,88%)
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over

(under) expenditures s 7,158,718 §  (5823416) § 1,335,362 $ 1,221,606
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East Brunswick Public Schoois
Capital Projects Fund

F-1b

Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance and Project Status

(Budgetary Basis)

Memorial Elementary School Replacement - Project No, 924

Hevenues and other financing sources

State sources - SDA grant
Bond proceeds
Leqse purchase
Preminum o1 bond issuance
Transfer from capital reserve
Litigation settlement
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures nnd other financing uses

Legal
Other professionnf services

Puarchased professional and technical services

Constrpction services
Other objects

Transfer to capital reserve
Costs of issmice

Totai expenditures

Ofher Financing Uses

Transfers out

Excess (deficiency) of revenves over
{under) expenditures

Addirlenal preject Information
Project number
Grant dale
Bond authorization date
Bonds Authorized

Bonds Issued
Originad Authorized Cost
Additional Autliorized Cost
Revised Authorzed Cost

Percentage Increase over Original
Autherized Cost

Percentage completion

Original target completion dnte

Revised targed completion date

Year ended June 30, 2020

Revised
Prlor Current Authorized
Periods Year Totnls Caost
4,238,520 4,238,520 4,238,520
13,960,000 12,969,800 13,960,000
1,619,060 1,619,000 1,619,000
¥ 100,000 100,000
3,996,480 3,996,480 3,996,480
23,854,000 160,000 23,914,000 23,814,000
36,966 36,966 35,966
2,485,071 2,485,071 2,485,071
233,006 238,006 238,006
20,054,232 20,954,232 20,954,232
33,051 38,051 38,051
23,752,326 23,752,326 23,752,326
al,6M 3 190,000 161,674 61,674
924
Janunry 4, 2010
hiay 12, 2010
17,956,480
13,966,600
23,814,000
23,814,000
0.00%
99.32%
2012
2020
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F-1¢

East Brunswick Public Schools
Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance and Project Status

{Budgetary Basis)

Central School Security and Communications Systems Upgrade - Project No. 931

Revenues and ofher financing sources

State sources - SDA grant

Bond proceeds

Lease purchase

Premium on bond issnance
Transfer from (1o} capital reserve
Interest eamed

Miscellaneous

Total Revennes

Expenditures and other finnocing uses

Legal
Other professional secvices

Purchased professional and technical services

Constraction services
Other objects

Transfer to capital reserve
Cosis of issnance

Tolal expenditures

Oier Financing Uses

Teansfers out

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expeaditures

Additionat project information
Project number
Grant date
Bond putherization date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued
Oclginal Autherized Cost
Additional Autlorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentnge Increase over Original
Autliorized Cost

Percentage completion

Criginal target completion date

Revised target completion date

Year ended June 30, 2020

Prlor Currest
Perlods Year

Tolals

Revised
Authorlzed
Cost

54,113

91,587

145,700

§3,555

132,000

145,555

{14%)

54,113

91,587

$

54,113

$1,387

145,700

145,706

13,555

132,000

13,5535

132,000

145,555

145,555

(145)

(145)

93
Jung 10, 2014
NA
NA
NA
135,283
10,417
145,700

1.10%
100%
2015

Complete
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Capital Projects Fund

F-1d

Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance and Project Status

(Budgetary Basis)

Chittick School Security and Communications Systems Upgrade - Project No, 933

Year ended June 30, 2020

Tevennes and ofher financing sources

State soutces - SDA geant
Bond proceeds
Lease purchase
Premium on bond issuance
Transfer from (1o} capital reserve
Interest earned
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

Expenditures and efher financing uses

Lepal
Other professional services

Purchased professional and technical services

Construction services
Otlser objects

Transfer to capital reserve
Costs of issnance

Tatai expenditires

Other Financing Uses

Transfers oul

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures

Additlonal project information
Praoject numnber
Grant date
Bond zuthorization date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds [ssued
Oiginnt Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authardzed Cost

Percentage Increase over Originad
Authorized Cost

Percentage completion

Criginal target completien date

Revised target completion date

Prior Current
Periods Year

Tolals

Revised
Authorized
Cast

57,916 $

87,419

57,916

87,419

$

57,916

87419

145,335

145,335

145,335

11,790

133,000

11,790

133,060

11,790

133,006

144,790

144,790

144,760

(545)

(545}

(545)

933
June 10, 2014
NA
NA
RA
145,659
(364}
145,335

-0.25%
100%
2015

Complete
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F-le

East Brunswick Public Schools
Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance and Project Status
(Budgetary Basis)

Churchill School Security and Communications Systems Upgrade - Project No. 934

Year ended June 30, 2020

Rtevennes and oflier financing sources

State sources - BDA grast
Bond proceeds
Lease purchase
Premium on bond issunnce
Transfer feom (o) capital reserve
Interest earned
Miscellaneous
‘Total Revenves

Expenditures and other finaneing uses

Lepal
Other professional services

Puschased professional and techaical services

Constouclion serviees
GCther objects

Transfer 1o cepital reserve
Costs of issuance

Totat expendisures

Other Finaneing Uses

Transfers out

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures

Additlonal projec! infarmatien
Project number
Grani date
Bond authorization date
Bends Authorized
Bonds Issued
Original Anthorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage completion

Origiual {arget completion date

Revised target completion date

Prior
Perlods

Current
Year Toinls

Revised
Authorized
Cost

50,424

116,375

166,800

10,673

156,000

166,673

{127

8 50,424

146,376

3 50,424

116,376

166,800

156,840

10,673

156,000

16,673

156,000

166,673

166,673

(127

(127)

934
June 10, 2014

NA

NA

NA
$26,060
40,740
166,800

32.32%
100%
2015

Complete
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F-1f

East Brunswick Public Schoois
Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance and Project Status
(Budgetary Basis)

East Brunswick High School Security and Communications Systems Upgrade - Project No. 936

Year ended June 30, 2020

Revised
Prior Current Authorized
Perfads Year Toilaks Cost

Revenues and other financlng sources

State sources - SDA grant $ 47,958 $ 47,958 $ 47,958
Bond proceeds
Lense purchase 101,842 101,842 101,842
Preminm oa bond issuance
Transfer from (to) capital veserve
Interest eamed
Miscelinneous
Total Revenues 142,800 {49,800 149,800

Expenditures and other fluancing uses

Lepal
Qther professional services 10,722 10,722 10,722

Purchased professional and technical services

Constklion services 139,000 136,000 139,000
Olier objects

Transfer to capilal reserve
Costs of issuance
Todnl expendinires 149,722 £49,722 149,722

Other Financing Uses

Transfers aut {78) (18) (78)

Excess {deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures ' § - 3 - g . ) -

Addifionnt project infornation

Project number 436

Grant dote Tune 10, 2014

Bond authorization dale NA

Bonds Awthorized NA

Bonds Issued NA

Original Awthorized Cost $ 119,894
Additional Authorized Cost 29,906
Revised Authorized Cost 149,800

Percentage Increase over Original

Authorized Cost 24.94%
Percentage completion 100%
OQriginal target completion date 213
Revised target completion date Compicte
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance and Project Status
(Budgetary Basis)

Frost Blementary School Roof Replacement - Project No, 938

Year ended June 30, 2020

Revised
Prier Current Aufhoriced
Periods . Yenr Totinls Cost

Revenues and ofher finanging sources

Staie sources - SDA grant § 466,069 § 466,969 § 464,069

Bond proceeds

Lease purchase 857,676 857,676 857,676

Premium on bond issuance

Transsfer from (lo) capital reserve

Interest earrved

Miscellaneous
Tolal Revenses 1,323,745 1,323,745 1,323,745
Expenditures and other financing uses

Legal

Otlier professional services 98,386 98,386 08,386

Purchased professional and technical services

Construction services 1,066,786 1,966,786 1,066,786

Olher objects

Transter to capital reserve

Cosls of issuance
Total expenditures 1,165,172 1,165,172 1,165,172
Other Financlng Uses

Transfers out (158,573) (£58,573) (158,571)
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over

(under) expenditures % - $ - S - 8 -

Additional project lnformation

Project number 938

Grant dafe ' June 10, 2014

Bond authorization date NA

Bands Authorized NA
Bonds [ssued NA

Original Authorized Cost 3 1,429,460
Additional Authorlzed Cost {105,715}
Revised Authorized Cost 1,323,745

Percentage Inerease over Original

Authorized Cost -7.40%
Percentage completion 100.00%
Oiginn} targel completion date 2015
Revised tnrget completion date Complete
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance and Project Status
(Budgetary Basis)

Frost School Security and Communications Systems Upgrade - Project No. 939

Year ended June 30, 2020

Revenues and other financing sovrees

State sources - SDA grant

Bond proceads

Lease purchase

Premivm on bond issuance
Transfer from (i} capital reserve
Interest eamned

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures and ether Gnauclng uses

Legal

Other professional services
Purchased professionn! and technical services

Construction services
Other objecis

Transfer fo capital reserve
Cosis of issuance

Total expenditures

Otlier Financing Uses
Transfers out

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditurcs

Additionad preject information
Project number
Grant date
Bond autherization date
Boads Authorzed
Bonds Issued
Original Awthorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage Hicrease over Original
Authorized Cost

Peicentage completion

Original target completion date

Revised terget completion date

Prior
Perloils

Cuvrent
Yoear Talals

Revised
Awthorized
Cost

46,245

84,948

131,193

11,613

104,600

115,613

{15,580)

$ 46,245

84,948

$

46,245

84,948

£31,193

131,193

11,613

104,000

11,613

104,006

115,613

115,613

(15,580}

(15,580)

939
June 10, 2014

NA

NA

NA
144,380
{10,387
131,193

-7.39%
100%
2015

Complele
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Hast Brunswick Public Schools

Capital Projects Fund

Schedute of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance and Project Status
{Budgetary Basis)

Hammarskjold School Security and Communications Systems Upgrade - Project No. 940

Year ended June 30, 2020

Revenues and ofher finnncing sources

State sources - SDA grant
Bond proceeds
Lease purchase
Premiusi on bond issuance
Transfer fron (lo) capital reserve
Interest entrved
Miscelmeous
Totai Revenues

Expenditures ard other Mnaneing uses

Legat
Other professional services

Purchased professionat and fechnical services

Construction services
Other objects

Transfer to capital reserve
Costs of issuance

Total expenditures

Other Financing Uscs

Transfers o

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

(under) expendilures

Additional project inforntation
Project number
Grant date
Bond authorization date
Bends Aushorized
Bonds Issued
Criginal Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Awlerized Cost

Percentage Increase over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage completion

Griginal target completion date

Revised farget completion date

Priov
Periods

Currend
Year Tatals

Revised
Authorized
Cost

65,617

137,983

203,600

13,444

190,000

203,444

(156)

$ 65,617

137,983

$

65,617

137,983

203,600

203,600

13,444

190,000

13,444

190,000

203,444

203,444

{156}

{156)

949
June 10, 2014
NA
NA
NA
164,042
39,558
203,600

24.51%
100%
2015

Complete
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Capital Projects Fund

F-1j

Scheduie of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance and Project Status

(Budgetary Basis)

Lawrence Brook School Security and Communications Systems Upgrades - Project No. 942

Revenues and other financing sources

State sources - SDA grani
Bond proceeds
Lease purchase
Premizz on bond issuasice
Transfer from (10) capital reserve
interesy eaned
Miscelinneous
Total Revenues

BExpenditures and other financing uses

Legal
Ollier professionnd services

Purchased professional and fechaical services

Consiraction services
Gitier objects
Transfer to capital reserve
Costs of issnance

Total expenditures

Other Financing Uses

Transfers oul

Excess {deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Additional project Information
Project number
Grant date
Bond autlorization date
Bonds Autherized
Bonds Issued
Original Autherized Cost
Additional Aulhorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentape Increase over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage completion

Original target completion date

Revised target completion date

Year ended June 30, 2020

Prior Current
Periods Year

Totals

Revised
Authorized
Cast

57,044

112,756

169,860

13,489

158,000

169,489

GBIy

57,044

112,756

$

57,044

12,756

169,800

169,800

11,489

158,000

11,489

158,000

169,489

169,489

@31

<11}

942
June 10, 2014

NA

NA

NA
142,609
27,191
169,800

19.07%
100%
2015

Camplelz
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Fast Brunswick Public Schools
Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance and Project Status
{Budgetary Basis)

Warnsdorfer School Security and Communications Systems Upgrade - Project No. 943

Year ended June 30, 2020

Revised
Priar Current Authorized
Perlods Year Totals Cost

Revenues ad other financlng sources

Siate sources « SDA grant $ 56,632 s 56,632 3 56,632
Bond proceeds
Lease purchase 105,068 105,068 105,068
Premium on bond issunnce
Transfer from (l0) eapital reserve
Interest eamncd
Miscellnneous
‘Total Revenues 161,700 161,700 {61,700

Expendttures and ofher financing uses

Legal
Other professional services 11,622 11,622 11,622

Purchased professional and technical services

Construction services 150,000 150,000 150,000
Other objects

Teansfer 1o capital reserve

Casts of issuance

Total expenditures 161,622 161,622 161,622

QOther Financing Uses

Transfers oul (78) {78) {78)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures 8 - 5 - $ - $ -

Addittonnl project informnton

Project number 943

Gran dale June 10, 2014

Bond authorization daie NA

Bonds Anthorized NA
Bonds lssued NA

Oripinal Authorized Cost 3 141,580
Additional Authorized Cost 20,120
Revised Authorized Cost {61,700

Percentage Increase over Origitnl

Authorized Cost 14.21%
Percentage completion 100%
Original target completion <date 2015
Revised target completion date Complete
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Capital Projects Fund

F-11

Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance and Project Status

(Budgetary Basis)

Chittick Elementary Scheol HVAC and Electrical Upgrades - Project No, 932

Revenues and other financing sources

State sources - SDA grant
Bond proceeds
Lease purchase
Premium o bond issuance
Transler from eapital reserve
injerest earned
Miscellaneous

Total Rovenues

Expenditures and ather financing uses

Legal
Other professional services

Purchased professional and fechnical services

Constrnction services
Cther objecis

Transter to capital resesve
Costs of isswance

Total expendifures

Otlter Finaneing Uses
Transfers out

Excess {deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Additional project information
Project number
Graat date
Bond anthorization date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued
Origizal Authorized Cost
Additional Aufhorized Cost
Revised Awllworized Cost

Percentage Increase over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage completion

Original target completion date

Revised target completion date

Year ended June 30, 2020

Revised
Prior Current Authorized
Periods Year Tatnls Cast
795,614 5 795,614 3 795,614
1,193,422 I,193,422 1,193,422
R87,710 237,710 887,710
2,876,746 2,876,746 2,876,146
60,726 60,720 60,726
35,120 36,120 34,120
2,188,664 2,188,664 2,188,664
98,526 98,526 98,526
2,384,036 2,384,036 2,384,036
492,710 - $ 492,710 5 492,710
932
October 23, 2014
NA
NA
NA
1,989,036
887,710
2,876,746
A44.63%
82.87%
2016
2021




East Brunswick Public Schools
Capital Projects Fund

F-im

Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance and Project Status

Trwin Elementary School HVAC and Electrical Upgrades - Project No. 941

Revenues and other finnncing sources

State sources - SDA grant
Bond proceeds

Lease purclinse

Premium on bond issuance
Transfer rom capital reserve
Interest earned
Miscellangous

Total Revenes

Expenditures aml other finguclng uses

Legal
Other professional services

Purchased professional and techaical services

Construclion serviees
Other objects

Transfer to capital reserve
Costs of issuance

Total expenditures

Ofler Financlng Uses

Transfers out

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Addittenal project information
Project number
Grant date
Bond aathorization date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds [ssued
Criginal Awthorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cosl
Revised Authorized Cosl

Percentage Increase over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage completion

Original target conpletion date

Revised target completion date

(Budgetary Basis)

Year ended June 30, 2020

Revised
Priov Current Authorized
Periods Year Totals Cost
847,461 3 847,461 847,461
1,340,671 1,340,671 1,340,671
271,397 271,397 271,397
3,459,529 2,459,529 2,459,520
57,441 57441 57,441
33,760 $ 4,413 38,173 38,173
2,044,280 2,044,280 2,044,280
99,275 99,275 99,175
1,234,756 4413 2,239,169 2,239,169
224,773 $ €413 220,360 220,360
941
October 23, 2014
NA
NA
NA
2,118,653
340,876
2,459,329
16.09%
91.04%
2016
2021

121




F-In

East Brunswick Public Schools
Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance and Project Status
(Budgetary Basis)

Energy Savings improvement Program - Project No. ESP

Year ended June 30, 202G

Revised
Prior Current Authorized
Perfods Year Totals Cost

Revenues and other financing sources

State sources - SDA grant

Bond proceeds $ 8,135,600 $ 8,£35,000 $ 8,135,000

Lease purchase

Premium on bond issuance 839,236 839,236 839,236

Transfer from capilal reseeve

Interest eamed 43,469 $ 70,827 114,296

Miscetlaneous
Tota! Revenues 9,817,705 70,827 9,088,532 8,974,236
Expendifures ond other finaneing uses

Lepal

Other professional services

Purchased professionai and technical services 417,258 62,244 479,502 479,502

Construction servicss 2,690,521 5,856,759 7,947 280 7,947,288

Other objects

Transfer to capital reserve

Cosls of issuance 85,896 86,896 86,856
‘T'otnl expenditures 2,594,675 5,919,003 8,513,678 8,513,678
Other Financlng Uses

Transfers oul {43,469) (70,827) (114,296)
Excess (deficiency} of revenues over

(under) expenditures s 6,379,561 s (5,919,003 & 460,558 $ 460,558

Additional project inforniation

Project number ESP

Graet date N/A

Bond authorization dnte Januazy 23, 2019

Bouds Authorized % 8,135,000
Bonds Issued 8,135,000
Premium 839,236

Original Awthorized Cast 8,135,000
Revised Authorized Cost 9,017,705

Percentage lucrease over Original

Autharized Cost 10.85%
Percentage completion 93.67%
Criginal target completion date 2020
Revised 1nrget completion date 2021
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Capital Projects Fund

Summary Schedule of Project Expenditures

(Budgelary Basis)

From Inceplion and for the year ended June 30,2020

Distried Espenditures to Iage ‘Transders Out
Pruject Orlginal Revised Prior Current Special Prior Bnespended
Tssue/Project Title Number Ditle Appropriatlons Years Year Ttem Years Bulanee

Memorin Elementary Schiool Replacersens G9/1¢ 924 142010 s 23814000 S 23752320 £ 10000 5 161,674
Central Schood Security and Comuunicalions Systems Upgrade 13/14 931 GV 43,700 {45,555 & 145
Chiuick School Security and Convnunications Systenus Upgrade 1/14 933 61072014 145,333 14H,79¢ 45
Churchili School Security And Comnnicalions Systoms Upgmdss 13/14 9 6102044 166,800 166,672 127
East Brunswick High School Security and Comnumications Systems Upgrades 13414 936 602084 145,800 149,722 "%
Frost Elementary School Roof Replacement 13/14 93 6/t0r2084 1323145 1,165,172 135,573
Fros| School Secwity and Conumunications Systems Upgrades 13714 939 . oo 131,193 115,63 15,380
Hammarskjold Schiool Security and Communitations Sysiems Upgrades 13/14 240 GILO2014 203,600 2344 156
Lawrence Brook School Security and Connmuntcalions Systens Upgrades 13/14 o942 G/E0A20H 169,800 169,489 311
Wamsdorer School Securily and Communications Systems Upgrades 13/14 43 G014 161,780 161,622 78
Chittick Elementary School HVAC and Electricat Upgrades 14714 932 /2372614 2,876,746 2,285,510 98,526 492,710
Lowin Eleinentary School HYAC and Eiectaisal Upgrades L4115 941 L0/2372014 2,459,519 2135481 8 4412 99,274 220,360
Energy Savings Improvsment Program FSp 1232019 8974,216 2,594,075 5,219,001 460,554
Crand Total $ 40720181 & A lee072 5,923,410 §  oUo0  § IFAE$ 1,335,302
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East Brunswick Public Schools

Trust and Agency Funds

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Other accounts receivable
Total assets

Linbilities

Payrolf deductions payable
Due to sludent groups
Total liabilities

June 30, 2020

Agency

H-1

Student
Activity

Payroll

Total
Agency

¥ 579759

$ 685,089

207

$ 1,264,848
207

& 579,759

$

685,296

$ 1,265,055

$ 579,739

(85,296

$ 685,296
579,159

$ 579,759

685,296

3 1,265,033
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Student Activity Agency Fund

Statement of Cash Receipts and Cash Disbursements

Year ended June 30, 2020

Balance Balance
July Cash Cash June
1,2019 Receipts Disbursements 30, 2020
Elementary Schools:
Bowne-Munto $ 4,154 $ 2,942 $ 2,186 $ 4910
Central 6,335 6,525 6,911 5,949
Irwin 3,371 3,535 6,014 892
Lawrence Brook 4,864 5,065 5,835 4,094
Memorial 3,703 5,744 7.072 2,375
Murray A, Chittick 10,338 5,553 8,080 7.811
Robert Frost 5,360 6,691 6,364 5,687
Warnsdorfer 19,235 5,667 6,416 18,486
Total elementary schools 57,360 41,722 48,878 50,204
Middie Schools:
Churchill 100,476 88,059 70,457 118,078
Hammarskjold 37,047 18,752 23,479 32,320
Total middle schools 137,523 106,811 93,936 150,398
High Schools:
Fast Brunswick High School 377,341 507,657 506,821 378,177
E.B.IL.S. Athletic Fund 8,534 83,115 90,669 980
Total high schools 385,875 590,772 597,490 379,157
Total all schools $ 580,758 $ 739305 $ 740,304 $ 579,759

1235




H-4

East Brunswick Public Schools
Payroll Agency Fund

Statement of Cash Receipts and Cash Disbursements

Year ended June 30, 2020

Balance Balance
July Cash Cash June
1,2019 Receipts Disbursements 30,2029
Assets
Cash and equivalents $ 683,001 $105,850,402  § 105,848,314 § 685,089
Qther accounts receivable 207 207
Total assets $ 683,001  $105,850,609 § 105,848,314 § 685296
Liabilities
Payroli deductions and
withholdings $683,001  $105,850,609 § 105,848,314 § 085,296
Total liabilities $ 683,001 $105,850,609 $ 105,848,314 § 685,296
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Long-Term Debt

Schedule of Lease Purchase Obligations Payable

Year ended June 30, 2020

Amount of Balance Balanee
Interest Original July Current June
Rate Issue 1,2019 Additions Retired 30, 2020
Capital Improvement Projects «
Additions and Renovations to High
School - Lease with East Bunswick
Township 4,23% $ 14,320,000 % 229,187 b3 229,787
Capital Improvement Projects -
Lease with East Brunswick Township 1.35% 5,800,000 2,320,000 1,160,000 3 1,160,000
Capital Emprovement Projects -
2016 Lease with Bast Brunswick Township 1.35% 6,200,000 2,520,000 840,000 1,680,000
Capitai Improvemeni Projects -
2017 Lease with Bast Brunswick Township 1.20% 1,100,000 880,000 220,000 660,000
Capiltal Tmprovement Projects -
2018 Lease with Bast Brunswick Township 1.35% 5,800,000 5,800,000 1,160,000 4,640,000
Capita! Improvement Projects -
2020 Lease with East Brunswick Township 1.20% 14,600,000 3 14,600,060 14,600,000
$ 11,749,787 $ 14,600,000 $ 3609787 § _ 22740,00¢
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Revenues:
Local sources:
Local tax levy
State sources:
Debi service aid type Il
Total revenues

Expenditures;
Principal on debt
Interest on debt
Principal on kease purchase obligation
interest on lease purchase obligation
Cost of issuance

Total expenditures

(Deficiency) excess of revenues (under)
over expendifures

Other finanecing sources (uses):
Refunding bonds issued
Premium on refunding bonds issued

East Brunswick Public Schools

Debt Service Fund

Budgctary Comparison Schedule

Year ended June 30, 2020

1-3

Paymient to refunding bond escrow agent

Total other financing sources (uses):
Net change in fund balances

Fund balance, July 1
Fund balance, June 30

Original Final Yarlanee
Budgel Budget Actunl Final to Actual
$ 6,693,984 § 6,693,984 § 6,693,984
79,594 79,594 79,594
6,773,578 6,773,578 6,773,578
4,080,000 4,095,000 4,095,000
2,506,179 2,491,179 2,348,719 % 142,460
229,787 229,787 229,787
9,732 9,732 9,732
110,848 (110,849
6,825,698 6,825,698 6,794,687 31,611
(52,120) (52,1200 (20,509} 31,611
10,355,000 10,355,000
1,799,553 1,799,553
{12,043,704) (12,043,704}
110,849 110,849
(52,820) (52,120} 90,340 142,460
22,122 22,122 22,122
3 (20,998) § {29,998) 3 112,462 & 142,460
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Statistical Section
(Unaudited)




Statistical Section
Unaudited

Contents

Financial Trends
These schedules contain historical trend information to help the reader understand how the
District's financial performance and financial position have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the District's most significant local
revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the District's
current levels of outstanding debt and the District's ability to issue additional debt in the future,

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the District's financial activities take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the District's financial report relates to the services the District provides and the
activities it performs. -

Sources: Unless otherwise nofed, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports (CAFR) for the relevani year.
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East Brunswick Public Schools

General Fund - Other Local Revenue by Source

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

J-5

Unaudited

Fiscal Year Interest on Tuition Annuai

Ended June 30, Investments Revenue Rentals Miscellaneous Totals
2011 $ 32,816 % 162,291  § 110,300 § 405,503 h 710,908
2012 25,178 311,056 102,968 2,047,637 2,486,839
2013 20,548 346,709 162,047 440,433 969,737
2014 14,985 306,837 146,365 333,284 801,471
2015 13,327 358,579 146,556 442,337 960,799
2016 17,394 475,978 113,618 514,754 1,121,744
2017 18,216 863,256 108,755 471,373 1,466,600
2018 64,177 1,042,113 102,758 393,937 1,602,985
2019 445,048 895,102 587457 1,927,607
2020 703,437 699,894 344,942 1,748,273

Source; District Records
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Fiscal Year
Ended June

30,

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

East Brunswick Public Schools
Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited

Collected within the Fiscal Year of the

J-9

Levy Collections in
Taxes Levied for Percentage Subsequent
the Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years
* § 106,788,787 106,788,787 100.00%
* 108,271,963 108,271,963 100.00%
* 110,437,402 110,437,402 100.00%
* 113,246,150 113,246,150 100.00%
* 116,518,219 116,518,219 100.00%
127,939,093 127,939,093 100.00%
130,177,338 130,177,338 100.00%
132,424,676 132,424,676 100.00%
134,635,982 134,635,982 100.00%
136,503,916 136,503,916 100.00%

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

Note:

* Years presented prior to 2016 only include the General Fund tax levy.

School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a
municipality is required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in the amount

certified prior to the end of the school year.
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Fast Brunswick Public Schools
Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited

General Bonded Debit Quistanding

Percentage of

J-11

Fiscal Year General Actual Taxable
Ended June Obligation Net General Bonded Value * of
30, Bonds Deductions © Debt Outstanding Property Per Capita ”

2011 94,636,000 $ 108,444 $ 94,527,556 4,82% $ 1,985
2012 91,626,000 95,024 51,530,976 4.74% 1,914
2013 90,085,000 296,665 89,788,315 4.72% 1,877
2014 86,775,000 289,419 86,485,581 4.57% 1,805
2015 83,465,000 7 83,464,993 4.41% 1,739
2016 79,585,000 9,663 79,575,337 4,20% 1,660
2017 75,780,000 37,073 75,742,927 3.98% 1,581
2018 71,660,000 89,193 71,570,807 3.77% 1,497
2019 75,715,000 4,807,181 70,607,819 3.73% 1,489
2020 70,140,000 6,305,839 63,834,161 3.36% *

Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements,

a See Exhibit J-6 for property tax data.

b Population data can be found in Exhibit J-14,
¢ Deductions are externally restricted for the payment of principal of the debt,

* Information for the noted year not available
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Year

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

Fast Brunswick Public Schools

Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited

J-14

Personal Income Per Capita
(thousands of Personal Unemployment
Population ** dollars) Tncome Rate
47,618 - 50,969 7.2%
47,827 - 53,435 7.4%
47,844 - 52,471 0.4%
47,908 - 53,955 5.0%
48,005 - 54,971 4.2%
47,937 - 56,526 317%
47,915 - 58,172 3.5%
47,800 - 61,065 3.1%
47,611 - 2.60%
# *

Source; NJ Department of Labor and Workforce Development

* Information for the noted years was not available.
** Prior year estimates revised,
Note: Per capita personal income is disclosed at the county level, Personal income and per capita personal income

information was not available at the district level.
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Insurance Schedule
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Unaudited

MULTI-PERIL PACKAGE POLICY

EDUCATIONAL RISK AND INSURANCE CONSORTIUM / NISIG
POLICY NO, P-135AK
ANNUAL PREMIUM: $543,685

Section 11 - Commergial General Liability

Bodily Injury, Properly Damage and Personal Injury
Medical Expense

Aggregate Child Molestation/Sexual Abuse
Employee Benefits Legal Liability

Seclion Iff - Crime
Money and Securities
Employee Dishonesty
Deposiiors Forgery
Computer Frand

SCHOOL BOARD LEGAL

EDUCATIONAL RISK AND INSURANCE CONSORTIUM / NISIG
POLICY NO. E-135A)
ANNUAL PREMIUM: $214,477

Wrongfu! Acts Liability - Each Occurrence
Annual Aggregale

CATASTROPHIC POLICY

FIREMAN'S FUND
POLICY NO, SHX0004948655
ANNUAL PREMIUM: $40,256

Limit of Insurance (Group Aggregate)

PROPERTY INSURANCE

EDUCATIONAL RISK AND INSURANCE CONSORTIUM / NJSIG
POLICY NO. PI35Al
ANNUAL PREMIUM; Included

Blankel Building - Contents Coverage
Extra Expense

Flood & Earthquake

EDP

Energy Systems - Property Damage
Energy Systems - Extra Expense

J-20

p. 1
{continued)
Coverage Deductibie
31,060,000
10,000
31,000,000
31,000,000
50,000 8 500
1,000,000 1,600
1,000,000 1,000
1,000,000 1,000
31,000,000 15,000
31,000,600
50,000,000
406,884,976 10,000
50,000,000 10,000
75,000,000 10,000
2,100,000 1,000
406,884,976 10,000
10,000,000 10,600
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Insurance Schedule
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Unaudited

AUTOMOBILE POLICY AND GARAGE KEEPERS

INCLUDED IN MULTI-PERIL PACKAGE
POLICY BY EDUCATIONAL RISK AND INSURANCE
CONSORTIUM / NISIG

Bodily Injury and Property Damage
Uninsured Motorist Coverage
Comprehensive

Collision

Beazley
POLICY NO. WIBE82190401
ANNUAL PREMIUM: $21,315

Legal Liability

WORKERS COMPENSATION

EDUCATIONAL RISK AND INSURANCE CONSORTIUM / NJSBAIG
POLICY NO, W-135AK
ESTIMATED DEPOSIT PREMIUM: $810,133

A. Worker's Compensation Insurance Under New Jersey State Laws
B. Employer's Liability

Bodily Injury - Each Accident

Badily Injury By Disease - Each Employee

CHUBB INSURANCE
POLICY NO. 64775774 (99071588)
ANNUAL PREMIUM: §39,213

Supplemental Coverage:
Reimbursenient of Salary - Max Weekly Benefit

PRIMARY UMBRELLA

INCLUDED IN MULTI-PERIL PACKAGE
POLICY BY EDUCATIONAL RISK AND INSURANCE
CONSORTIUM / NJSIG

J-20

p.2
{continued)
Coverage Deductible
5 31,000,000
1,000,000
Replacement $ 1,006
Replacement 1,000
1,000,000 each loss 10,600
3,000,600 aggregate
3,000,000
3,000,000
1,750
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Insurance Schedule
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Unaudited

STUDENT ACCIDENT INSURANCE

BOLLINGER
POLICY NO. MCB5859349
ANNUAL PREMIUM: $83,74¢

Supplenental to primary family policy - full excess

BONDS

SELECTIVE INSURANCE
POLICY NO. Bi0050G7
ANNUAL PREMIUM: §2,100

Rernardo J, Giuliana, Business Administrator / Board Secretary

Source: Disirict Records

3-20

Coverage Deduictible

5,000,000

750,000
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W’ WISS

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditors’ Report

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

East Brunswick Public Schools

East Brunswick, New Jersey

County of Middlesex

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of
Education, State of New Jersey; and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the
financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the East Brunswick Public Schools, in the County
of Middlesex, New Jersey (the “District”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 4, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the District’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

WISS & COMPANY, LLP 155
14 Penn Plaza, Suite 1010 100 Campus Drive, Suite 400 5 Bartles Corner Road
New York, NY 10122 Florham Park, NJ 07932 Flemington, NJ 08822

212.594.8155 973.994.9400 908.782.7300



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and the audit requirements as
prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

P A

Scott A. Clelland
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 1049

WISS & COMPANY, LLP
February 4, 2021

Florham Park, New Jersey
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“ K-2
Report on Compliance For Each Major Federal and State Program and
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance and
New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08

Independent Auditors’ Report

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

East Brunswick Public Schools

East Brunswick, New Jersey

County of Middlesex

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited the East Brunswick Public Schools, in the County of Middlesex, New Jersey (the
“District”) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB
Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state programs for the year ended
June 30, 2020. The District’s major federal and state programs are identified in the summary of
auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal and state statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal and state awards applicable to its federal and state programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District’s major federal
and state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements
as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey; the
audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance);
and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State
Grants and State Aid. Those standards, the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-
08 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal and state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence about the District’s compliance with those requirements and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal and state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
District’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the District’s internal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal and
state program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal and state program and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and New
Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the District’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our

testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08. Accordingly, this report is not

suitable for any other purpose.

Scott A. Clelland
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 1049

Wiss: ey

WISS & COMPANY, LLP

February 4, 2021
Florham Park, New Jersey
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East Brunswick Public Schools

Notes to Schedules of Expenditures of
Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance

Year ended June 30, 2020

1. General

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance
include the federal award and state financial assistance activity under programs of the federal and
state government for the year ended June 30, 2020. The District is defined in Note 1 to the
District’s basic financial statements. All federal awards and state financial assistance received
directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial assistance
passed through other government agencies are included on the schedules of expenditures of
federal awards and state financial assistance.

2. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are
presented on the budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the
enterprise fund, which are presented using the accrual basis of accounting and those recorded in
the special revenue fund, which are presented using the budgetary basis of accounting., These
bases of accounting are described in Note | to the District's basic financial statements. The
information in these schedules are presented in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR 200-
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal
Grants, State Grants and State Aid. Therefore, some amounts presented in these schedules may
differ from amounts presented, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements,
Because the schedules present only selected portions of the operations of the District, it is not
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of
the District

3, Relationship to Basic Financial Statements

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with amounts reported in the District’s
basic financial statements. The basic financial statements present the general fund and special
revenue fund on a GAAP basis, Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (RSI) are
presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related legal
compliance in which certain revenue is permitied by law or grant agreement {0 be recognized in
the fiscal year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year
or when expenditures have been made.
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p. 2

East Brunswick Public Schools

Notes to Schedules of Expenditures of
Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance

Year ended June 30, 2020
3. Relationship to Basic Financial Statements (confinued)

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis of
accounting with the exception of the revenue recognition of the last two state aid payments in the
current year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes, those
payments are not recoghized until the subsequent year due to the state deferral and recording of
the last two state aid payments in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in
the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis, which recognizes
encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis
does not.

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $106,730 for the
general fund and $11,133 for the special revenue fund. See the Note to Required Supplementary
Information (C-3) for a reconciliation of the budgetaty basis to the GAAP basis of accounting for
the general fund and special revenue fund.

Financial award revenues are reported in the District’s basic financial statements on a GAAP
basis as follows:

Federal State Total
General Fund $ 131,445 $44,549,298 $44,680,743
Special Revenue Fund 3,045,626 243,616 3,289,242
Debt Service Fund 79,594 79,594
Enterprise Fund — Food Service 1,023,392 22,563 1,045,955
Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund 86,669 86,669
Total financial award revenues $ 4,287,132 $44,895,071 $49,182,203

4, Relationship to Federal and State Financial Reports

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related
federal and state financial report.
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East Brunswick Public Schools

Notes to Schedules of Expenditures of
Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance

Year ended June 30, 2020

S, Other

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Focd Donation Program represent current year value
received and current year distributions, respectively. TPAF Social Security Contributions represent
the amounts reimbursed by the State for the employer’s share of Social Security for TPAF
members for the year ended June 30, 2020.

The post retirement pension medical benefits and long-term disability received on-behalf of the
District for the year ended June 30, 2020 amounted to $18,331,487.  Since on-behalf post
retirement pension medical and other long-term disability benefits are paid by the State directly,
these expenditures are not subject to a single audit in accordance with New Jersey OMB Circular
15-08, however they are reported on the Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance,
as directed by the funding agency.

6. Indirect Costs
The District charged indirect costs of $10,376 to the Food Service Enterprise Fund. The District

did not elect to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed by the Uniform Guidance for
any other grants.
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p.l
East Brunswick Public Schools
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year ended June 30, 2020
Part I - Summary of Auditors’ Results
Financial Statements

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial
statements audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes X None Reported
Noncompliance material to financial

statements noted? Yes X No
Federal Awards
Internal control over major federal programs:

Material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes X None Reported
Type of auditors” report issued on compliance for major

federal programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes X No
Identification of major federal programs:
CFDA Number(s) FAIN Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster

(Special Education Cluster)
84,027 HO027A190100 IDEA Part B, Basic
84.173  HI173A190114 IDEA Preschool

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and
Type B programs: $750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes No
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (continued)
Year ended June 30, 2020
Part I - Summary of Auditors’ Results (continued)

State Financial Assistance
Internal control over major state programs:

Material weakness(es) identified?  Yes _ X = No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None

Yes X Reported

Type of auditors’ report on compliance for major state
programs; Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be _
reported in accordance with NJ OMB Circular 15-087 Yes X No

Identification of major state programs:

GMIS/Program Number Name of State Program or Cluster
495-034-5094-003 Reimbursed TPAF Social Security
495-034-5120-044 Extraordinary Aid

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and
Type B programs: $800,109
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes No
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East Brunswick Public Schools
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year ended June 30, 2020

Part 11 - Schedule of Financial Statement Findings

No compliance or internal control over financial reporting findings noted that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

169




Bast Brunswick Public Schools
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (continued)
Year ended June 30, 2020

Part III - Schedule of Federal Award and State Financial Assistance
Findings and Questioned Costs

No federal award or state financial assistance program internal control over compliance
ot compliance findings or questioned costs were noted that are required to be reported in

accordance with 2 CFR 200 Section 516(a) or New Jersey State OMB Circular 15-08.
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East Brunswick Public Schools

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

Year ended June 30, 2020

No prior year findings were noted.
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